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Cohort plc1s the parent company of four innovative, agile and
responsive businesses providing a wide range of services and products
for UK and international customers in defence and related markets

MASS 15 a specialist defence and MCL 15 an expert in the sourcing SCS1s a defence and security SEA 1s an advanced electronic
technology business, focused mainly design and integration of consultancy, combining technical systems and software house

on electrorc warfare, information communications and surveilllance expertise with armed forces operahng 1n the defence, transport
systems and cyber secunity technology, as well as support and experience and domain knowledge and offshore energy markets

traiming for UK end users including the

wWww scs-l .uk www.sea.co.uk
MOD and other government agencies scs-Itd co

www mass co uk

www mariboroughcomms com




Financial and operational highlights

Order intake (Em)

£114.0m

Adjusted operating profit (Em)*

£10.1m

+23% +65%
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adjusted operating profit

Net funds up 21% to £19 7m (2014 £16 3m)

Record profit at MASS

SEA profitability improved and J+S business integrated

SCS profitability significantly improved

« MCL maiden contribution of £1 3m on £10 1m of revenue

Overview

Net funds {£€m)
£19.7m
+21%
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Adjusted operating profit* up 23% to £10 1m (2014 £8 2m), a record trading profit

Underlying organic growth (excluding acquisiions) up 22% and 17% n revenue and

Adjusted earnings per share™ up 7% at 20 45 pence (2014 19 15 pence)
Proposed final dividend up 21% at 3 40 pence per share (2014 2 80 pence)

* Excludes excephonal items amorhsanhon of other intangible assets and marking forward exchange contracts to market value at the year end
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Chairman’s statement
Nick Prest CBE, Chairman

In summary

* The Board 1s recommending a final
dwidend of 3 4 pence per ardinary
share (2014 2 8 pence)

* Cohort plc achieved a record
adjusted operating profit for the
year of £10 1m (2014 £8 2m)

* The Group ended the year with
net funds of £19 7m {2014 £163m)

* MASS achieved record profits

* SEA continued Its progress
and integrated the acquired
15 business

* SCS significantly improved
its profitabihty

* Maiden contribution from MCL

Read more about our recent
operational achvities, strategy and
business review on pages 10 to 21

Cohort plc once again improved its performance in
the year achieving record revenue, adjusted
aperanng profit and closing cash The underlying
businesses of MASS, 5CS and SEA all recorded
growth in revenue and adjusted cperating profit,
and the result also benefited from the two
acquisinons made in the year

Key finanaials

In the year ended 30 April 2015, Cehort ple
achieved sales revenue of £99 9m {2014 £71 6m),
incfuding £32 5m (2014 £37 6m} from MASS
Consultants Limited {MASS), £16 9m (2014

£14 9m) from Systems Consultants Services
Limited (SCS) £40 4m [2014 £29 1m) from SEA
{Group) Limited (SEA), and a maiden contribution
from Marlborough Communications Lirmited (MCL)
of £10 1m The 5EA revenue included a
contribution from the newly acquired j+$ Limited
(1+45) of £7 9m As well as the two acquisinons, the
improved revenue of the Group reflected
increased export work at MASS, submarine
communecations system work at SEA and training
suppart achwity at 5C5

The Group's adjusted operathng profit was

£10 1m {2014 £8 2m) This included contribubans
from MASS of £5 5m {2014 £5 0m), SCS£1 3m
{2014 £10m}and SEA £4 Om (2014 £3 8m)

and a good imtal contnbution from MCL of

Just over £1 3m Cohort plc Group overheads were
£2 0m {2014 £1 Bm) MASS, which remains the
Group's largest contrnibuter to profit, improved
its performance as a result of higher revenue,
although its net margin was shightly lower as a
result of changed mix Likewise the improved
performance at 5CS reflected its increased revenue

The improvement at SEA, which included a
contribution from J+5 of £0 1m, was especially
pleasing, since the 2014 comparative included
a final profit contribution fram SEA's divested
Space business of £0 bm

The Group operating profit of £5 9m (2014 £6 6m)
was after recognising amortisabon of intangible
assets of £3 6m and exceptional items of £0 6m, the
latter being the costs of the two acquisitions and
camplebng the disposal of SEA's Space business
Profit before tax was £S5 9m (2014 £6 7m) and
proft after tax was £5 2m {2014 £5 9m)

Adjusted earnings per share were 20 45 pence
{2014 19 15 pence) The adjusted earnings per
share were based upon profit after tax, excluding
amortisation of other mtangible assets, charge
on marking forward exchange contracts to market
value at the year-end and excephional items, all net
of tax Basic earnings per share were 14 04 pence
{2014 14 75 pence)

Crder intake for the year was £114 3m

[2014 £68 Sm)and a further £5 4m and £32 6m
of orders were added to the Group’s order book
with the acquisiions of MCL and 145 respechively
The net funds at the year-and were £12 7m
[2014 £16 3m), the Group having spent aver
£17m during the year on acquining MCL and J+5

Dividends

The Beard is recommending a final donidend

of 3 4 pence per ordinary share {2014 2 8 pence),
making a total dividend of 5 0 pence per ordinary
share {2014 4 2 pence) for the year a 19% increase
This will be payable on 30 September 2015 to
shareholders on the register at 28 August 2015
subject to approval at the Annual General Meeting
on 22 September 2015
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MASS

MASS's adjusted operating profit of just under
£5 5m (2014 £50m) was ahead of last year’s,
driven by 1ts increased revenue Its net margin
was down from 18 1% to 16 9% as a result of the
changed mix of work Looking forward we expect
MASS to operate around this margin level as it
grows its cyber offering, which typically includes
more bought-in equipment

MASS's order book smproved during the year as

it replenished a number of its longer-term orders,
especially in the export market Its closing order
book of £53 4m (2014 £46 4m) provides a good
underpinning for 2016

MCL

Marlborough Communications Ltd (MCL) was
acquired by the Group on 9 luly 2014 and has
become the fourth standalone member of Cohart
ple As 1 explained last Decemnber, the Group
acquired 50% plus one share of MCL, giving
effectve control to the Group and as a result
100% of MCU's result 1s reported by the Group,
with the minority interest being deducted for
earnings per share calcutahons

MCL, as expected, has been immediately earnings
enhancing, making an inihal contribution of £1 3m
of adjusted operating profit on revenue of £10 1m

In addibon to the acquired arder boeok of £S5 4m,
MCL secured orders in the ten manths since
acquisihon of £7 Sm and ended the year with an
arder book of £2 8m This order book, as 1s typical
for MCL, covers only a small proportion of the
coming financial year's revenue expectatons
MCL's business model has historically had short
cycle tirnes, especally in support and repeat work,
and its pipeline of prospects give us confidence
that it wil make progress in the corming year

5CS

In what continues to be a hght domesbc defence
market for technical consultancy, SCS again grew
its UK MOD revenue, much of this a result of its
unique posinon in delivering high level training to
the Joint Warfare Centre Activity in this area has
increased and 1s now closer to pre Afghanistan
levels followsng the withdrawal of British forces
from that theatre

The £1 3m {2014 £1 Om) adjusted operating
profit was a net return of 7 8% {2014 6 9%) of
revenue This welcome improvement reftects the
operational gearing from the higher revenue and
15 an indhication of SCS’s progress

5C5’s closing order book was £9 8m {2014 £10 0m)
a good starting posihion for the coming year

3

SEA

SEA had another strong year with its adjusted
operating profit growing to £4 0m (2014 £3 8m)
despite last year’s comparative including a positive
contribution from the divested Space business of
f0 6m The SEA result included restructuning costs
of £0 2m from integrating J+S This was completed
before the end of the year and will provide a cost
saving going forward of around £0 Sm per annum

The improved result at SEA reflected higher
revenue In its defence business with deliveres
continuing on the dekivery of the External
Communications System (ECS) for the Astute
class of submarnines Work has now started

on the remainder of the UX's submarine

fleet under the Cammon ECS programme

The imiral contribution frorn J+5 of £0 1m was below
expectabons, reflecting delays to a number of
projects with the UK MOD, all of which have now
been secured The prospects for J+5 remain in line
with aur expectations at the time of the acquisiion

SEA secured over £50m (2014 E33m) of orders

Inthe year as well as acquiring nearly £33m of order
book with the acquisition of 145, and closed with
an order book of £68 Om (2014 £25 3m), prowiding
a good underpinning to the coming year and beyond

Cash

The Group delivered a very strong operating cash
perfarmance for the year of £18 8m (2014 £2 6m}
offseting the sigruficant investment outflows in
acquiring MCL and J+5 After some delay, the sale
of SEA’s Space business was concluded sansfactonly,
the Group receiving the £1 Sm 1t expected in respect
of working capital acquired by Thales Alenia Space
on top of the £2 5m completion monies received
earlier in the year The strong year-end cash position
was ahead of our expectations and partly benefited
from the timing of contract receipts and supplier
payments around the year-end This posiban will
revarse in the coming manths

Board, management and staff

As separately announced a number of changes
will shortly take place in the composition of the
Cohort plc Board These reflect the evolving
needs of the Group and the plans of iIndmduals

with effect from the Annual General Meebing to
be held on 22 September 2015 Stanlay Carter
will relinquish hus role as Co Chairman of
Cohort plc He will remain on the Board as a
Non executive Director

leff Perrin will be joirung the Board of Cohart plc
as a Non executive Director on 1 July 2015 and will
take over from Sir Robert Walmsley as Chairman
of the Audit Commuittee following the Annual
General Meetng Rob Walmsley will remain on the
Board as a Non-executive Director and continue

as Chairman of the Remuneration and
Nominations Committee

twould ke to set on record the Board's appreciation
for all that Stanley Carter has done for Cohart plc
as co-founder, as CEQ unntl 2009, and in recent
years as Co Charman He remains a significant
shareholder and the Board 1s pleased that he will
be continuing as a Non-executive Directar

1 am delighted that we will shortly be welcaming
Jeff Pernin to the Board He brings a wealth of
experience not only in the financial management
of mulb business technology groups, cperating
in the UK and overseas but also in the general
management of such companies, embracing the
supply of software and hardware and the execution
of mulh-disciphnary projects in markets related

Overview

to those in which Cohart plc operates He will be
a valuable addition to the Cohort plc Board

I would like to thank Rob Walmsley for his work
as Chair of the Audit Committee from the inception
of the Company until now

Andy Thomis and his senior executive colleagues
have continuwed the dedicated and skilful work
which has helped the Group to progress in the
face of challenging trading canditions in parts

of the defence market

I would like to thank in parbcular Bl Bird, who
retires as Managing Director of 5CS on 26 lune 2015
Bill started wath 5CS in September 2010 and has
successfully steered the company in a tricky
market, improving its profit performance year on
year whilst at the helm The Board of Cohort plc
wishes Bill a very happy retirernent | also welcome
Christian Cullinane as Bill's replacement Christran
Joined the Group on 11 June 2015 having had
extensive experience as a senior executive in
consultancy, the last ten years in defence with
QinehQ and Arrbus, and previously with

Deloitte and BT

Lastly my thanks go to all staff within the
businesses Their hard work, skill and ability
to deliver what the customer needs are what
whmately drive the performance of our Group

Outlook

The closing arder book of £134 Om {2014 £81 7m}
provides a good underpinning to the coming year
Although the UK defence market remains tight,
the Cohort plc businesses have strang and relevant
capabilittes, established positions on some key
long term UK MOD programmes, and a goad
pipeline of new opportunities Expart prospects
continue to strengthen Qutside defence, MASS
1s making progress with 1ts cyber capability,
especially in the secunty market, and SEA, In
transport, has successfully completed all of the
testing required to enable 1t ta achieve UK Home
Office approval for its level crossing enforcement
systern A number of long-term orders were secured
during the year just ended, so we do not expect
to see a repeat of 2015’s sharp increase in order
book over the coming financial year

The management emphasis 1s now on driving
further growth both organically and by acquisition
supported by a continuing strong funding positon
The Board constders that Cohort plc's order baok
and near-term prospects provide a good base
for future progress

Nick Prest CBE
Chairman
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Our business and capabilites

Our four innovative, agile and
responsive businesses apply

advanced technology in defence,
security and related markets

. Capability Defence products Secure networks
4]
Y The design, supply The provision of
D Example g and support of such adwvice and system
o eguipment, and its imalementation to
g associated embedded protect against cyber
8 software as well as attack and other
the integration of threats for a range
commercial off the of chents in defence
shelf * equipment for and non defence
specialist applications
Subsidiary Operating division Revenue
Electronic warfare operahonal support  £10 3m
Secure information systems £222m . .
Acquired 9 luly 2014 £10 1m B
Complex systerms £3 8m
Regulat fi t d
egulatory, information an £6 8m
communicabhions systems
Training support £63m D—
Communications systems £17 5m .
Research £8 Om
Sensor and information systems
and products £70m .
+5 (acquired 1 October 2014) £7 9m D—l
w
@
-3
g SEA Is delivering torpedo  SCS provides the
= launch systems to the Communication and
Malaysian Navy for information System to
deployment an a fleet of the £U s counter-piracy
offshore patrol vessels cperation "Atalanta’
Lohort plc
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Application software

The design and supply
of speciahst software
systems including
SHEPHERD and
transport databases

Operational support

The provision of direct
support for information
and products in active
aperaticns including
electronic warfare
operational support
and offshore energy

Training

Supply of farmal
on-the job and
scenario-based training
services trainers
training matenials

and facites

Studies and analysis

Self contaned studies,
consultancy and
analytical work,
excluding scientiiic
research with a defined
output {report,

recaommendations etc )

Apphed research

Management and
executon of saientific
investigation work
aimed at specific
objectives

Strategic report

Specialist expertise

Provision of expert
indwiduals to be part
of a team managed
by the customer

O—
|

|
o
D_

[?l

MASS provides the
UK's electronic
warfare database
based on THURBON™

MCL prowides Tachcal
Nano UAV systems for
front line operations

SCS has renewed 1ts
contract to prowide
training and exercise
support to the UK s Joint
Forces Command

SCS provides expert
non-lethal weapons
technology advice to
DSTL through the
“Delivering Dismounted
Effect” programme

SEA I1s |eading research
inte the future Britsh
infantryman throughits
‘Delivering Dismounted
Effect” framewark for
the DSTL

SCS provides independent
technical analysis for ar
platforms entering UK
service, Including ISF
and Arr Seeker

Annual Report and Accounts 2015
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Our business model and strategy

Our mission is to combine the
innovation and responsiveness
of smaller, Independent businesses
with the benefits of a listed group

Our business model

Four autonomous, agile businesses combiming niche technology with
highly skilled and flexible people

s b“nglng Strateg’-c a
)

Focus on core
capabilities in defence

and security, underpinned

by long-term contracts
and strong pipeline
of opportunihes

AGILITY
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%/
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m
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Qur strategy

Organic growth

Consistently grow profits
and cash generanon
organically through

our four subsidiaries

Acquisitions

Increase the profitability
of the Group and access
new markets through
selective acquisitions

Higher margin
exports

Adding value through

Established position
in key UK defence
programmes

Flexible capabilities
to meet customer
needs

Maintain confidence

Ensure good corporate
governance and sound
nsk management and
communicate what we
are doing to investors

06
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Delivered through

¢ A focus on trusted delivery
to our customers

Encouraging innovation and
responsiveness with a low cost base

Identifying and pursuing growth
opportunihes

Developing high quality leadership
tearns and a high performance culture

What we did in 2014/15

Adjusted operating profit of the Group
before acquisitions grew 17% from
E£7 6m to EB 9m in 2015, a new high
for the Group

Net cash increased to £19 7m
even after spending over £17m
on new business acquisitions

Rolled out executive and leadership
development progress for Directors and
future leaders of the Group respectively

Strategic report

Qur prionities for 2015/16

Continued organic growth through
pursuing enhfied opportunibes in UK and
export defence and other market areas

Continue Executive Development
Programme for Cohort p!c and
subsidiary Directors

Continue Group-wide Leadership
Development Pragramrme, airmed
at the future leaders of the business

Invest in current and future market
growth opportunibes including cyber

Proactive engagement with businesses
that can add value tc the Group

Maintaiming a strong acquisition team

Demaonstrating a structure and culture
that 15 attractive to potenhal sellers

*

50% plus one share of MCL acquired
9 tuly 2014

100% of J+S acquired 1 October 2014

SEA's Space business disposal
successfully closed out and all expected
funds received Business successfully
separated from SEA’s site 1n Bristol

Cohort plc will look to make at least one
acquisihon in 2016

Wwe have funding capacity to make
acquisiions and continue to look
at both standalone and bolt-on
BCqUISIth Dpportunmes

As part of our strategy, Cohort plc will
put in place enlarged bank faciihes
to support growth and diversity

A framework of financial control, strategy
review, performance management and
teadership development

Clear and consistent commurucabion

An abibity to act fastif prokblems arise

.

Successton planning and traiming

Business continuity review and cyber
threat assessment across the Group

5CS successfully introduced a new IT
system at the end of the financial year

Edison appointed to provide further
investor relattons news flow

SCS's new IT system will be
regularly monitored

leff Pernn apposnted 1 July 2015
as a new Non-executive Director
and chair of the Audit Committee

SEA and J+5 reporting systems
to be fully integrated

We measure our progress using
key performance indicators, which
can be found on the following poge

Cohert plc O 7
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Key performance indicators

The indicators below have been

identified by the Directors as giving

the best overall indication of the

Group’s long-term success

Performance indicator

Change in revenue

Changes in total Group revenue compared to the
prior year

Why 15 1t measured?

Revenue growth gives a quantifed indication of the rate
at which the Group’s business achwity 1s expanding
aover ime

Change in adjusted operating profit

Change in Group operating profit before amortisation
of other intangible assets, marking forward exchange
contracts to market and exceptional items

The adjusted prefit trend provides an indication of
whether additional revenue 1s being gained without
profit margins being compromised and whether any
acquisibons are value enhanang

Order book visibility

Orders for next financial year expected to be delivered

as revenue, presented as a percentage of consensus
market revenue forecasts for the year

Order book wisibility, based upon expected revenue
during the year to come, provides a measure of
confidence in the hkelihood of achievement

of future forecasts

Change in adjusted earnings per share

Annual change in earnings per share, before amortisation

of other intangible assets, marking forward exchange
contracts to market and excephonal items, all net of tax

Change 1n adjusted earnings per share 1s an absolute
measure of the Board’s management of the Group’s
return to shareholders net of tax and interest

Operating cash conversion

Net cash generated from operations before tax
as compared to the profit before tax

Operating cash conversion measures the ability of the
Group to convert profit into cash

0 8 Cohort plc
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2015

40%

2014

1%

Strategic report

Comment

Increase in revenue in 2015 due to acquisitions of
MCL and J+S as well as 23% increase in underlying
business, the latter increase due to export EWOS,
delivery of ECS and training

23%

11%

Increase in 2015 due to improved profitability at
MASS, SCS and SEA as well as the positive impact
of the acquisihons of MCL and J+5

65%

cover on forecast 2016
revenue of £111m

at 30 April 2015

58%

cover on forecast 2015
revenue of £71 Om

at 30 Apnl 2014

The cover has increased on last year with strong order
cover at MASS and SEA SCS cover s similar to last
year MCL revenue cover s low as seen historically

for the business

7% 7% Continuing growth in 2015 reflects improved
profitability partly offset by higher tax charge
on adjusted earnings, as well as excluding the
non-cantrolling {minority) interest of MCL

350% 54% The very strong operating cash flow reflects good receipt

performance at the year end and shippage of supplier
payments (due to invoices not receved) into the first
quarter of 2015/16 The operating cash conversion in
2015/16 will be much weaker than 2014/15

Read how risk idenkficatian, analysis
and management allow us to delver
our strategic objectives from page 22

Cohort plc O 9
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Business review
Andrew Thomus, Chief Executive
Simon Walther, Finance Director

In summary

* Cohort plc has continued 1ts
progress, delivering a record level
of adjusted operating profit

« Underlying businesses, excluding
acguisihons, ncreased revenue
and adjusted operating proht
by 22% and 17% respechvely

* MASS achieved record profit

* SEA’s operating performance
continues to improve

* J+5 successfully integrated by SEA
* SCS delivered significantly
improved profit
* Maiden contribution from MCL
of £1 3m

« Order book at 30 April 2015
underpins over £71m of
2015/16 revenue

« Strong net funds provide capacity
to carry out our strategy

See the 18C of this
report for a five year
perfarmance summary

il

This has been another
year of continued
progress for Cohort plc,
and also saw the Group
make Its first acquisitions
In five years.

Operatng review

2014/15 has been another year of continued progress for Cohort plc and also saw the Group make its
first acquisiions in five years MCL was acquired in July 2014 and J+5 in Octaber 2014, bath making

pasibve contributions to the Greup's adjusted operating profit This progress has resulted in the
delivery of a record level of revenue and adjusted operabng prafit and a closing order book of

£134 Om strongly underpinning the corming financial year

The Group's adjusted operating profit of £10 1m (2014 £8 2m) on revenue of £99 9m (2014 £71 6m)

was a netreturn of 10 1% {2014 11 4%}

Adjusted operating profit by subsidiary

Adjusted aperating profit Operabng margin
2015 2014 Changa 2015 2014
im €m % * %
MASS 55 50 10 169 181
MCL 13 — nfa 131 nfa
SCs 13 10 30 78 69
SEA 40 38 S 98 131
Central costs (z0) (18} 25 —_ —
101 82 23 101 114

10 i
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As a result of the acquisihons made 1in 2014/15 and the disposal of SEA’s Space business at the end
of 2013/14, a “like for like” comparison of the underlying Group performance excluding these items

15 as follows
2015 2014
Adjusted Adjusted
operating operating
Revenue prafit Revenue profit
£m £m £m £m
As reported in the Group's iIncome statement 959 101 716 82
Exclude
SEA's Space business sold on 30 Apni 2014 - - [45) 06)
Impact of MCL acquired on 9 July 2014 {101) {13) — —
Impact of J+$ acquired on 1 October 2014 {79) {0 1) — —
Merger costs of SEA and 1+5 - 02 - -
As reperted on “hke for ke’ basis 819 89 671 76
The underlying changes on a like for ike basis
are as follows
MASS 325 55 276 50
5Cs 169 13 149 10
SEA {excluding J+5 and Space business) 325 41 246 32
Central costs — 20 - {186)
819 89 671 76

The analysis shows that the Group achieved
organic revenue and adjusted operating profit
growth of 22% and 17% respechvely

MASS was again the strongest contributor to the
Group, growing its ad)usted operating profit by
10% on revenue, which increased by nearly 18%
MASS’s net margin of 16 9% 15 much nearer its
long-term expected operating margin, below last
year’s level, which benefited from a one off item
of high margin income

5CS continued s posifive progress, growing Its
revenue by 13% and its adjusted operating proht
by 30% The impraved net margin 1s a result of
operabonal efficiency at the higher revenue level

SEA s underlying business [excluding the effects
of Space and 1+5} produced an increase of around
30% m both revenue and adjusted operating
profit This was a result of strong perfarmance in
its defence business, with increased submarine
activity more than offsetting a slightly weaker
transport performance

The increase in central costs reflects the growth
of the Group over the past year Looking forward
we expect to see a further increase, albert less
marked, to prepare the Groug for the next few
years of delivering our strategy

Operating strategy

Cohart plc operates as a group of four medium-
sized businesses, aperating primarily in defence
and security markets, and with a strang emphasis
on technology, innovation and specialist
expertise

* MASS is a leading international provider in the
fields of electronic warfare (EW] and secure
communicabons, including cyber security Its
products include the THURBON™ EW database
and 1t provides EW aperational support services
to a number of customners in the UK and overseas

MASS has some unigue capabilities that have
enabled it to establish strong niche posinons in
these important areas of defence and secunity,
as well as gaining an increasing reputation as a
leading provider of secure networks to educational
and other non-defence markets MASS was
founded in 1983 and 1s led by Managing
Director Ashley Lane

MCEL 15 a supplier of advanced electronic warfare
and surveillance technologies to defence and
security customers, mostly in the UK It sources
technologies from a global suppler network as
well as developing and supplying its own solutons
MCL has a reputation for being flexible and agile
In creating effective, mission deployable solutions
for customers in the most challenging time frames
MCL was founded in 1980 and 1s led by its
Managing Director Darren Allery

SCS 1s a provider of Independent expert advisory
services to defence and relatad markets It serves
both government and private sector customers
in the UK and internationally Many of its people
have experience (n the armed forces covering a
wide range of technical specialisations, enabling
the business to provide rapid expert support in
areas including informabon systems, training,
airworthiness, delivery and management of
complex systems and support to operabicns in
high threat areas SCS was founded in 1992
and was led by Managing Cirector Bill Bird
from 2010 unti} his retirement this june SCS's
new Managing Director, Christian Cullinane,
joined the business on 11 June 2015

SEA specialises in providing systems engineering
and specialist design seluhons to government and
industry !ts submarnine External Communicabons
System 1s being provided for all of the Royal Navy's
Astute class submarines, and will ulnmately be
fitted to all of the RN's submarines

Strategic report

Revenue share

Defence & Security revenue (£Em]}

£89.4m

+54%

894

610
594
578
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-
w

231 2012 2013 2014 201%

Transport revenue (Em)

£3.9m

-20%

43
49
39

L]
~
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~

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Other commeraial revenue (£m)

£f4.6m

+7%

38
a0
45
46

-
~

011 2012 013 2014 2015

Revenue share 2015

Defence & Security 89%%
Transport 4%
Cther commercial 5%

Offshore energy 2%
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Business review continued

Operating review continued

Operating strategy continued
It provides a range of simulation-based training
solutions and middleware to provide realistic
training for complex environments SEA also
provides software and systems for the transport
market On 1 Octeber 2014 SEA acquired 100%
of J+5 Ltd, a supplier of systems and in-service
support for the defence and offshore energy
markets in the UK and overseas its products
include sonar systems, torpedo launchers
and a range of other naval equipment which is
complementary to SEA's defence technology
capabiibies 1+S has been integrated into SEA
in the year ended 30 Apnl 2015 and the combined
business provides a wider and deeper offering
to its customers, especially in naval equipment
and suppart services SEA was founded in 1988
and 1s led by Managing Director Steve Hill

Cohort plc’s management approach 1s to allow

1ts subsidiary bustnesses a significant degree

of operaticnal autonomy In order to develop their
potental fully, while providing ight-touch but
rigorcus financial and strategic controls at Group
level Our experience 15 that our customers prefer
to work with businesses where decision making 1s
streamlined and focused on solving their immed ate
problems This model provides us with a degree
of competitive advantage over some larger rivals
where the decision-making process can be more
extended It 15 also cost effective as it avaids the
need for additional layers of management involved
i coordination actvnies and for a large headquarters
team And it 15 attractive to high cahbre employees
who find it more rewarding to be invalved in
decisions affecting the business, even at a relatively
Junior level rather than being constrained to a
narrow or purely technical rele This pasitions us
well to supply systems and serwices to cur customers
where these attributes are highly valued

Within our markets we have sought to use our agility
and innovation to identfy niches where future
prospects are attractive and where we have some
sustainable competitive advantage These can

be for products, services or high value one-off
projects to design bespoke equipment or software

Examples include MASS's electrontc warfare
operational support offerings, SC5's training
support work for the Joint Forces Command,
SEA’s External Communication System (ECS)
for submarines and MCLUs farmily of Nano UAVs
We have also been active in finding new customers
for the capabilihes we have developed, both in
export markets and for non-defence purposes
During the recent year we have widened the
customer base for our cyber security offering,
as well as progressing the development of the
Red Light Roadflow product, which has now
passed all of its accreditahon requirements and
awaits final UK Home Office sign-off We hope
to see deliveries of this preduct in the coming
year for apphcation in rail crossing safety

Being part of the Cohort plc Group brings significant
advantages to our businesses compared with
operating iIndependently The Group s streng
balance sheet gives customers the confidence

to award large or long term contracts that we are
technically well able to execute but which would
otherwise be perceived as risky Examples include
MASS’s £50m In-service support contract awarded
tn 2010, and nearly £55m of contracts awarded
to SEA so far for ECS The Groun s Directors have
long experience of operating in the defence sector
and have contacts and working relationships with
senior customers In the UK and internationally
which 1t would be hard for independent smaller
businesses to establish Our four operating
businessas, while remaining operationally
independent, have close working relationships
and are able to henefit from each other’s
techrical capabilities, customer relztionships

and market knowtedge

These strategies have allowed us to grow our profit
organically at a time when UK defence expenditure,
our largest source of revenue, has been tightly
constrained They have also generated long-term
customer relationships and good opportunities
that give us confidence that we can conhinue to
prosper despite the difficult and unpredictable
market condibans

Acquisitions

Alongside our organic growth strategy we continue
to see opportunihes to accelerate our growth by
making targeted acquisitions We beheve that there
are good businesses in the UK and overseas that
would thrive under Cohort plc ownership, whether
as standalone members of the Group or as
“bolt-on” acqguisitions to our existing subsidiaries

The most Iikely candidates for bolt-on acquisiions
are businesses with capabilities and/or custamer
relationships that are closely linked to one of our
exisiing subsidianies We would expect to integrate
an acquired business of this nature fully within the
relevant subsidiary This could lead to bath cost
savings and benefits from shared access to markets
and technologies The recent acquisihon by SEA
of 1+5 this year 1s a very good example of this

145 has been integrated fully into SEA, a process
that took around six months frem acquisiban

J+5 increased SEA's depth of offening, especially
In products and In-service support to its naval
customers J+5 has strong relanonships in the

UK but has also brought new markets to the
Group 10 Southeast Asia, Europe and South

and North America

Although the rationale for the acquisibon was
very much capability and market enhancement,
the integrahon 1s expected to yield around £0 5m
of annual cost savings in the coming financial vear

For standalone acquisihons we are locking for
agile, innavative businesses that have reached a
stage of development where there will be mutual
benefit in joining Cohort plc It 15 likely that
candidates will be operating in the defence and
security markets either in the UK or
internationally as that 1s where the Group can
add most value Growth prospects, sustainable
competitive advantage and the ability to operate
as part of a publicly quoted UK group will all be
impartant The acquisibon of just over 50% of MCL
i the year meets these cntena

MCL provides niche communicatons andg
surveillance technology, both sourced from
global suppliers and developed and integrated by
its own in-house engineers It also provides training
and support services Its customers are in the
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defence and secunty markets, pnmarily in the UK
MCL brings to the Group a different offering

and one which 15 very much seen as the future
of procurement of such products and solutions
by the UK MOD and wider defence and secunty
customers In these technology areas, the abibty
to rapidly utilise existing technology to create
solutions for pressing operational requirements
1s a key factor for success

The nature of MCL's offering and market make

1t a fast moving business with the time between
opporturity and delivery often being very short MCL
1s looking to expand its offering into new areas and
increase its level of long term supply and support
contracts Joining Cohort plc has enhanced its
market and financial strength, gmng strong support
to this strategy while retaining its agile and flexible
approach, a key selling point for its customers

Caohort plc has acquired just over 50% of MCL, with
the balance remaining tn the hands of its
management An agreement between the parties
allows for a second-stage transachon whereby
Cohort pic will acquire the remaining equity for a
price based on MCL's performance over a
two-year period This structure allows Cohort ple
and the sellers to share the benefts of the
acquisibon while minimising risks on both sides

Dwvisional review

MASS
2015 2014
£m £m
Revenue 325 276
Adjusted operating profit 55 50
Operating cash flow 82 07)

MASS had another successful year under
Ashley Lane's leadership increasing its adjusted
operating proht by 10% and revenue by 18%
compared to 2013/14

A significant contributor to the increase in MASS's
revenue was export EW operational support {EWOS),
with extensions to 1ts extshing services in the
Middle East taking its current workload through
to the end of the 2016 calendar year

£ducanon deliveries were flat during the year but
MASS has continued to invest in its wider cyber
offering for new commercial and government
customers, the latter providing the first significant
order wins and deliveries towards the end of the
financial year

The mix of work, and the investment in cyber
capability resulted in MASS’s net margin being
lower than tast year At 16 9% {2014 18 1%)

this 1s nearer to our long term expectation for
MASS, with a portfolio of wark including long-term
managed service offerings, higher margin but
unpredictable export business and mare predictable
but lower margin secure network and cyber
activity in education, cornmercial, secunty

and defence markets

MASS's support contract for the NATO Joint EW
Core Staff, secured during 2013/14, was extended
for a further year dunng 2014/15 Aswell as being
a valuable growing work stream in its own right,
this provides MASS with further opportunmities
to access NATO customers with its EWOS and
THURBON™ aofferings

MASS delivered a strong operating cash flow in
the yeas, unwinding all of the farge build-up of
working capital in the final quarter of 2013/14
and maintaining this position throughout 2014715

MASS rearganised itself further at the end of

the year and enters 2015/16 with four divisions
The EWOS division focuses an all of sts export EW
capability and THURBON™, including SHEPHERD
{the provision of a systern embodying THURBON™
to the UK MDD} as well as its EW managed service
offerings in the UK The Cyber Security division
includes MASS's offenings of solutons and training
to government security custemers The Secure
Networks division includes MASS’s secure network
design, delivery and support, including Information
Assurance Services to commeraial, defence and
educanonal custamers The Strategic Systems
drvision covers certain managed service and
niche technical offerings to the UK MOD

MASS enters the current year with a strong order
bock and pipeltne of opportunities, including
exports, though the latter are always unpredictable
In terms of bming

Strategic report

Group revenue by market

Total revenue by market (Em)’

£99.9m

+40%
o ¢ w o
a N e ~
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14 15 14 15 14 15 14 15
Defence Transport Cther Oftshore
& Securtty commercial energy
Total revenue by business (€m)
40.4

31s

176 291
149 169
101
nfa*
14 15 pE] 15 14 15 14 15
MASS ML sC8 SEA

1 Space (£4 4min 2014) sold 30 Aprd 2014 No revenue in 2015

2 Acgusred 9 July 2014

Key
Defence & Secunty Other commeraal
Transport Offshore energy

Space’

See a breakdown of
Defence & Secunty revenue
on puge 16
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Business review continued

Operating review continued
Diwvisional review continued

MCL
2015 2014
£m £m
Revenue 101 —
Adjusted operating profit 13 —
Operating cash flow {21) -

MCL's inittal contnbution to the Group was close
to our expeciation for the year, delivering a net
margin of 13 1% on £10 1m of revenue

MCL s performance was driven by delivery of
electronic surveillance systems to the UK Royal
Navy, tactical sateilite communication upgrades
for Brstsh Army vehicles returring from Afghamistan
and a numnber of other EW and communication
delwvenes for UK forces

Typifying 1ts agibity and flexibility during the

year MCL designed, built and tested a one-off
electronic system for a defence customer in under
six manths, a requirement driven by a demanding
fime-sensthive mission that was successfully
accomplhshed This considerable achievement
resulted 1n an impressed and happy cusiomer,
and a strong possibility of further orders

MCL s currently a business with a short arder

to delivery tmescale, resulting in a relatively low
current order backlog at any me It ended the
year with just under £3m of 2015/16 on contract
Historical expenence and a strong pipeline of
opportunihes suggest it will once again win and
dehver much of its revenue in the course of the
fnancial year ahead MCLs prpeline includes
prospects for securing longer-term, larger arders
whech If wan would help to build a higher and
more predictable base load of work

The adverse operating cash flow was as expected
The business contained over £3m of cash when
acquired which was required to meet its immediate
operating obligabons

| welcome MCL's Managing Director, Darren Allery,
and his capable and enthusiashc team to the
Cohort ple Group

5CS
2015 2014
£m Em
Revenue 169 149
Adjusted operating profit 13 10
Operating cash flow 25 16

SCS, under the leadership of Bill Bird, has seen a
13% increase in revenue and a 30% improvement
n profit SCS’s net return on revenue has increased
from 6 9%to 7 8%

The impravement reflects a continued focus on
growing areas of the UK MCD budget, in particular
air domain hazard analysis and technical assurance,
which have grown as new mibtary air platforms
have been introduced into UK service SCS has
also grown both 1ts NATO work and other export
offerings A further posive sign for SCS was the
improvement 1n its high level training offering to
the UK's loint Warfare Centre (JWC), a service 5C5
has provided for over ten years now and which
was extended for a further year untl March 2016
following exercise of an option by the customer
The increased activity was a result of the UK's
return to normal patterns of deployment and
training followng the exit from Afghanistan tast
Christmas SCS conttnues to provide the JWC
customer with a comprehensive and responsive
service 5CS also continued to secure further
overseas work for this unique offering

SCS's net return at nearly 8% ts an improvement
Continued revenue growth can drive the margin
closer to our target of 10% through operatonal
geaning SCS delivered a strong aperating cash
performance, reducing its working capital to a
record low level at 30 April 2015

I would like to place on recard my thanks to
Bill Bird for all of tws efforts since 2010 He has
steered 5CS through a difficult time, both in 1ts
main UK MOD market and overcoming certain
internal 1ssues, resulting (n a bustness which s
more profitable cash generative and growing

| welcome his successer, Christian Cullinane,
who took aver from Bill in June 2015

SEA
2015 2014
£m £Em
Revenue 40 4 291
Ad)usted operating profit 40 38
Operating cash flow 84 19

SEA, led by Managing Director Steve Hill,

has had a busy and successful year with proft
increasing by 5% on nearly 40% higher revenue
This performance, as at the Group level, 1s due to
the tmpact of structural changes at SEA, disposal
of its Space business on 30 April 2014, and the
acguisition on 1 Octaber 2014 of J+S and its
subsequent integration

14 Cohort ple
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The SEA result on a "like for like” basis s as follows

Strategic report

2015 2014

Adjusted Adjusted

operatng operating

Revenue proht Revenue profit

£m £m £m £m

As reported In the Group’s Income statement 404 40 291 38
Exclude

SEA’s Space business sold on 30 April 2014 — — (4 5] [06)

Impact of I1+S acquired on 1 October 2014 {79) {01) - -

Merger costs of SEA and J+5 - 02 - —

As reported on “like for like basis 325 41 246 32

The continuing business of SEA grew 1ts revenue
by 32% and its adjusted operating prefit by 28%

The increase n revenue was due primanly to the
securing of an inimal Common ECS contract This
extends the ECS system to cover two additional
Astute class boats {five were already under
contract), the four Vanguard class boats and
certain of the Trafalgar class vessels

This increased revenue offsets a deterioration in
the Transport revenue where an export contract
delivered last year was not repeated in 2014/15

In net margin terms, the effect of these changes
was a small reduchion [on a “like for ke basis)
from 120% to 12 6%

SEA continued to make very good progress on its
External Communications System (ECS) for the
Astute class of submarines, with the first boat
with SEA’s ECS system installed hawving gone to sea

5EA’s defence research revenue was shghtly

up on last year The husiness has cantinued to
deliver a major research programme on soldiar
equipment known as Delivering Dismounted
Effect {DDE) to 1ts customey, the Defence Science
and Techncal Laboratory {DSTL} SEA1s now
regarded as a national lead provider in this area

In the transport market, SEA maintained
deliveries of Roadflow units to UK customers
SEA made good technical progress on its red
hght enforcement system, which1s derived from
Roadflow, obtaining the necessary technical
clearance for the system We now await formal
sign-off by the UK Home Office to enable the
system 1o be fully deployed, with its output
admissible as ewdence in future prosecutons

SEA had a very strong operabng cash flow in the
year with good receipt management in the final
quarter and slower than expected invoicing from
its suppliers This suppher invoiang and payments
caught up in the first few months of 2015/16

Having disposed of its Space business last year,

SEA recerved the due complehon monies in full

£2 Smin June 2014 and the remaiming £1 5mn
April 2015

The acquired business of 145 contributed £0 1m
of adjusted operating profit on £7 9m of revenue
This was below our expectahions for the period and
was as a result of delayed orders for naval support
and its leading low profile array sonar These orders
have now been secured and delivery has commaenced
We expect 145 to deliver a return in 2015/16 in line
with our expectations at the bme of the acquismon

The offshore energy business was acquired just
at the end of Its peak actmty pericd, the summer
Nevertheless, and despite the depressed ail
price, it has performed well, including securmg
its largest ever contract for a subsea distnbunon
unit from Apache far over £1m

SEA’s closing order book of £68 Om prowides a strong
underpinming to 2015/16 revenue, especially in s
submarine and other naval system work

The integration of 1+5 and SEA has progressed
well and was mostly complete at 30 Apnil 2015
SEA incurred £0 2m of integraticn costs in the

year ended 30 April 2015 and this 1s expected

to realise annual savings of araund £0 5m per

annum from 1 May 2015

Following the integration, SEA's business has been
restructured into four market-facing dvsians spread
across its four operating facilittes compnsing

« Mariime Division, including design,
development, praducticn and support of its
naval communication systems, sonar, torpedo
launch and other naval systems

Research and Technical Support Division,
including its capabilities in the land and
research markets of defence

Cohort ple
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Business review continued

Operating review continued

Dmwisional review continued

SEA continued

» Scftware Solutions and Products Division, including SEA’s transport work in the UK and averseas as well as other civil and non maribme products,
its traiming and simulation capabilines and other information systems

* Subsea Engineering Division, developing and delivering SEA's achivities in the offshare energy market, primarily oil and gas
These four business development and delivery divisions will be supported by a single production facility at ats Barnstaple site, the result of integrating

the former SEA and 1+5 produchon faciihes at Beckington, Bristol and Barnstaple into one

Revenue by market and business

MASS MCL 5CS SEA Group
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Em £m £m £m £m Em £Em £m im % £m %

Defence & Secunty 285 235 101 - 167 145 341 188 894 89 578 81
Transport - — - — - — 39 149 39 4 49 7
Offshore energy — - - - - - 20 - 20 2 - -
Other commercial 40 41 - - 02 04 04 — 46 5 45 6
Space — - - - - - - 44 et - 44 6

315 2786 101 — 169 149 404 291 999 100 716 100
The Defence & Security revenue s further broken down as follows

MASS MCL SCs SEA Group
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
£m Em £m £m £m £m £m £m £m *® £m %

Direct to UK MOD 115 07 84 - 87 73 97 80 383 38 260 s
Indirect te UK MOD
where the Group acts
as a sub-contractor
or partner 61 63 03 - 39 43 214 117 317 32 223 32
Tatal to UK MOD 176 170 87 - 126 116 311 197 700 70 483 68
Export and other 109 65 14 — 41 29 30 Q1 194 18 8% 13

285 235 101 - 167 145 341 198 894 89 578 81
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Strategic report

Revenue breakdown by capability

2015 2014
£m % £m %

Defence products Defence products the desigr, supply and support of such eguipment 348 35 156 22
and its associated embedded software, as well as the integration of
commercial “off the shelf” equipment for speciahist applications
primarily by SEA and MCL

Training Training this includes formal, on-the job and scenario-based training 106 11 81 11
services An example 1s 5C5's provision of exercise-based training for
the UK’s Joint Forces Command

Specialist expertise Specialist expertise the provision of expert individuals as part of a 104 10 121 17
customer’s taam Three of our businesses are active in this area, most
notably SCS and MASS with a smali level of activity at SEA

Application software Application software the design and supply of specialist software 101 10 105 15
systems such as MASS's work on Project SHEPHERD and SEA's work
for its transpart and defence customers

Operational support Operational support the provision of direct support to active 97 10 39 5
operatians which takes place at both MASS {including its electranic
warfare operational suppart activities), SCS and through SEA, both
in defence and offshore energy

Secure networks Secure networks the provision of advice and system implementation 91 9 87 12
to protect agatnst cyber attack and other threats Both MASS and SCS
provide these services for a range of clients

Studies and analysis Studies and analysis other self-contained studies, consultancy and 84 8 61 g
analyhical work such as 55 s hazard analysis work on the Jaint
Combat Arrcraft

Appled research Appled research the management and execution of scientihic 68 7 66 9
investigation work aimed at specific objectives, such as SEA's
leadership of the DDE research programme for MOD

999 100 716 100

Notable changes between 2014 and 2015 were

* A significant growth in defence products, both in absclute terms and as a proporbon of total revenue This was driven by the increased pace of work an
ECS with the scope extending to further platform types The rest of the increase was from MCL. delivering products and systems and 145 from its naval
product and support business

» Atwofold increase in operatonal support activity, primarily due to increased deliverres by MASS in EW operational support but also 1+5's operational
support te the offshore energy market

Cohaort plc 1 7
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Business review conhnued

Our peaple

At the year end the Group had 635 permanent
employees as well as a number of people an
fixed-term or task-specific contracts Many of
these are highly qualihed engineers, mathematcians
and scientists (the average salary across the
Group, excluding Directars, 1s £41 000) but cur
management and support people alse make
ymportant contnbuhons

We are not a business that focuses on high volume
products requining capital intensive machinery and
tooling Almost all of the work that we win and
execute across the Group is a result of the technical
excellence managenal skills and sheer hard work
of our people They are our most important source
of competitive advantage, innovation and agihity,
and they are wital to our future success Developing
our people and keeping them engaged are therefore
high priorities for the Group

One way in which we do this s Cohort plcs
Business Exceltence Awards, which are intended to
recognise outstanding contributions to business
success In the 2015 Anancial year the Gold Award
went to the team at SEA running the Delivering
Dismounted Effect research programme This
received some exceptionally positive customer
feedback and resulted in bath cammercial success
and some sigrficant technical achievements
Other award winners included a team supporting a
wvital defence systerm in Afghanistan, and another
involved in submarine equipment trials The awards
also gave an opportunity to celebrate some relatively
unsung but important achievements by the Group's
suppaort staff

Order intake and order book

A new initative in 2015 has been the introduchon
of a formal Lteadership Development Scheme,
intended to hone the skills of the next generation
of senior leaders It has been extended to high
potennal individuals across the whole Group,

and has been supported by the top management
of both the operating businesses and the
headquarters team As well as developing individual
skills and encouraging people to achieve their full
potental we see this as being @ way to encourage
the growth of infarmal networks across the Group,
improving our ability to share informaton and
work together more effectvely

Cohort plcs largest customers are the UK armed
forces, and the work we do helps them 1o carry
out their vital work more effecthwely This work

1s a significant motivating factor for our peaple,
many of whom are current reserwists or former
members of the armed forces themselves

Cohort plc1s proud to have been an early
signatory to the UK Armed Forces Corporate
Covenant and to have received in 2014 a Silver
Award under the Defence Employer Recogrition
Scheme Qur operahng business SCS went a step
better, being one of only five UK employers to
receive a Gold Award under the scheme, which
was presented at 10 Downing Street Our people
are frequently involved in fundraising for armed
forces chanines, activities which we are pleased to
suppart, In a modest way, corporately

All of the Group's capabilibes and customer
relabonships ulbmately derive from our peaple,
and such success as we have enjoyed (s ulimately
a resuft of their efforts We would like 1o take this
opportunity to express our thanks to all employees
of Cohort plc and its businesses

Operational outlook

The Increase in the Group's order Intake reflected
medium-term export defence orders at MASS,
arders at SEA ta extend its ECS system to the
whole of the Royal Navy's submarine fleet and
ininal order contributions from MCL and 145
[within SEA} The ctosing Group order book
includes acquired order books of £5 4m and
£32 6m from MCL and J+5 respechvely

MASS had a very strong vear of order intake The
increase over the previous year was predominantly
due to export and UK EW work (a total of £24m)
Further export opportunities for THURBON™

and electromc warfare cperational suppost and
training are in the pipeline but the bming of these
as with all export orders, 15 unpredictable Of MASS's
order bock at 30 April 2015, over £25m 15 deliverable
in 2015/16, a higher level of underpinning than
last year

MCL's order intake of £7 5m was mostly
delivered in the year ended 30 Apnil 2015 and
MCLs closing order book of £2 Bm is virtually

all delverable in 2015/16 MCL's visibihity of its
pipeline 1s short {typically three to six months)
and MCL’s busingss model with fow flexible
headecount {and hence cost) enable it to respond
rapidly to oppartunites and customer needs

Order intake Order boak
2015 2014 2015 2014
£m £m £m £m
MASS 396 179 534 46 4
MCL 75 — 28 -
SCS 167 174 98 100
SEA 505 332 68 0 253
1143 685 1340 817
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MCL's pipeline for 2015/16 is strong, although
the bming is unpredictable, and there are some
large oppartunstes which, if secured, would provide
MCLwith a more stable future revenue stream

SCS's order intake was slightly lower than last year
reflecting the securing last year of langer-term air
domain work SCS's closing order book of £G 8m
1s mostly deliverable in 2015/16 representing a
similar level of underpinning to 2014/15 The
visihihty of SCS’s pipeling, as in the past, remains
short (typically arcund six months) and so SCS
retamns a flexible resource moedel to enable it to
respond guickly to changes in market condibons
SCS’s pipeline of opportunibes includes extension
and expansion of its air domain offering through
independent technical evaluaton, both on the
loint Strike Fighter and other military air platforms

SEA’s (including J+5's) strong order intake of aver
£50m was significantly up on last year The order
intake included just over £9m of orders secured
by J+5 with the balance of orders (E41m) at SEA
Major orders included over £25m for submarine
systems, mostly Common ECS, with research
and simulation accounting for around £14m

SEA’s Roadflow product saw further orders of £1 5m
this year compared with £2 1mn 2013/14 The
reduchion was due to an export order in 2013/14
that was not repeated this year The orders for
UK Roadflow systems confinue to show growth

SEA’s closing arder book of £68m will delver over
£34m of revenue in 2015/16, a record tevel of
underpinning for SEA

In the near-term, the majonty of Cchort plc's
business will continue ta derive, either directly
or indirectly, from the UK MOD The MOD's
fatest Defence Equipment Plan continues to show
a stable procurement programme, with the largest
expenditure area by a considerable margin being
submarines Overall, despite the pressure on
public spending, defence 15 2n area of significant
accessible expenditure where sources of growth
can be found We await to see the impact, if any
of the Government's Strategic Defence Review,
which 1s due to be publshed this autumn

We also remain active in exports, where we

have seen growth in 2014/15 Our focus has
been on markets with growing demands for
defence equipment and resources to match

Our non defence activities reduced in 2014/15
as a result of the sale of SEA's Space business

but we remain acbve in the educabon, ICT, cyber
security and transport markets as well as now
having a small presence (2% of Group revenue) in
the offshore energy market This market background,
together with the pipeline of apportunihies and
our order book for the coming year give us
confidence that we will continue to make
progress in 2015/16

Funding resource and policy

The Group retains a rebust financial posihion
and continues to be cash generative enabling it
te continue to 1nvest In Internal R&D and other
value-adding projects on a carefully considered
basis as well as maintaining its progressive
dividend policy

The Group's cash pesiion provides it with the
resources to conduct its acquisihon strategy and
the disposal of SEA's Space business has prowided
a further £4 Om of cash in the year

At 30 April 2015 the Group had facilities with its
banking provider, RBS, as follows

Term at
commencement
£m of facility
Cverdraft
facility for
working capital
requirements 75 364 days

During the year ended 30 April 2015 the above
facility was drawn an by the Group for a pericd
of one week

The overdraft facility 1s renewable 1 Qctober 2015
and the Board expects 1t to be renewed on broadly
similar terms, subject to ts discussions to enter
into a new mulb-bank facility The Group1sn
discussion with RBS, Barclays and Lloyds to put

in place a committed facility of three to five years,

Strategic report

expected to be around £25m, to support the
Group's day-to-day operational needs and provide
a facility to support the Group's strategy of further
acquisibons The Group has not received a
written commitment from the banks regarding
the facility but has received no indication that
such a facility will not be provided

The Group takes a prudent approach to treasury
policy with its overriding objective being protection
of capital Inmplementing this policy, deposits
are held with insttutions with credit ratings of
at least Baa2 RBS's ownership structure with a
ma)arity shareholding by the UK Government
gives the Board confidence of the creditworthiness
of the bank Deposits are generally held on short
{less than three months) duration to maturity on
commencement This matches the Group’s cash
resources with its internal 13-week cash forecasts,
retaining flexibility whilst trying to ensure

an acceptable return onits cash Most of the
Group's cash {that 1s not on short-term deposit)

1s managed through a set-off arrangement,
enabling the most efficient use of the Group's
cash from day to day, under the supervision

of the Group’s finance function

MCL's cash balances are held with Barclays and
are currently outside this offset arrangement

Following the acquisition of J+S, the Group
has inherited a banking arrangement with
Clydesdale Bank which will be retained for a
short while ta receive any future receipts unnl
payment arrangements with customers are
transferred to our RBS accounts

The Group regularly reviews the ratings of the
insbitutions with which it holds cash and always
considers this when placing a new deposit

The Group's return on net funds during the period
was 0 20% to 1 35% (2014 D 46% to 1 40%)
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Business review continued

Funding resource and policy continued
In addihon to Its cash resources, the Group has
in1ssue 41 Om ardinary shares of 10 pence each
Of these shares 0 5m are awned by the Cohort pic
Emptoyee Benefit Trust (EBT) and which waives
its rights to dridends In addition the Group has
1ssued ophons over ordinary shares through key
employee share option and SAYE schemes to the
level of 2 2m at 30 April 2015

The Group marntains a progressive dividend
policy with dividends having increased by
approxsmately 20% per annum over the last
five years and dwidend cover in the current
year at 4 4 times {2014 4 6 bmes} based
upon the adjusted earmngs per share

The Group's cash generaton in 2014/15 was
much stronger than previous years In surnmary
the Group’s cash performance was as follows

2015 2014
£m £m
Adjusted operating profit 101 82
Depreciabon and other non-cash
operating movements 12 08
Working capital movement 93 (S 4)
206 36
Acquisition of 50 001% of MCL 57) —_
Acqgusition of 100% of J+5 {11 7) —

Disposal of SEA's Space business 40 25

Tax drndends, capital expenditure,

interest, oans and investments (38 1{62)

Increasef{decrease) in net funds 34 [01)

The primary reascn for the stronger cash flow
was lower working capital at MASS, SCS and SEA
This strong operating cash flow reflected good
cash receipt management across the Group and
slippage of supplier invoices (primarily at SEA}
Into 2015/16 and this timing advantage will unwind
In 2015/16, much of it in the first quarter We expect
the closing cash at the end of Apnl 2016 to remain
in line with previous expectations This implies a
small net cash outfiow in the coming year before
any further acquisiton achiwity

The lower cash outflow in tax, dividends, etc
was mainly due to lower capital expenditure
{SEA acquired the freehold of its Bristol office
in 2013/14} and no investment in Cohort plc’s
own shares by the EBT The use of EBT shares to
sanisfy employee share ophians during 2014/15
may require further shares to be purchased by
the EBT inthe coming year

The Group's customer base of governments, major
prime contractors and international agencies make
its debtor nsk low The year-end debtor days in
sales were 24 days (2014 43 days) This calculation
15 based upon dividing the revenue by month,
working backwards from April into the trade
debtors balance (excluding unbilled income and
wark in progress) at the year end This s a more
appropriate measure than caleulabng based upon
the annual revenue as it takes into account the
heavy weighting of the Group's revenue in the
last quarter of each year The decrease in debtor
days 15 a reflection of the strong cash collection
in the final quarter across the Group, especially
at MASS and SEA

Tax

The Group's tax charge for the year ended

30 April 2015 of £707,000 (2014 £843,000) was
at an effective rate of 11 9% {2014 12 5%) of profit
before tax This includes a current year corporation
tax charge of £1,485,000 {2014 £1,222,000),

a rate of 250% (2014 18 1%) of profit befare tax,
a pnor year corparahon tax credit of £204,000
{2014 credit of £482,000) and a deferred tax
credit of £574,000 (2014 charge of £103,000)

Including the current year deferred tax, the effective
current tax rate for the year ended 30 April 2015 s
16 3% (2014 19 6%) The current tax rate (including
deferred tax) on profit before tax s lower than the
standard rate {calculated at 20 92%, 2014 22 83%),
primanly due to recognition of Research &
Development {R&D) credits

The Group’s overall tax rate was below the standard
corporation tax rate of 20 92% {2014 22 B3%)
The reduction s due to the reasons given above for
the current year’s rate and, in addibon, prior year
tax credit in respect of the release of provisians
held in respect of prevtous R&D credit claims
The Group's businesses are only allowed to claim
the lower RED tax eredit allowance avatlable to
larger companies, currently 30% Looking forward,
the Group's effective current tax rate for both
2015/16 and 2016/17 1s estimated at 18%, taking
account of the reducthion in headline tax rates
and assurming the R&D tax credit regime remains
unchanged from its current level and scope The
Group maintains a cautious approach to previous
R&D tax credit claims for tax periods that are snll
open, currently 2013/14 and 2014715 and it 1s this
cautious approach which explains why the future
tax rate of 18% i1s higher than this year's net rate
of just under 12% Much of the lower rate inthis
vear 15 due to higher actual R&D credits being
recognised than were forecast, and the release
of the earlier year contingency

Exceptional items

The exceptional costs i the year were primarily
in respect of the acquisitons of MCL and J+5,

£0 2m and £0 4m respectively During the year
the Group's subsidiary SEA received in full the
remaining outstanding balance (£4 Om) due on
the disposal of its Space business from the buyer,
TAS In closing out this disposal, accruals for expected
costs made in the year ended 30 April 2014 were
not incurred, realising a reduction in the overall
loss on disposal {an exceptional proht in the year
ending 30 April 2015 of £44 000)

Cohort plc
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Adjusted earmings per share

Strategic report

The adjusted earnings per share of 20 45 pence (2014 19 15 pence) are reported In addibon to the basic earnings per share and exclude the effect
of amortisation of intangible assets, exchange movement an marking forward exchange contracts to market and exceptional items, all net of tax

The adjustments to the basic earnings per share in respect of the exchange movements and other intangible asset amornsation of MCL only reflect that

propartion of the adjustment that 1s apphicable to the equity holders of the parent, analysed as follows

Adjustment

Adjustment to adjusted

to adjusted Apphtable earnings per

operating 1ax share {net

profit  adjustment of tax)

£ 000 £'000 £ 000

Exceptional items 580 (28) 552
Exchange adjustment in marking forward contracts to market 38 8 23 note 1

Amortisation of other intangible assets

148 1,378 {276) 1,102
MCL 2,224 {445) 850 note 1

4,220 {741) 2,567

Note 1 These adjustments are at 50% of the adjustment to adjusted operabing profit reflecting the share appropnate to the equity holdings of the parent

Financial estimates and judgements

In preparing the Annual Report and Accounts of
Cohort plc for 2015, a number of financial eshmates
and judgements have been made including

Revenue recognition

on fixed-price contracts

The judgement applied in recognising revenue on
a hxed-price contract 1s made by reference to the
cost incurred, including contingency far risk and
the demonstrable progress made an delivering
key stages [often referred to as milestones) of the
contract The Group uses best estimates in applying
this judgement and where uncertainty of progress
on a stage exists, revenue Js not recognised for
that stage

Cost contingency

an fixed-price contracts

In addition to the judgement zpplied ta revenue
recognition, the cost of delivering a contract te a
particular stage represents the actual costs incurred
and committed plus an estimate of cost contingency
for nsk still present in the contract at that stage
This cost contingency takes account of the stage
that the contract has rea¢hed and any judgement
and uncertainty remaining to deliver the
remainder of the contract It s usual for these
cost contingencies to reduce as the contract
progresses and risk and uncertainty reduces

Goodwill and other intangtble assets
The Group has recognised goodwill and other
intangible assets in respect of the acquisihon

of MASS {including Abacus EW Consultancy Ltd),
MCL and SEA {including J+5) The other intangible
assets are in respect of contracts acquired,
intellectual property nights and specific opportunities
and in each case are amortised over the expected
Iife of the earnings associated with the other
intangible asset acquired The goodwill, which

15 not subject to amartisation but to annual
impairment testing, arises from the intangible
elements of the acquired businesses for which
either the value or life 1s not readily derived

This includes, but 1s not hmited to, reputation,
contacts and market synergies with existing
Group members

The goodwill relating to the acquisiions of MASS
{including Abacus EW) and SEA {including J+5) has
been tested for impairment as at 30 Apnl 2015
In both cases there was no impairment

The goodwiil of J+5 was tested for impairment
alongside SEA as their future cash flows are no
longer separable MCLs goodwill, since acquired
in the year, was not tested for impairment at

30 Apnil 2015

The Group performs significant research

and development work far third partes for
which tax credits are claimed Asthisis
performed for thurd parbes no intangible asset
1s recognised Where the Group performs its
own research and development an intangible
asset 15 only recognised where it meets the
critenia of 1AS 38 ‘Intangible Assets’

Provisions

The Group makes estimates of provisions for
existing commitments arising from past events
In estimabing these provisions, the Group makes
Judgements as to the quantity and likehhood of
the hability arising Certain provisions require
more judgement than others In particular
warranty provisions and contract loss provisions
have to take account of future ocutcomes ansing
from past deliveries of products and services

In estmating these provisions, the Group makes
use of management expertence, precedents
and specific contract and customer rssues

Accounting polictes

There were no significant changes in accounting
policies applying to the Group for the year ended
30 Aprd 2015

Addmonal finanaal reporting disclosure
As in the past, the Group makes reference to
addihonal financial reporting over and above
that required by IFRS, specifically

Adjusted operating profit

The adjusted operating profit 1s presented

ta reflect the trading profit of the Group and
excludes amortisation of other intangible assets
exchange differences on marking forward
exchange contracts to market and exceptional
items This enables the Group to present its
trading performance in a consistent manner year
on year The adjusted operating profit is stated
after charging the cost of share based payments
of £198,000 {2014 £235,000), which s allocated
to each business i proporbon to its employee
participation in the Group's share option schemes
The segmental analysis (see note 1) 1s disclosed
for each business after deducting the cost

of share based payments

The exchange adjustment on marking forward
exchange contracts to market at the year end
1s @ requirement of IFRS and has no economic
impact upon the Group s performance or assets

andllablht‘les“ W

Andrew Thomis
Chief Execu cer
Simon Wal

Finance Director
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Risk management

Risk identification, analysis and
management allow Cohort plc to deliver
its strategic objectives effectively.

Market risks

Risk area

MNature of nsk

Mingation and progress

Customers

The Greup's single most important customer remains the
UK MOD £38 3m of revenue came directly from this source
In 2015 {2014 £26 Om), 38% {2014 36%) of Group revenue
In additien £31 8m {2014 £22 3m) of Group revenue, 32%
(2014 31%) was sourced ultimately from the UK MCD

but received via other contracters With the Government
runming a significant budget deficit there 15 a risk that further
controls on defence expenditure could be introduced, which
could have an impact on the Group’s ability to win new work
or could result in termination of 1ts existing contracts Any
avent that affected the Group's reputation with the UK MOD
could put this revenue at risk

The increase in the preportion of its revenue o its ulbmate
primary customer in 2015 compared with 2014 reflects the
acquisitions of MCL and J+5, both of which have the UK MOD
as therr primary customer It also reflects the marked increase
in achwity on the Royal Navy s submarine programmes

£30 0m (2014 £17 9m), 30% (2014 25%) of Group revenue,
representing 43% (2014 37%) of revenue dernived from the
UK MOCD was inrelation to the Joint Cambat Aircraft, Astute
and other submanne programmes, and the nuclear deterrent
programmes, afl of which have been confirmed as high
priority areas following the Government's Strategic
Defence and Security Review

Operational risks

Risk area

Mature of risk

Mitigation and progress

Suppliers

Asis typical in the defence sector, the Group ts reliant on
certain key suppliers for specific elements of its technical
and product offerings This reliance 1s long term, with
product duration tn this sector often being tens of years

This nisk 1s managed through close haison with supplers,
good project management and having centingency plans
to go to alternative suppliers or bring work in-house

The long term life of many defence products requires a regular
rewiew of product life and capability and the Group supports
the customer in this respect through funded ongoing product
support and re-life tasks

Operations
{MASS and SEA)

The Group's operatonal risk 15 primarily manifested through
its four subsidiaries The subsidiary trading and business nisks
are similar In the cases of MASS and SEA

1 Bid nisk —the businesses bid on contracts where the scope
of work may not be well or fully defined by the customer

1 Fixed-price contracts — these are often of a long-term
nature {greater than 12 months} and typically nclude
delivery of hardware and software

Due ta the nature of their niche technical skills requirement,
both MASS and SEA have a fixed level of core software
and hardware engineering and technical expertise

This is typical in defence and 1s managed through bid/no
bid reviews at the appropriate level using experienced
persannel, ncluding the Cohort plc Executive and Board

These projects are managed by dedicated project
management teams, manthly reviews by the subsidiary
board and regular interaction with the customer and key
suppliers Revenue and cost are recognised taking account
of risk and estimated cost at completion {inctuding any
contractual contingency)

This cost base 1s carefully monitored at budget ime and
by rolling quarterly forecasts to identfy any potental risk
of low uttlisaton and thus under-recovery of cost

2 2 Cohort plc
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Operational risks continued

Strategic report

Risk area Nature of risk Mitigation and progress
Operations The primary cost nisk 1s in respect of staff ublisation The risk 1s mitigated, in the short term, by the use
(scs) SCS revenue wisibility 1s short wath typical contract duration of sub-contractor staff In the long term, s programme
of three te six months This carnies nisk to forward ublisation of skills assessment and training is I place to ensure
continued flexibility of the engineenng resource
The bustriess maintains a comprehensive prospects schedule This risk 1s managed by retaining a mimmal core staff,
This risk 1s also an opportunity, with 5CS often securing and
essentiaf for business support, development and delivering
delivering work in 2 very short ime frame key skilfs to customers The majority of deliverable service
SCS has a small number of fixed-price contracts 1s provided by non-core staff [associates) where cost 15 only
incurred when the associates are on task The forward
ubihisation of core staff 1s monitored on a weekly basis
leoking forward up to three months Utlisation levets
were maintained during the year
Operations Like SCS MCL's revenue wisibility 1s short at typically MCLUs staff levels are low (2015 29) and the people
{mct) three to six months This carries risk to staff ubhsanon employed are flexible and possess multiple skills enabling
and predictability of revenue and profit them to take on design, integraton and support tasks
across the full range of MCL's product offering MCL,
in joiming the Cohort ple Group, has a strategy to iImprove
its visibtltty by securing 'onger term contracts, ublising
the Group’s size and financial stability
The Group {through three of nts subsidiartes) operates The Group carefully manages the partnership with its
a number of off site managed service contracts These customer and supplier base in all thase cases to ensure
contracts are lang term in nature {typically five years at the customer receives value for money and skilled Group
commencement) and are managed through dedicated site staff providing a dedicated, flexible and responsive approach
project managers The contracts are fixed-price in terms of The primary risk to these managed service centracts 1s
revenye with opportunites for additional tasks enhancing termination, which 1s mitigated by the partnering approach
volume and return adopted by the Group and our close engagement with
the customer to ensure customer requirements remain
paramount at all imes
Partners The Group, especially in the defence sector, often secures The Group takes an achive part in these arrangements and,

business through teaming and partnering with other suppliers
and this is often a requirement of securing work with the

UK MOO in order to ensure the end customer receives

the best solutton

thraugh regular {usually monthly) project review meetings
and other correspondence, ensures that the team {including
our partners) delivers as a whole to the customer and

to the needs of the individual team members

In addition, the Group's Executive Management team
masntains regular and coordinated relationships with
partners and ensures the Group’s approach is consistent
and avoids unnecessary overlap or ormissions

Cohort plc 2 3
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Risk management continued

Strategic risks

Risk area

Nature of nisk

Mingation and progress

Acquisihons

The buying {and selling) of businessesis a risk in respect
of value distraction, integrahan and ongoing obligations
and undertakings

The Group’s acquisiion risk 1s mingated as far as practhicable
by the acquisition pracess being managed at the Cohart ple
Board level, making use of appropriate external expertise
and resources as and when required

Financial rnisks

Risk area

Nature of risk

Mitrgation and progress

Treasury

Cash and bank deposits are held as follows

Moody s

credit rating

2015 2014 of bank as at

£000 £'000  25June 2015

Rovyal Bank of Scotland Plc 16,850 10,256 A3

Barclays Bank plc 2,606 - A2

Lioyd’s TSB Bank pic - 5,063 Al

Santander UK ple - 1,003 A2

Clydesdale Bank 245 16 Baa2
19,701 16,338

The Group's facilines with RBS are renewed annually During
the year, the Group renewed I1ts working capital facility with
RBS for £7 5m This facility s available to all of the Group's
entines through an offset arrangement The current facility
expires in Qctober 2015 when it 1s expected to be renewed
on broadly similar terms

The Group takes a very prudent approach to the management
of its inancial instruments which are described i note 15
The Group’s cash 1s held with at least Baa? rated insttutions
and on deposits usually not exceeding three months This
ensures a very low nsk to capital and a reasanable balance
of hquidity against intarest earned on cash deposits

The Group regularly reviews the ratings and other relevant
factors in respect of the banks with which 11 depositsits
cash and on each and every occasion that a short-term
deposit is placed

The credit rating of the banks used has remained at Baa2
The ownership structure of RBS {majonity owned by the
UK Government} gives the Board confidence of its
creditworthiness as a bank

The Group has regutar (at feast quarterly) meetings with
115 bank to discuss operational and other business issues

Currency risk

The Group has contracts with overseas customers and
supphers requiring payment or receipt in currencres other
than £ sterling

The Group's exposure to credit risk at 30 April 2015 1n respect
of inancial derwvatives {forward fareign exchange contracts)
was £2 Om of payable only {2014 £4 Om of receivable)

The financial denivatives at 30 April 2015 were all held with
Barclays {30 April 2014 RBS) These are disclosed in detail
In note 18 to the financial statements

The Group manages its exposure to currency risk by using
farward foreign currency exchange contracts The level
of forward cover i1s determined contract by contract,
taking Into account the net currency exposure 1o receipts
and purchases Forward contracts are only put in place
when customer contracts are deemed highly probable
The Group does not enter Into speculative forward
exchange contracts The Group s primary exposure

15 to the USS through MCL, which purchases a number

of products in the United States

Revenue

The Group has risk in respect of
t milestone and acceptance failure on projects, and
11 unrecoverable trade debts

The recogmtion of revenue 15 discussed at length in

the Accounting Policies {page 69) and Critical Accounting
Judgements {page 71) and as such may from time to time
have a degree of risk

The 2015 bad debt charge was £3,000 (2014 £3,000) on
Group revenue of £99 9m (2014 £71 &ém)

Financial assets exposed to credit nsk at 30 Apnl

2015 2014

£m £m

Trade receivables 107 131
Other recevables B8 99
Cash and bank deposits 187 163

The Group takes a prudent approach to revenue and credit
risk, and any wark done at risk 1s minimal, authorised at the
appropriate level and rewiewed on 2 monthly basis

The Group uses project control processes and regularly
reviews project progress to ensure recogmibion of revenue
takes account of external milestones and custamer acceptance
as well as the internal costs incurred

The cahbre of the Group’s customers and the control processes
1n respect of revenue capture and mvoicing ensures minirnal
bad debts

The Group also uses letters of credit and other methods
of payment guarantee, including customer advances,
especially In respect of overseas customers, to ensure
any export debt nsk 1s mimimised

Significant debt recesvable in foreign currency 1s hedged
using forward exchange contracts which are entered into
when contracts are deemed effective

The risk to the major debtor of the Group, as a government
department, 1s cansidered very low

2 4 Cohort pic
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NickPrest CBE [ ]
Chairman

Term of office
Nick became Chairman of Cohart plc on flotation in
March 2006

Background and experience

After graduating from Oxford in 1974 Nick joined the

UK MOD In 1582 Nick moved to Alvis the defence
contractor undertaking a varisty of rales befare becoming
Chief Executtve in 1983 and Chairman and Chief Executive
In 1996 Nick left Alws following its acquisinon by BAE
Systems in 2004 by which time the company had become
a leading intermatonal business in military land systerns

Nick was also Chairman of Aveva Group plc from 2006
unbl 2012

External appointments

In addition to being Chairman of Cohort ple Nick 15 also
Chairman of Shephard Group a privately owned media
cornpany speaialising 1n defence and asrospace

Simon Walther [l
Finance Director and Company Secretary

Term of office
Simon jained Cohert gle as Finance Director in May
2006

Background and expenence

After graduating with a BSc in Toxicology and Pharmacology
from University College Londan, he went an to qualify as
a chartered accountant with Touche Ross in 1992 Simon
moved to the Perinsular and Criental Steam Navigation
Company (P&Q) in 1993 where he was appointed a Chief
Accountant for P20 European Fernes in 1995 He has
over 15 years industry relevant experience with previous
senior inance roles at Alvis ple and BAE Systems

Member of the Cohort ple Board

w] |

Member of Remuneration & Appointments
and Audit Committees

Stanley Carter [l O
Co-Chairman

Term of affice

Stanley has been with Cahort plc since 1ts formation inibally

as ts Chief Executive before hotding the office of Co-Chairman
from 2009 Stantey wall relinguish the role of Co-Chairman
at the Group s AGM (22 Septermber 2015} but will conbinue
on the Board as a Non-executive Director

Background and expenence

Stanley jaintly founded Cohort plc with Nick Prest in 2006
with SCS as the launch vede on flotaton Prior to that
he was Managing Ciractor of SCS which ha founded in
1992 on leaving the Regular Army During his military
service as a Roval Artillery officer be held a wide range of
posts in the MOD (ncluding the central staff, procurement
and at government research establishments as well as
representing the UK on NATO technical commuttees He
received an award for the invention of 2 missile launcher
from the UK MOD He has degrees in Technelogy and
Behawioural Science from Loughborough and the Open
University respectively and an MSc in information
Systemns from the Royal Military College of Scrence

Sir Robert Walmsley KCB, FREng [l O
Independant Non-executive Director

Term of office

Sir Robert joined the Boarg of Cohort ple on flotation in
March 2006 He will step down as Chairman of the Audit
Committee following the AGM on 22 September 2015
but will retain the Chair of the Remuneraton &
Appointments Ccmmittee

Background and expenence

Sir Robert served n the Royal Navy from leaving schoo!
untl his final appeintment as a Vice Admiral After retiring
from the Navy, he was appointed as Chief of Defence
Procurement occupying that position from 1996 untl
2003 He served on the Brihish Energy board from 2003
untl 2008 and untl! 2012 was a semor adwiser at Morgan
Stanley international and Chairman of the Major Projects
Assocanon From 2004 untl 2015 he served on the board
of the General Dynamies Corporanion in the United States

External appointments

Sir Robert is on the board of Ultra Electronic Holdings ple and
holds a number of other advisory roles in the defence and
energy sectors Since 2013 he has been the independent
Chairman of the Department for Work and Pensions’
Unrvarsal Credit programme and since 2014 has bheen a
{rown Representative wathin the Crown Commeraat Service

Christian Cullinane

Corporate governance

Andrew Thomis I
Chief Executive

Term of office
Andrew took over as Chief Executive of Cohort ple
1n May 2009

Background and experience

Andrew graduated with an M Eng degree in Electrnical and
Electronic Engineenng from Impenal College London in
1987 He spent ning years in soence technology and palicy
reles in the UK MCO He left in 1996 and, after a penod
working wath public and private sector chients at Capita plcs
managament consultancy arm, be joined Alvis picina
role covering strategy M&A and business development
Following the acquisition of Alwis by BAE Systems in 2004, he
worked with Nick Prest and Stanley Carter on the creation of
Cohort ple, aching as Finance Director during the flotaton
and subsequantly Carporate Development Director
From 2007 to 2009 he was Managing Directer of MASS

leffPernn [l O
Independent Non-executive Director

Term of office

Jeff will join the Board of Cohort plcan 1 July 2015
and wiil take over the role of Chairman of the Audit
Cammittee following the AGM on 22 September 2015

Background and expernience

A chartered certified accountant Jeff has held a number of
senior frnancial posiions including reles within Unilever
Onflame, and the defence businesses of GEC and Radstane
Technology Flc In the latter company he was also Chief
Executive far four years untl his departure a year after
its acquisihion by the General Electric Company in 2006

External appointments

Jeff 15 also Chairman of the private equity backed defence
company Chess Technologies Ltd a posihon he has held
since 2008

Ashley Lane
Managing Director of MASS

Term of office
Ashley was appointed as Managing
Director of MASS In May 2009

Background and expenence

After graduating from Surrey University
with a master’s degree {distincbon) in
Electronic and Electrical Engineering
Ashley joined Thorn EMI Electronics as

a Systems Engineer working on radar,
countarmeasures and survellance
systemns He also spent four years in
technology development and licensing
bullding the successful 3G wireless
technology company UbiNetics He has
held key technical rales on programmes
spanning defence security and
telecommunications as well as
managenal positions induding Business
Manager {onsultancy Division Head and
for five years Systemns Development and
Technical Director for MASS

Darren Allery
Managing Director of MCL

Term of office
Darren became Managing Director of
MCL in March 2009

Background and experience

Darren has over ten years senior managersal
experience in the internatonal defence
sactor He began his career in 1985 at MEL
as an Electrornics Engineer (n 1990, he
moved to MCL as a Support Engineer,
primarily supporaing electronic warfare
equipment, specialising in ELINT His roles
at MCL have included Support Engineer
Support Manager EW Sales Manager

and Business Bevelopment Director

Managing Oirector of SCS

Term of office
Christan was appcinted as Managing
Director of SCS in June 2015

Background and experience

A law graduate and Hanley Business
School alumnus, Chnstian has over

15 years commeraal experience holding
semof posinans In consultancy and
telecommunications businesses Before
Joning SCS he was Commercial Director at
Airbus Defence and Space where he was
involved 1n 2 major telecommunications
project in the Kingdom of Saud) Arabia
From 2005 unbl 2012 he was Commercial
and Performance Direstor for QinenQ's
consultancy business Chrishian has also
undertaken senior buginess management
roles with Deloitte Consulong BT Global
Services and GPT (Marcom} He has
significant negotiabion and programme
delivery experience in the defence
security and el markets both in the

UK and overseas

Stephen Hill
Managing Director of SEA

Term of office
Stephen was appointed as Managing
Director of SEA in March 2011

Background and experience

Stephen has over ten years’ senior
manageral expenence predominantly in
the internabionat aerospace and defence
sectar He began his career in 1983 at
GEC Marcom as an Electronics Engineer
eventually becoming Business Director
with respensibility for the land systems
electro optics business at Basildon

In 2000 he moved to Thales where

his roles included Managing Directar of
the Air Operations business at Wells and
Vice President with responsibility for the
UK Air Systems Division Prior to jeiming
the Cahort ple Group, he was Chief Executive
of Circle Bath a venture capital backed
private hospital in Bath Stephen has a
first class honours degree in Electrical
angd Electronic Engineering and a master’s
in Engineering Project Management and
15 a quahfied Chartered Diractor
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Corporate governance report
Nick Prest CBE, Chairman

Governance structure

Corporate structure

The Board
|
] ]
Audit Remuneration
Committee & Appointments
Committee

Sir Robert Waimslay  Sir Robert Watmsley

{Chairman) {Chairman)

Nick Prest Nick Prest

Stanley Carter Stanley Carter

Board composition

Chawrman {1}
Executive (2}

Non-Executve {2)

Introduchon

The Board I1s commutted to maintaining
appropnate standards of corporate
governance and managing the Group
in a flexible and effechve manner

As an AiM listed company Cohort ple1s not required
to comply with the UK Corporate Governance Code
{the Code] Nevertheless, the Board fully supports
the principles set out in the Code and seeksto
comply wherever this 1s appropriate for its size
and complexity This Corporate Governance report
provides details of how the Group complhies with
the 2013 Quoted Companies Alllance Corporate
Governance Code for Small and Mid size Quoted
Companies {the QCA Code)

The Board

As at 30 Apnil 2015, the Board of Directors
comprised the Chairman, two Executive
Directors, Andrew Thormis and Simon Walther
and two Non-executive Directors, Stanley Carter
and Sir Rebert Walmsley Nick Prest and Stanfey
Carter were not considered independent

The Board has determined Sir Robert Walmsley
to be independent and he s designated the
Senior Independent Director The Board was
aware that st was not comphant with the

QCA Code in respect of having at least two
independent Non-executive Directars but has
now addressed this matter following the
apporntment of Jeft Perrin as an independent
Non-executive Director from 1 July 2015

leff Perrin will take over from Sir Robert Walmsley
as the Chairman of the Audit Committee
following the Annual General Meeting {(AGM)

on 22 September 2015 whilst Sir Robert will
continue g5 Chairman of the Remuneration

& Appointments Committee

The enhancement of the Board 1s In response
to the increase In the size and complexity
of the Group following recent acquisthons

The Board meets most months and receives

a monthly Board pack comprising indimdual
reports from each of the Executive Directors

and the subsidiary Managing Directors, together
with any other matertal deemed necessary for
the Board to discharge its duties It 1s the Board’s
responsibility to formulate, review and approve
the Group’s strategy, budgets, major Hems of
expenditure, major contract bids, acquisitions
and disposals

All Directoss retire by rotation and are subject
to election by shareholders at least once every
three years The Board does not make a formal
evaluabon of its performance, a matter which
15 under constant review by the Chairman

Board committees

The Board has established two commuttees Audit
and Remuneration & Appointments, each having
written terms of reference

2 Cohort pk:
Annyal Repott and Accounts 1015




Attendance at Board and Committee meetings
Board and Committee meetings are scheduled in advance for each calendar year Addihonal meetings are arranged as necessary including meenings with
subsidiary Managing Directors to review strategic and financial plans The scheduled Board and Committee meetings and attendance are as follows

Corporate governance

Board Remuneration &
(8 format Audit Appointments
meenings} (3 meetings) (2 meetings)
N Prest {Chairman} EENEEEEN HER [ 1]
5 Carter [Co-Chairman) SNEEEEEER HAN [ ] ]
Sir Robert Walmsley {Non executive Director) HEE [ ] ]
A Tharris {Chief Executive) — -
S Walther (Finance Director and Company Secretary) EEENEEEEEN — —
Auditor’s remuneration
2015 2014
£'000 £ 000
Fees payable to the Company's auditor for the audit of the Company s and consolidated accounts 22 20
Fees payable to the Company's auditar for the audit of the Company’s subsidiaries 135 67
Total audit fees 157 87
Internim review fee 14 6
Fee in respect of due diigence on the acquisition of J+5 Ltd 53 -
Fee in respect of assistance on disposal of SEA’s Space business 34 —
Total non-audit fees 101 6
Total fees paid to the auditor and its associates 258 93
Charged to profit for the year 258 93

fees In respect of the due diligence on the acquisition of Marlborough Communications Ltd of £60,315 were paid ta Ernst & Young LLP

Audit Committee

The Audst Committee comprises the Company
Chairman and the Nan-executive Directors and

15 scheduled to meet at least three times a year

It 15 the Audit Committee s rofe to provide formal
and transparent arrangements for considering how
to apply financial reporting under IFRS and the
Companies Act 2006 and the internal contral
requirements of the QCA Code, whilst mamtaining
an appropriate relatonship with the independent
auditor of the Group The Board considers that the
Chairman of the Board has recent and relevant
financial experience, as required by the QCA Code

Sir Robert Walmsley 1s Chairman of the Audit
Committee The current terms of reference of
the Audit Commuttee (published 15 May 2014)
ware reviewed during the year and no change
was required

As from 22 September 2015, leff Pernin will
chair the Audit Committee The members of
the Audit Committee from this date will be the
three Non-executive Directors and will not
include the Chairman of the Board

Commuttee consideration

of the financial statements

In making 1ts recommendation that the financial
statements be approved by the Board, the Audit
Committee has taken account of the following
significant issues and judgement areas

Areas of judgement

Revenue recogrition

on fixed-price contracts

The judgement apphed in recognising revenue on
a fixed price contract is made by reference to the
cost incurred, including contingency for risk and
the demonstrable progress made on delivering
key stages {often referred to as milestones) of
the contract The Group uses best estimates in
applying this judgement and where uncertainty
of progress on a stage exists, revenue Is not
recognised for that stage

Cost contingency

on fixed-price contracts

In additign to the judgement applied to revenue
recogninion, the cost of delivering a contract to a
particular stage represents the actual costs incurred
and comrmtted, plus an eshmate of cost conbngency
for nisk stll present in the contract at that stage
This cost contingency takes account of the stage
that the contract has reached and any judgement
and uncertainty remaining to deliver the
remainder of the contract 1t 1s usual for these
cost contingenaes to reduce as the contract
progresses and risk and uncertainty reduces

Goodwill and other intangible assets
The Group has recognised goodwill and other
intangible assets in respect of the acquisihons of
MASS {including Abacus EW), SEA (including 145}

and MCL The other intangibfe assets are in respect
of contracts acquired, intellectual property rights
and specihic oppartunities and In each case are
amortised over the expected life of the earmings
associated with the other intangible asset acquired
The goodwill, which 1s not subject to amorhsation
but to annual impairment testing, arises fram the
intangible elements of the acquired businesses for
which either the value or life 1s not readily derived
This includes, but 1s not hmited to, reputabon,
customner relations, contacts and market synergies
with existing Group members The goodwill relating
to the acquisiticns of MASS (in¢luding Abacus EW)
and SEA {including J+5) has been tested for
impairment as at 30 April 2015 In both cases
there was ncimpairment The impalrment test
far the goodwill in respect of SEA 1s more sensiive,
with no impairment at the Group's post-tax
weighted average cost of capital {(WACC) of 9 5%
but materially impaired if the Group's post-tax
WACLC increases to aver 18% The Group’s 2015
post tax WACC of 3 5% 15 lower than the 2014
squivalent of 10 9%, which reflects the lower
equity risk The Group s pre tax WACC 15 12 9%
{2014 15 2%)

The sensitivity of the SEA goodwill to imparrment
has decreased since last year due to the lower
WACC as well as stronger cash flows at SEA reflecting
lower workeng capital requirements following the
disposal of its Space business on 30 Apnil 2014

Cobort pic
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Corporate governance report continued

Areas of judgement continued
Goodwill and other intangible assets
continued

The goodwill relating to the acquisition of MCL
{acquired 9 July 2014} has not been tested for
impairment at 30 Apnl 2015 since 1t 1s a recent
acquisition and the circumstances in respect
of the acquisiion have not matenally changed
The goadwill In respect of the acquisinon of
MCL will be tested from 31 October 2015

Provisions

The Group makes eshmates of prowisions for
exishing commitments arsing from past events
In estmanng these provisions, the Group makes
judgements as to the quantity and likelihood of
the liability anising Certain provisions require mare
judgement than others In particular, warranty
provisions and contract loss provisions have to
take account of future outcomes ansing from past
delivenes of products and services In eshmating
these provisions, the Group makes use of
managament expenence, precedents and
specihc contract and customer 1ssues

Accounting policies

There were no significant changes in accounting
policies applying to the Group for the year ended
30 April 2015

Independent auditor

The independent auditor haises with the Audit
Committee regarding work to be undertaken and
complies with the Ethical Standards for Auditors
1ssued by the Audibng Practices Board Prios to
commencing Its audit work, the independent
auditor confirmed 1n writing the nature of any
non-audit work carried out on behalf of the
Group and the safeguards in place to ensure

its independence and objectivity, any in-year
proposals for non-audit work are subject to
pnior approval by the Audit Committee

The independent auditor presented its audst
plan to the Audit Commuttee prior to the Audit
Committee meeting held in March 2015 The
plan was reviewed and approved at that meeting
with spetihc areas of focus by the independent
auditor discussed in detail for the ensuing audit

The independent audior {KPMG LLP) was
appointed 1n March 2010 and following its fifth
annual audit last year the audit engagement
partner has changed as from this, the audit

of the financial statements for the year ended
30 April 2015

The analysis of the auditor’s, KPMG LLP

{2014 KPMG LLP), remuneration 1s shown in
the table on page 29 The sigmficant increase
in the auditor’s fee reflects the expansion

in the Group during the year with the addiion
of twa legal ennhes, MCL and J+5

Fees payable to KPMG LLP and s associates for
non audi services ta the Company are not reguired
to be disclosed because the consolidated financial
statements are required to disclose such fees on
a consolidated basis only

Whistle-blowing

The Group has formal arrangements in place
to facilitate “whistle-blowing” by employees
through a contract with a third-party service
provider If any call i1s made to this third party,
either the Chief Executive or the Chatrman

of the Audit Committee I1s notthed promptly
of the fact and the content of the call so that
appropriate action can be taken

Remuneration &

Appointments Committee

The Remuneration & Appointments Committee
comprises the Caompany Chairman and the
Non-executive Directors and 1s scheduled

to meet at least twice a year The role of the
Remuneratien & Appointments Committee Is to

establish a formal and transparent policy on
Executve remuneration and tc set remuneraticn
packages far individual Executive Directors
{and such other senior employees as the
Board may determine)

assess the perfermance of the individual
Executive Directors {and such other senior
employees as the Board may determine)
against these packages and determine the
related remuneration,

undertake the role, in conjunction with the
Chief Executve, of proposing individuals to the
Board for such appointments as the Board may
from tme to time request, and

undertake any other tasks appropniate to the
Commiitee requested by the Board

Sir Robert Walmsley ts Chatrman of the
Remuneraton & Appointments Commuttee

Management of the Group

and its subsidiary undertakings

The management of the Group and subsidiary
undertakings 15 as follows

Group management

» The Cohort plc Board will meet at least eight
times per calendar year This includes business
and strategic reviews which are not recorded
as formal Board meetings

The Group Executive Committee will meet at

least four imes per calendar year, comprising
Cohort plc Executive Directors and subsidiary
Managing Directors

Subsidiary management

+ There are monthly executive management
meedngs involving the serior management
of each subsidiary Cohaort plc Executive
Directors attend subsidiary executive
management meehngs on a regular basis

Shareholder relations

The Company meets with its institutional
shareholders and analysts as appropriate and
uses the AGM ta encaurage communication with
private shareholders In addition, the Company uses
the Annual Report and Accounts, the Intenim Report,

the website {www cohortple com) and increasingly
social media, webcasts and email news alests to
provide further informahon to sharehalders

Internal control and risk management
The Board has overall responsibility for the system
of internal cantrol and for reviewing its effectiveness
Such systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate risks and can provide anly reasonable and
not absolute assurance against matertal misstatement
or loss Each year, on behalf of the Board, the
Audit Committee reviews the effechiveness of these
systems This 1s achieved primarily by considering
the risks potentally affecting the Group and from
discussions with the externat auditor

The Board 15 not aware of any significant faillings
or weaknesses In the system of internal contro}

On the recommendation of the Audit Committee,
the Board has determined that an internal audit
funchon 1s not required due to the small size of
the Cohort plc admimstrative function and the
high leve! of Director review and authornisation of
transactions The Board will keep this matter
under reviaw as the Group develops

A comprehensive budgeting process is completed
once a year and s reviewed and approved by the
Board In addition, the Group ¢conduets quarterly
re forecasts The Group's results, as compared
against budget and the latest quarterly forecast,
are reparted to the Board on a monthly basis and
discussed in detall at each meeting of the Board

The subsidiary balance sheets are reviawed
1n detail on a quarterly basis by the Cohort pic
Finance Director

Anti-brnibery

The Group has an ant bribery pohcy and each

of 1ts businesses has Implemented that palicy
and appropriate procedures describad by the
Brnibery Act 2010 ({the “Act”) to prevent bribery
Each business within the Group reports annually
to the Board on its compliance with the policy
and procedures The Cohort plc Chief Executive 1s
the Board member responsible for the Group's
comphance As part of its procedures, the Group
has implemented training tn respect of compliance
with the Act for its employees

The Group's anh bribery policy 1s reviewed at least
every two years or more often if necessary The
policy was last reviewed and updated in fune 2015

Cyber nisk

The Group has a Secunity Policy Framework which
covers physical and cyber secunty of its asseis,
employees and informabon, including third-party
information as well as business continuity and
disaster recovery procedures Each business
within the Group reports annually to the Board
on the applicability of and 1ts compliance with
the Group s Secunty Policy Framework

The Group's Security Policy Framewaork 1s
constantly reviewed taking account of best
practrce and reguirements in government and
Industry and was last updated in May 2015

3 Cahort plc
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Directors’ report

Introduction

The Directors present their report

and the audited financial statements
{pages 39 to 71) of Cohort plc for the
year ended 30 April 2015 Cohort ple s
a company incorporated tn and operanng
from England Its registered address

15 Arlington House, 1025 Arhington
Business Park, Theale, Reading RG7 45A
The Corporate Governance report set
out on pages 28 to 30 forms part

of this report

Principal activibies

The principat actwity of the Company s that
of a holding company The principal activities
of the Group are described in Qur business
and capabilihes on pages 4 to 5

The Chairman's staternent is included in the
overview sechon on pages 2to 3

Post-balance sheet events
There have been no significant events since
the balance sheet date

Table 1 Information in respect of the Directors of the Company

Disclosure

Corporate governance

Dwvidends

The Durectors recommend a final dividend of

3 40 pence (2014 2 80 pence) per 10 pence
ordinary share which, subject 1o shareholder
approval, I1s due to be paid on 30 September 2015
to ordinary shareholders on the register on

28 August 2015 Together with the interim
dradend of 1 60 pence paid on 4 March 2015,
the fult dividend for the year will be 5 00 pence
{2014 4 20 pence), an increase of 19% over
last year

Report Pagas

Directors who served throughout the year
Directors retiring by rotaton

Directors’ biographies

Directors interests

Directors’ share ophons

Remuneration & Appointrments Committee report 331035

Remunerahon & Appointments Committee report 331035

Board of Directors and Executive Management 26 to 27
Remuneration & Appointiments Committee report 3310 35
Remuneraton & Appaintments Committee report 33to 35

Table 2. Substantial shareholdings and voting rights

Percentage of
voting nghts
and issued Number of

share capital ordinary Nature of

% shares holding

S Carter 2223 9,105718 Direct
Schroder Investment Management 1446 5,922,355 Direct
Hargreave Hale 1100 4,507,545 Direct
N Prest 509 2,084,580 Direct

Research and development

During the year ended 30 April 2015 the Group
expenditure on research and development, both
on behalf of customers and the Group's own
private venture expenditure, was £9 4m

{2014 £9 4m)

Going concern

The Group's financial statements have been
prepared on the going concern basts The
reasons for this are set out on page 66 of
the Accounting Policies

Capital structure

Details of 1ssued share capital, together with details
of the movements in the Company's issued share
capital during the year are shown in note 19

The Company has one class of ordinary shares
which carry no right to fixed income Each share
carries the right to one vote at general meetings
of the Company

There are no specific restrichions on the size of a
holding nior on the transfer of shares, which are
both governed by the general prowvisions of the
Articles of Association and prevailing legisiation
The Directors are not aware of any agreements
between holders of the Company’s shares that
may result in restrichons on the transfer of
secunties or on voting rights

Details of employee share schemes are set out
i note 20 Shares held by the Cohaort plc
Employee Benefit Trust [see note 21) abstain
fram vobing and do not receive any dindend

No person has any spectal rights of control over
the Company’s share capital and all 1ssued shares
are fuily paid

With regard to the appointment and replacement
of Directars the Company 15 governed by its
Articles of Association, the QCA Code, the
Companies Act and related legislaton The Articles
themselves may be amended by special resoluhon
of the shareholders The powers of Directors are
described in the Cohort ple “Matters reserved for
the Board”, copies of which are available on our
website {(www cohortplc com) or on request,
and set out in the Corporate Governance report
on pages 28 to 30

Under 1ts Articles of Associatian, the Company
has authority to 1ssue up to half of its 1ssued
shares as new ordinary shares This approximates
to 20 5m shares at 30 April 2015

There are also a number of ather agreements
that take effect, alter or termmnate upon a change
of control of the Company, such as commercal
contracts, bank loan agreements, properiy lease
arrangements, and employee share plans None
of these are considered to be significant in terms
of ther likely impact on the business of the
Group as a whole Furthermore, the Directors
are not aware of any agreements between the
Company and its Directors or employees that
provide for compensation for loss of office

or employment that occurs because of a
takeover bid, other than those disclosed In

the Remunerabon & Appointments Committee
report on pages 33 to 35

Internanonal Finanoial Reporting
Standards {IFRS)

The Group and parent company's reported
results for the year ended 30 April 2015 are
prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted
bythe EU

s 31
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Directors’ report continued

Directors

The Group maintaing appropriate INsurance cover
in respect of legal actions against the Directars,
as well as against matenial loss or claims against
the Group, and reviews the adequacy of the
cover regutarly

Details of informatwon in respect of the Directors of
the Campany is referenced in table 1 on page 31

Fixed assets

There is no material difference between the book
value and current cpen market value of the Graup's
interests in land and buildings

Employee consultation

The Group organises staff communications locally
through its subsidiary undertakings The media
used for arganised communications (ncludes
local intranets, in-house magazines, staff bulletns,
presentations and copies of press releases In
addition, regular staff meetings are held and notices
are published contaiming informaton about matters
of interest within the Group and its substdiaries

Disabled employees

The policy of the Group is to offer the same
opportunity to disabled people as to all others
in respect of recruitment and career advancement,
provided their disability does not prevent
them from carrying out their required duties
Employees who become disabled will, wherever
possible, be retained, rehabilitated and, where
necessary, retrained

Daonations

During the year ended 30 Apnl 2015 the
Group made chanitable donations of £26,59%
{2014 £15 555}, mainty in respect of military
and local charites The Group made no politcal
donattons during the year (2014 £Nil)

Substantal shareholdings

The Company has been notified as at 8 June 2015,
In acgordance with chapter 5 of the Disclosure
and Transparency Rules, of the voting rights of
substanhal shareholders of the Company as
shown in table 2 on page 31

Reappointment of auditor
A resolution to re appoint KPMG LLP as auditor
will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting

The Directors who were in office on the date

of appraval of these financial staterments have
confirmed, as far as they are aware, that there
1s no relevant audit information of which the
auditor 1s unaware Each of the Directors has
confirmed that they have taken all the steps
they ought to have taken as Directors in order
to make themselves aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that it has been
communicated to the auditor

Approved by the Board of Directors on
25 lune 2015 and sign

Simon Wa(r/

Company Secretary

3 Cohort plc
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Remuneration & Appointments
Committee report

Introduction

The Remuneration & Appointments
Committee of the Board 15, inter alia,
responsible for considering Directors’
remuneration packages and making
recommendations to the Board

Remunerahon policy

Remunerahon packages are designed to be
campetibve and to incentivise and reward
good performance

Directors’ interests

Executive Directors recewve salary, medical cover
and pension cantribution as well as annual cash
bonuses, shares and share options

Service contracts of the Executive
Directors who served in the year

Andrew Thomis and Simen Walther have service
agreements with the Company which can be
cancelled by either party giving six months’ notice
at any time or 12 months’ nohice in the event

of losing office as a consequence of a change

of control anising as a result of any person or
persons acquinng more than 50% of the vating
rights at a general meeting of the Company

Corporate governance

Pensions

During the year ended 30 Apnil 2015, the Group
made contributions to a stakeholder pension
scheme (a defined contribution scheme) at a rate
of 10% of any Executive Director’s contnibution
plus 3% of the Executive Director's salary per
annurm to the same scheme

At At
30 April 30 April
2015 2014

Number of  Number of
10p ordlnary 10p ordinary
shares shares

S Carter

N Prest

AThomis

Sir Robert Walmsley
5 walther

9,105,718 10,665,718
2,084,580 2 084,580
86,219 51,710
25,035 25,035
74,151 45,828

Directors’ interests in the equity of Cohort plc
The Directors in office during the year under review and their interests in the equity of the Company are shown in the table abave The changes in the
Executive Directors’ equity interests in the Company between 30 April 2014 and 30 April 2015 are analysed as follows

A Thomis S Walther

At 30 April 2014 51,710 45,828
Shares awarded under Restricted Share Scheme 19,342 15,595
Cohort plc 2006 share ophon scheme option exercrsed 15,173 17,499
Automatic dividend reinvestment in shares {within an ISA) — 291
Shares sold as part of transfers to Indnndual Savings Accounts and/or Savings Investment Plan to settle transfer fees (6) 62)

At 30 April 2015

86,219 79,151

Of the above shareholdings at 30 April 2015,
20,556 (2014 9,075) of Andrew Thormis’ and
17,196 (2014 8,250} of Simon Walther’s are held
on trust by the Employee Benefit Trust as part

of the Restncted Share Scheme and do not
receve a dividend Stanley Carter sold 1,560,000
shares on 4 March 2015 at £2 36 per share

There was no change in the interests of Nick Prest
or Sir Robert Walmsley None of the Chairman s or
Non executive Directors’ shareholdings are held as
part of the Restricted Share Scheme {2014 Nil)

Performance incentives

The Cohort plc Executive Directors” incentive
scheme was agreed by the Board on 19 June 2013
following a recommendation from the
Remuneration & Appointments Committee This
scheme has applied to the year ended 30 April
201S and will also apply for the year ended

30 April 2016

The incentive scheme comprises two elements

1 In-year performance

The bonus payable to the Cohort plc Executive
Directors in respect of each and every year will be
based upon performance compared to budget for
adjusted operating proht and operating cash flow
and will be payable up to a maximum of 15%

of salary

2 Long-term performance

The Cohort ptc Executive Directors will be eligible
to receive the following based upon achteving
annuabsed profit growth targets

I up to 20% of salary as a cash banus,

Il up to 20% of salary as Restricted Shares
{calculated as the number of shares under the
Restricted Share Scheme at the closing market
price on the trading day prior to the award),
and

a discretionary award of ug to 20% of salary
as share options {calculated as the number
of shares under option at the market price on
the day of grant}

These rewards are payable for the year ended
30 Apnl 2015 on a hinear basis from zero to 20%
of satary as the compound annual growth rate
in adjusted profit before interest and tax per
share over a 24 manth period starbng 1 May 2013
goes from zera to 10% The Remunerahon &
Appointments Committee intends that in future
years these elements of bonus will be based

an annualised prafit growth over a successively
greater number of years, ulimately moving te

a rolling four-year period

Full beneficial ownership of Restricted Shares
{including voting and dividend rights) will accrue
to the recipients in stages over a three year
penod from the date of award Recipients may
only sell Restricted Shares with the approval

of the Chairman of the Remuneration &
Appointments Committee while they remain

In employment with the Company Income tax
and Natonal Insurance payable in relation to
Restricted Shares s borne by the Company

ozt 33
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Remuneration & Appointments
Committee report continued

Performance incentives continued
2 Long-term performance continued

The Committee consicders that this long-term incentive plan atigns the objectives of the Executive Directars with the shareholders The Committee retains
discretonary powers (n respect of awarding annual cash bonuses in excess of 35% to the Executive Directors where circumstances warrant it

At the Remunerahon & Appoitments Commuttee held on 3 June 2015, the following awards were made to the Executive Directors

I Acash bonus of £123,550 was payable to the Executive Directors for the year ended 30 April 2015 (2014 £105,225)

il Restricted Shares under the Restricted Share Scherne were approved as follows

In respect of the year ended In respect of the year ended

30 April 2015 30 April 2014
Estimated Value Actual Value
number of shares numbar of shares
of shares £ of shares £

A Thoris
S Walther

14,365 39,000 19,342 38,200
11,639 31,600 15,595 30,800

16,004 70,600 34,937 69,000

The total estimated value received by the
Executive Directors in respect of the Restncted
Share Scheme, including income tax and
employee NIC was £148 645 i respect of

the year ended 30 Apri 2015 (2014 £146,809)
The Restricted Shares in respect of the year
ended 30 April 2014 were approved at the
Remuneration & Appaintments Committee of

S June 2014 and were awarded on 11 August 2014
The Restricted Shares in respect of the year
ended 30 Apnl 2015 are expected to be awarded
in August 2015 following the end of the close
pernod The estirmated number of shares 1s based
on the mid-market share price {271 S50 pence)
and the total esnmated value on the prevailing
tax rates, both at 3 June 2015

m  Ordinary shares under option granted
during the year ended 30 April 2015
and outstanding at 30 April 2015 were
as shown in table 2 {opposite)

The mid-market price of Cohort plc 10 pence
ordinrary shares at 30 Aprd 2015 was 265 O pence
{2014 166 0 pence), the lowest and highest
market prices in the year were 166 0 pence

and 282 50 pence raspectively

No bonuses are payable or share options
awardable to the Non-executive Directars Cash
bonus schemes for other senior management of
the subsidiary companies have been established
for the year ending 30 Apnl 2015, with a sirmilar
framework to that of the Cohort plc Executive
Directors, with varying levels of percentage of
salary, none exceeding 35% subject to the
discretion of the Committee

The Group has the right to recover from the
Cohort plc Executive Directors and senior
management of the subsidiary companies any
cash bonus paid or shares received In respect of a
reporting period where a matenal adverse
restaternent 1s made

Chairman and Non-executive Directors
Both Nick Prest and Sir Robert Walmsley were
appointed in February 2006 Stanley Carter was
appointed Non executive Co-Chairman of Cohort ple
on 25 May 2009 These appointments can be
terminated upon three months’ notice being
given by erther party

Sir Robert Walmsley, Simon Walther and
Andrew Thomis are due to retire by rotahon and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re elechon at
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting on 22
September 2015

Jeff Perrin, who was appointad by the Board
with effect from 1 July 2015, in accordance with
the Articles of the Comgpany, and, being eligible,
offers himself for election at the Annual General
Meeting on 22 September 2015

Directors’ remuneration
Detalls of Directors’ remuneration are set out
in table 3 opposite

Salaries for Andrew Thorrus and Simon Walther
have been tncreased to £212,000 and £168,000
per annum respechvely for the year ended

30 April 2016 The fees payable to the Chairman
and Non-execubive Directors for the year ended
30 Apnil 2015, which have been unchanged since
1 May 2010, have been increased as follows

Annual fees

Annual fees  for the year

from ended

1May 2015 30 April 2014

N Prast 90,000 60,000
S Carter 45,000 45,000
Sir Robert Walmsley 45,000 30,000

180,000 135,000

leff Pernin appainted with effect from 1 July 2015,
will receive a fee of £45,000 per annum from
that date

3 4 Cohort plc
Annual Report and Accounts 2015




Corporate governance

Directors’ remuneration continued
Table 2 Directors’ share aptions

At 1 May 2014 Date from
or date of Lapsed/ At 30 April which option Exercise
appointment Granted Exerased farfaited 2015 Date of ¢an be period
Numbear NMumber Number Number Number grant exercised Years
A Thomis
Cohort ple 2006 share option scheme under the
Enterprise Management Incentive (EMI) scheme
- Option price of £1 230 per share 40,650 - {40,650) - — 8 Mar 2006 9 Mar 2009 7
Cohort plc 2006 share option scheme (approved)
~Qphon price of £1 875 per share - 15,189 - — 15,189 11Aug2014 12 Aug 2017 7
Cohort plc 2006 share option scheme (unapproved)
— Option price of £0 835 per share 66,995 — — - 66,995 23 lul 2010 24 jul 2013 7
— Option price of £0 915 per share 76,546 - - - 76,546 26Iul 2011 27 Jul 2014 7
— Option price of £1 165 per share 75,000 - - - 75,000 2 Aug 2012 3 Aug 2015 7
—Option price of £1 675 per share 24 250 - - - 24,250 9 Aug 2013 10 Aug 2016 7
—QOption price of £1 975 per share - 4,153 - - 4,153 11Aug2014 12 Aug 2017 7
Save as you earn {SAYE) scheme
- Qphon price of £1 545 per share 2,330 — — — 2,330 13Aug2013 1 Sep 2016
— Option price of £2 075 per share - 2,602 — — 2,602 11Aug 2014 1 Sep 2017
285,771 21,944 (40,650) - 267,065
5 Walther
Cohort pic 2006 share option scheme (approved)
=QOphon price of £0 915 per share 32,786 — {32,786) — — 26Jul 2011 27 iul 2014 7
- Qphion price of £1 975 per share - 15,189 — — 15,189 11 Aug 2014 12 Aug 2017 7
Cohort pic 2006 share option scheme (unapproved]
—Option price of £0 835 per share 55,172 — — - 55,172 231u12010 24 Jul 2013 7
—Option price of £0 915 per share 30,252 - - - 30,252 26Jul 2011 27 Jul 2014 7
~Option price of £1 165 per share 65,000 — — — 65,000 2 Aug 2012 3 Aug 2015 7
—Option price of £1 675 per share 21,750 — — — 21,750 9 Aug 2013 10 Aug 2015 7
- Ophon price of £1 975 per share — 406 - - 406 11 Aug 2014 12 Aug 2017 7
Save as you earn {SAYE) scheme
—QOphon price of £1 545 per share 5,825 - - - 5,825 13 Aug 2013 1 Sep 2016
—Optien price of £2 075 per share - 867 - -_ 867 11 Aug 2014 1 Sep 2017
210,785 16 462 {32,786) — 194,461

Andrew Thomis exer¢ised 40,650 share options held under the Enterprise Management Incentive Scheme on 5 August 2014 when the market price of Cohort plc
ordinary shares was 197 88 pence per share Andrew Thormus disposed of sufficient shares 1o fund the option exercise with the balance of 19,342 being retained
at 30 Apnl 2015

Simon Walther exercised 32,786 Cohort plc 2006 approved share options on 5 August 2014, when the market price of Cohort plec ordinary shares was
197 88 pence per share Simoen Walther disposed of sufficient shares to fund the option exercise with the balance of 15,595 being retained at 30 April 2015

There are no performance conditions applying to any of the share option schemes above The price paid for all share options in the above schemes was nil pence

Table 3 Directors’ remuneration

Restricted Benefits Pension
Salary Bonus Share awards inkind Emoluments contributions Total Total
2015 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015 2014
£ £ £ £ £ £ 3 E
Executive Directors

A Thomis 195,000 68,250 82,112 599 345,961 7,827 353,788 323 858
S Walther 158,000 55,300 66,533 599 280,432 6,150 286,582 260,981

Non-executwe Directors
N Prest 60,000 - - _ 60,000 - 60,000 60,000
S Carter 45,000 - - - 45,000 - 45,000 45,000
Sir Robert Walmsley 30,000 - — - 30,000 - 30,000 30,000
Totat 488,000 123,550 148,645 1,198 761,393 13,977 775,370 719,839

The Restricted Share awards include tax and employee NIC

Cohart pic 3 5
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities
in respect of the Annual Report and finanoial statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing
the Annuzl Report, the Strategic report, the
Directors’ report and the financial statements In
accordance with applicable law and regulatons

Company law requires the Directors to prepare
Group and parent company financal statements
for each hnancial year As required by the AIM rules
of the London Stock Exchange they are required
to prepare the Group financial statements in
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU

and applicable law and have elected to prepare
the parent company financial statements cn

the same basis

Under company law the Directors must not approve
the financial statements unless they are satsfied
that they give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and parent company and of
their profit or loss for that period in preparing
each of the Group and parent company financial
statements, the Directors are required to

* select suitable accounnng policies and then
apply them consistently,

make judgements and esbimates that are
reaschable and prudent,

state whether they have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU, and

.

prepare the financial staterments on the going
concern basis untess it 1s iInappropriate to
presume that the Group and the parent
company will continue In business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate
accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the parent company’s transactions and
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial posinon of the parent company and which
enable them to ensure that its finang¢ial staterments
comply with the Companies Act 2006 They have
general respansibility for taking such steps as are
reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets
of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud
and other rregularities

The Directors are respansble for the maintenance
and integrity of the corporate and financial
informanon included on the Company’s website
Legislation in the UK governing the preparation
and dissemination of financtal statements may
differ from legislation in other junsdichons

By order of the Board on 25 June

Andrew Thomis  Simo
Chief Executive Finance Director

3 6 Cohart ple
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Independent auditor’s report
to the members of Cohort plc

We have audited the financial statements of Cohort plc for the year ended 30 Apnil 2015 set out on pages 39to 71 The financial repornng framework that
has been applied in their preparation s apphcable law and International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs) as adopted by the EU and, as regards the
parent company hinancial statements, as applied in accordance with the provisians of the Companies Act 2006

This report 1s made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been
undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditar’s report and for no other purpose
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Cormpany and the Company’s members, as a body,
for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explatned more fully 1n the Statement of Directors’ responsibiities set out on page 36, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being sabsfied that they give a true and fair wew Our responsibility is to audit, and express an opimon on, the financial statements (n
accordance wtth applicable law and Internahanal Standards on Auditing {UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices
Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements
A descriphon of the scope of an audit of financial statements is provided on the Financial Reporting Council s website at www fre org uk/aud itscopeukprivate

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion

* the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the parent company’s affairs as at 30 April 2015 and of the Group's
profit for the year then ended, ,

+ the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU,

* the parent company finanoial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the £U and as appled 1n accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Act 2006, and

* the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006
Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the infarmatien given in the Strategic report and the Directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is
consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the fallowing matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinian

« adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have nat been received from branches not
visited by us, or

¢ the parent company financial statements are not In agreement with the accounting records and returns, or
« certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made, or

* wh haveynot received all thg information and explanations we require for our audit

ndrew Campbell-Orde {Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants
Arlington Business Park
Theale
Reading
RG7 45D
25 June 2015
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Consolidated income statement
for the year ended 30 Apnil 2015

Financial statements

2015 2014
Notes £'000 £ 003
Revenue 1 99,938 71555
Cost of sales (69,988) {47,842)
Gross profit 29,950 23,713
Administrabive expenses (24,085) [17,095)
Operating profit 1 5,865 6,618
Comprising
Adjusted operating profit 1 10,085 8171
Amortaisation of other intangible assets (tincluded in administrabve expenses) ] {3,602) {64}
Charge on marking forward exchange contracts to market value at the year end {included n cost of sales) 18 {38) {103)
Exceptional items
Cost of acguisition of MCL {included in administrative expenses) 29 [1497) —
Cost of acquisiion of J+5 {included in administrative expenses) 30 {427) -
Praht/(loss) on disposal of SEA's Space business [included in admimistrative expenses) 31 44 [1,386)
5,865 6,618
Finance income 4 87 125
Finance costs S [5) -
Profit before tax 5,947 6,743
Income tax charge 6 {707) (843)
Profit for the year 3 5,240 5,900
Attributable to
Equity shareholders of the parent 5,628 5,900
Non-controlling interests {388) —
5,230 5,900
Earnmings per share Perce Pence
Basic 8 1404 14 75
Diluted 8 1374 14 37

All profit for the year is derived from continuing operations

The comprehensive income for each year attributable to equity shareholders of the parent and the non-controlling interests is the same as the proft for the

year attributable to the equity sharehclders of the parent and the non controlling interests

The accompanying notes form part of the financial statements

Cahort plc
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Consolidated statement of changes In equity

for the year ended 30 Apnil 2015

Attributable to the equity shareholders of the parent

Share Share Non-

Share premium Own opbon Other Retained controlling Total

capital account shares reserve reserves earnings Total interests equity
Group £ 000 £ 000 £'000 £ 000 £'000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ D00
At 1 May 2013 4,079 29 515 (731) 571 — 25,609 59,047 - 55,047
Profit for the year - - — - — 5,900 5,900 - 5,500
Transachons with owners of Group
and non-cantrolling interests,
tecognised directly in equity
Equity devidends — — — - — [1,482) {1,482) - {1,482}
Naw shares 1ssued 17 137 - - - - 154 - 154
Vesting of Restricted Shares - - - - — 16 15 — 16
Own shares acquired — - (1,979} - - - {1,979) - {1,979)
Own shares sold - - 307 - — - 307 — 307
Net loss on selfing own shares — — 129 — — {129) — — —
Share-based payments - - — 235 - - 235 - 235
Transfer of share ophon reserve
on vesting of options - - - {280) - 280 - - -
At 30 Apnl 2014 4,096 29,656 (2,274} 526 — 30,194 62,198 b 62,198
Profit for the year - — — - — 5,628 5,628 {388) 5,240
Transachons with owners of Group
and non-controlling interests,
recogmsed directly tn equity
Equity dividends — — — — — (1,765} {1,765) — {1,765}
New shares 1ssued - 1 - - — — 1 - 1
Vesting of Restricted Shares — —_ - - — 44 44 — 44
Own shares sold - — 822 - - — 822 - 822
Net lass an selling own shares - — 617 - — (617) - — —
Share-based payments - — - 198 - — 158 — 198
Transfer of share aption reserve
an vesting of options - - - {321) — 321 - - -
Qption for acquiring non-controlling
interest in MCL - - - - {12,500) - (12,500} - (12,500)
Introducton of non-controlling
Interest on acquisinon of MCL — — — — — —_ — 8,609 8,609
At 30 April 2015 4,096 29,657 {835) 403 {12,500) 33,805 54,626 8,221 62,847

4 0 Cohart ple
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Company statement of changes tn equity Finzncial statements
for the year ended 30 April 2015

Share Share

Share premium Qwn aption Other Ratained

capital aceount shares reserve reserves earnings Total
Company £ 000 £'000 £ 000 £000 £'000 £ 000 £ 000
At 1 May 2013 4,079 29,519 {731) 571 - 6,311 39,749
Profit for the year — — — — — 3073 3,073
Transaction with owners of Company, recognised directly in equrty
Equity dimdends - - - - - (1,482) {1482)
New shares 1ssued 17 137 - - - — 154
Vesting of Restricted Shares - — — — - 16 16
Own shares acquired — — {1,979) - — — (1,979)
Own shares sold - - 307 - - - 307
Net foss on selling own shares - — 125 — — [129) —
Share-based payments - — - 235 - - 235
Transfer of share option reserve on vesting of options - - - (280) - 42 (238)
Total contnbutions by and distnbution to owners of the Company 17 137 {1 543) {45) — {1,553) [2,987)
At 30 April 2014 4,096 29,656 (2,274) 526 - 7,831 3% 835
Profit for the year - — - - — 2,953 2,953
Transaction with owmers of Company, recognised directly in equity
Equity dividends — - - — - {1,785) {1,765}
New shares issued — i — - — - 1
Vesting of Restricted Shares — — — — — 44 44
QOwn shares sold - - 822 — - - 822
Net loss on selling own shares - - 617 — - {617) -
Share based payments — — — 198 - — 198
Transfer of share option reserve on vesting of ophions - - - {321) - 38 (283}
Option for acquiring non-controlling interest in subsidiary, MCL - — - - (12,500) — {12,500}
Total contnbuttons by and distnbution to owners of the Company — 1 1,439 {123) {12,500) (2,300) {13 483)
At 30 April 2015 4,096 29,657 {835} 403 {12,500} B,484 29,305

The reserves of the Group and the Company are described in note 22

Cohort plc 41
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Consolidated and Company statement of financial position
as at 30 April 2015

Group Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
Notes £°000 E'000 £'000 £000
Assets
Non-current assets
Goodwill 9 36,841 29,395 - -
Other intangible assets 9 18,871 - - -
Property, plant and equipment 10 10,338 8,502 7 11
Investment In subsidiaries 11 - — 51,376 42,648
Deferred tax asset 17 104 301 32 34
66,154 38,198 51,415 42,693
Current assets
Inventaries 12 1,078 297 - —
Trade and other receivables 13 19,528 22,998 219 296
Cash and cash equivalents 19,701 16,338 - 6,082
40,307 39,633 219 6,378
Total assets 106,461 77,831 51,634 49,071
Liabilities
Current habilines
Trade and other payables 14 {25,373) {13,297) {2,796) (698}
Current tax habilities {786) {782) - -
Derivatwe financial instruments 18 [38) {142) - —
Bank borrowings 15 [4) — {7,033) (8,538)
Provisians 16 {558) [791) — —
(26,759)  (15,012) {9,829) 19,236}
Non-current iabilites
Deferred tax habilty 17 (4,345) [621) - -
Bank borrowings 15 {10) — — —
Qther creditors 29 (12,500) — [12,500) -
(16,855) [621) [12,500) -
Total liatulities (43,614) {15,633) [22,329) {9,236)
Nat assets 62,847 62,198 29,305 39,835
Equity
Share capital 19 4,096 4,096 4,096 4086
Share premium account 29,657 29,656 29,657 28,656
Own shares 21 (835) (2,274} {835} (2,274)
Share ophon reserve 20 403 526 403 526
Other reserves opbon for acquiring non-contralling interest in MCL 29 {12,500) - {12,500} -
Retained earnings 33,805 30,194 8,484 7,831
Total equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the parent 54,626 62,198 29,305 390,835
Neon-cantrofling interests 8,221 - - -
Total equity 62,847 62,198 29,305 39,835

The finanoal statements an pages 39 to 71 were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for 1ssue on 25 June 2015 and are signed on its behalf by

Andrew Thomis Sim
Chief Executive Finance Director

Company number

05684823
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Consolhdated and Company cash flow statements
for the year ended 30 April 2015

Financial statements

Group Company
2015 2014 2015 014

Notes £'000 £°000 £000 £000
Net cash from operating activines 23a 12,798 2,576 1,983 3,077
Cash flow from Investing activines
Interest receved 87 125 82 125
Proceeds on disposals of property, plant and equipment - 3 - —
Purchases of property, plant and equipment 10 [1,063) {2,274) (2} 110}
Acguisitian of MCL, net of cash acquired 29 [5,698) — {5,658) —
Acquisition of 145 net of cash acquired 30 {11,688) — - -
Dispasal of SEA's Space business 31 4,000 2,500 - -
Net cash (used in}freceved from investing activines {14,362) 354 (5,618) 115
Cash flow from financing activites
Dividends paid 7 (1,765) {1,482) {1,765) {1,482}
Issue of new shares 19 1 154 1 154
Purchase of own shares 21 - [1,979]) _— (1,979)
Sale of own shares 21 822 307 822 307
Repayment of borrowings 15 {131} — — —
Net cash used in financing activities (1,073) {3,000) (942) {3,000)
Net increasef{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 3,363 [70) 4,577) 192
Represented by
Cash and cash equwalents and short-term barrowings brought forward 16,338 16,426 (2,456) (2,648)
Cash flow 3,363 (70) {4,577) 192
Exchange — {18} - —
Cash and cash equivalents and short-term borrowings carried forward 23b 19,701 16,338 {7,033} {2,456)

Cohort pic
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 30 April 2015

1 Segmental analysis

For management and reporting purposes, the Group currently operates through its four subsidiaries MASS, MCL, 5CS and SEA These subsidiaries are the

basis on which the Company reports its primary business segment informaton in accerdance with IFRS 8

The principal achwities of the subsidianes are descnibed in the Overview {pages 2 to 3} and in the Strategic report {pages 4 to 24)

Business segment information about these subsidiaries is presented below

MASS MCL scs SEA Ellminations Group
2015 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Revenue
External revenue 32,528 10,143 15,892 40,375 — 99,938
Inter-segment revenue 25 — 56 — {81) -

32,553 10,143 16,948 40,375 {81) 99,938

Segment adjusted operating profit 5,492 1,327 1,319 3,964 - 12,102
Unallocated corparate expenses - - —- - - {2,017)
Adjusted operating profit 5,492 1,327 1,319 3,964 - 10,085
Charge on marking forward exchange contracts to market value at the year end - {38) - - - {38)
Reduction in loss on disposal of SEA’'s Space business - - — 44 - a4
Costs of acquisiion of MCL - - - - {197} (197)
Costs of acquisition of J+§ - - - (427) - 1427}
Amortisation of other intangible assets - (2,224) — {1,378) - {3,602)
Operating profit/(loss) 5,492 {935} 1,319 2,203 {197} 5,865
Finance income [net of cost) - 5 - (3} —_ 82
Profit/{lass) before tax 5,492 {930} 1,319 2,200 {197) 5,947
Income tax charge {707}
Profit after tax 5,240
All are UK operations and all are continuing Inter-segment sales are charged at arm’s length rates
Unallocated corporate expenses are the costs of the Cohort plc head office including the remuneration of the Cohort plc Board

MASS MCL sCS SEA Central Group
Other information £7000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Capital additons - 30 271 760 2 1,063
Depreciation 225 64 120 542 6 957

MASS MCL 5CS SEA Eliminations Group
Balance sheet £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Assets
Segment assets 10,202 3,899 3,172 15,374 (1,703) 30,944
Goodwi!l and other intangible assets 12,500 15,852 - 27,360 55,712
Deferred tax asset 104
Cash 19,701
Consohdated total assets 22,702 19,751 3,172 42,734 106,461
Liabilities
Segment habilines {6,757) (2,835) (4,983) {11,534} {12,374} (38,483)
Current tax liabilites {786}
Deferred tax ability (4,345)
Consohdated total habilines 6,757) (2,835) (4,983) {11,534} (43,614)

50 001% of MCL was acquired 9 July 2014 and 100% of its higures are reported above from that date unn! 30 Aprd 2015 The nan controfling interest

{49 999%) 15 reported separately in the income statement and reserves

100% of J+S was acquired 1 October 2014 its figures are included in SEA's reported figures from that date until 30 April 2015 The impact of 1+5 on the

Group’s reported results 1s shown in note 30
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Financial statements

1 Segmental analysis continued

MASS SCS SEA  Ehrinations Group
2014 £°000 £ 000 £'000 £000 E'000
Revenue
External revenue 27,568 14,850 29,137 — 71,555
Inter-segment revenue - 257 — (257} —

27 568 15,107 29,137 {257} 71,555

Segment adjusted operahng profit 4,999 1,037 3,803 — 9,839
Unaliocated corporate expenses - - - - {1,668}
Adjusted operating profit 4,999 1,037 3,803 —_ 8,171
Charge on marking forward exchange contracts to market value at the year end — - {103) - (103)
Loss on disposal of SEA's Space business - - {1,386) - {1,386)
Amortisahion of other intangible assets {64) - - - (64)
Operating profit 4,935 1,037 2,314 - 6,618
Finance income {net of cost} - - — - 125
Profit before tax 4,935 1,037 2,314 - 6,743
Income tax charge {843)
Profit after tax 5,900

All are UK operatiens and all are continuing Inter-segment sales are charged at arm’s length rates

Unallocated corporate expenses are the costs of the Cohort plc head office including the remuneration of the Cohort ple Board

MASS S5C5 SEA Central Group
Other informatton £'000 £'000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000
Capital additions - 148 2,116 10 2,274
Depreciahon 225 88 296 3 612

MASS 5CS SEA  Eliminations Group
Balance sheet £ 000 £'000 £'000 £ 000 £ 000
Assets
Segment assets 10,586 3,117 19,056 (962) 31,797
Goodwill and other intangible assets 12,500 — 16,855 29 3585
Deferred tax asset 301
Cash 16,338
Consohdated total assets 23,086 3,117 35,851 77 831
Liabilities
Segment habilines {3,519) (3,706) {(8,158) 1,151 (14,230)
Current tax habilittes {782)
Deferred tax llatility {621)
Consclidated total habihnes {3,519 (3,706} {3,158) [15,633)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and allocating resource between segments, the Group's Chief Executive menitors the tangible,
intangible and financial assets attnbutable to each segment

All assets and habilines are allocated to reportable segments with the exception of central cash and bank borrowings, current tax and deferred tax assets
and liabihties

Goodwill and other intangible assets are allocated to reportable segments as analysed In note 9

Geographical segments
The Group’s subsidiaries are all located in the UK The following table prowvides an analysis of the Group s revenue by geographical location of the customer

2015 2014
£'000 £'000
UK 81,863 58,631
Other EC countries 3,975 5,527
Asia Pacific 12,274 6,522
North and South America 1,826 875

99,938 71,555

All Group assets, tangible and intangible, are located in the UK
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Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 30 April 2015

1 Segmental analysis continued
Market segments
The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s revenue by market sector

2015 2014

£'000 £000
Defence (including security) 89,430 57,776
Transport 3,859 4,869
Offshore energy 1,967 -
Other commeroal 4,682 4,428
Space - 4,482

99,938 71,555

Further informahon on revenue by capability can be found in the Strategic report {page 17)

Ma]ﬂl' customers
Revenue from major custamers included in the Group’s business segments for the year ended 30 April 2015 13 as follows

2015 2014
UK MO0 Customer A CustomerB  Customer € UKMOD  Customer A Customer B Customer €
£°000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000
MASS 11,500 5,296 2,857 2,810 10,746 3,491 — 1,729
MCL 8,420 - - - - - - -
5C5 8,713 — - - 7,271 427 - -
SEA 9,675 16,902 — - 7,980 6,922 2,449 -
38,308 22,158 2,857 2,810 26,007 10,840 2,449 1,729
2 Employee beneht expense (including Directors)

2015 2014
£'000 £ 000
Wages and salaries 27,307 23,331
Social security casts 2,883 2,588
Defined contributon penston plan costs 2,022 2,092
Share-based payments 198 235
32,410 28,246

Average number of employees (including Directors)
2015 2014
Number Number
QOther operational (including production) 383 307
Managed services g6 75
Total operational 469 382
Administraticn and support 178 122
647 504

The above disclosures include Directars Directors’ emoluments and share option detarls are disclosed separately in the Remuneration & Appointments
Committee report on pages 33 to 35

3 Profit for the year
The profit for the year has been arrived at after charging

2015 2014

Notes £'000 £ 000

Net foreign exchange losses 18 38 103
Research and development costs 9,411 9,381
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 10 957 612
Amaortisation of other intangible assats 9 3,602 64
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses 36,311 19,093
Staff costs (excluding share-based payments) 2 32,212 28,011
Share based payments 20 198 235

All of the above charges are in respect of continuing operations

The fees payable to the auditor for audit and non-audit services are disclosed in the Corporate Governance report on pages 29 to 30
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4 Finance income

Financial statements

2015 2014
£'000 £ 000
Interest on bank deposits 87 125
All finance income 15 1n respect of continuing operations
5 Finance costs
2015 2014
£'000 £ 000
Loans and finance leases 5 -
All finance costs are In respect of contthuing operations
6 Income tax charge
2015 2014
£'000 E 000
Corporahion 1ax in respect of this year 1,485 1,222
Corporahon tax in respect of prior years (204) {482)
1,281 740
Deferred tax in respect of this year (518] 103
Ceferred tax In respect of prior years (56) -
(574) 103
707 843

The corporabon tax is calculated at 20 92% {2014 22 83%) of the estmated assessable profit for the year, as disclosed below

The current tax in respect of the year ended 30 April 2015 includes £28,000 credit {2014 £186,000 charge) in respect of exceptional items The deferred
tax tncludes a credit of £721,000 n respect of amartisation of ather intangible assets {2014 £15,000) and a charge of £8 000 (2014 £37,000) In respect

of marking forward exchange contracts to market at the year end The deferred tax 1s further explained in note 17

The tax charge for the year 1s reconciled to the profit per the Consalidated income statement for the year ended 30 April 2015 as follows

2015 2014

£'000 £'000
Profit before tax on continuing operatans 5,947 6,743
Tax at the UK corporation tax rate of 20 92% {2014 22 83%) 1,244 1,535
Tax effect of expenses that are not deducnble in determining taxable profit 124 164
Tax effect of R&D tax credits {338) (514)
Tax effect of exceptional items that are nhot recagnised in determining taxable profit 130 502
Tax effect of change in tax rate from 23% to 20% 1n 2014 2015 no change in tax rate - {49)
Tax effect of recognising unutiised trading losses at SEA {78} -
Tax effect of statutory deduction for share options exercised {204) {126)
Tax effect of deferred tax movement on share opttons 1o be exercised 87 {191)
Tax effect of prior year R&D tax credits {170} {542}
Tax effect of other prior year adjustments {90} 60
Tax charge for the year 707 843
The UK corporation tax rate for the year ended 30 April is calculated at 20 92%, based upon eleven months at 21 0% and one month at 20 0%
7 Dividends

2015 2014

£'000 £'000
Arnounts recognised as distnbutions to equity holders in the period
Final dvidend in respect of the year ended 30 April 2014 at 2 80 pence per ordinary share (2013 2 30 pence per ordinary share) 1,121 926
Interim dwadend in respect of the year ended 30 April 2015 at 1 60 pence per ordinary share (2014 1 40 pence per ordinary share} 644 556

1,765 1,482
Proposed final dividend for the year ended 30 Apnil 2015 at 3 40 pence per ordinary share (2014 2 80 pence per ordinary share) 1,369 1,108

The proposed final dividend 1s subject to approval by shareholders at the AGM to be held on 22 September 2015 and has not been included as a hability

in these hinancial staternents

If approved, this dividend will be paid on 30 September 2015 to shareholders on the register as at 28 August 2015
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Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 30 Apnil 2015

7 Dwidends conttnued
The Cohort plc Employee Benefit Trust, which holds ordinary shares in Cohart ple, representing 1 22% (2014 3 36%) of the Company's called up share
capital, bas agreed to waive all dividends due to it in accordance with an arrangement dated 20 November 2009

8 Earnings per share
The earnings per share are calculated as follows

2015 2014

Weighted Weighted

average average
number Earnings number Earnings
of shares Earnings per share of shares Earnings per share
Number £'000 Pence Number £ 000 Pence
Basic earnings {net profit attnbutable to equity holders of Cahort plc} 40,071,658 5,628 14 04 40,010,675 5,900 14 75
Share ophons 894,739 —_ — 1,038,715 - —
Diluted earnings 40,966,397 5,628 1374 41,047,390 5,900 14 37

The basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the parent company {Cohort plc) by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in 1ssue during the year The diluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the
parent company by the weighted average number of shares in 1ssue during the year as adjusted for the effects of potennally dilutive share options

The weighted average number of shares for each of the years ended 30 April 2015 and 30 Aprii 2014 15 after deducting the own shares

In addibon, the adjusted earnings per share of the Group are calculated in a similar manner to the basic earnings per share with the adjustments
ta the basic earnings as shown below

015 2014
Weighted Weighted
average average
number Earnings number Earnings
of shares Eamings per share of shares Earnings per share
Notes Number £'000 Pence Number £'000 Pence
Basic earnings 40,071,658 5,628 14 04 40,010,675 5,800 14 75
Charge on marking forward exchange contracts to market
value at the year end {plus income tax charge of £8,000,
2014 charge of £37,000) 18 — 23 - — 140 -
{Profit}/loss on disposal of SEA's Space business {including tax
credit of £28,000, 2014 charge of £186,000) 31 — {72) - - 1,572 —
Acquisibion costs of MCL 29 —_ 197 - - — —
Acquisihion costs of 1+$ 30 - 427 - - — —
Amortsanon of other intangible assets {net of iIncome tax
credit of £721,000, 2014 £15,000) 9 - 1,992 — — 49 -
Adjusted earnings 40,071,658 8,195 2045 40,010,675 7,661 1915
Share optons 894,739 - - 1,036,715 - —
Dtluted adjusted earnings 40,966,397 8,195 2000 41,047,390 7.661 18 66

The adjusted earnings are in respect of continuing operatians

The adjustment to earnings for calculating the adjusted earnings per share exclude the non-controlling interest in respect of the charge in marking forward
exchange contracts to market {£23,000 of £46,000) and the amertisation of other intangible assets in respect of MCL (£337,000 of £2,881,000) both ad)justments
net of appropriate tax adjustment in each case

4 8 Cohort plc
Annual Report and Acepunts 2015




9 Goodwill and other intangible assets

Financial statements

Goodwill QOther intangible assets
SEA MASS MCL Group SEA MASS MCL Group

£ 000 £'000 £'000 £ 000 £ 000 £'000 £ 000 £000
Cost
At 1 May 2013 18,895 12,500 — 31,395 1,160 4,340 — 5,500
At 1 May 2014 18,895 12,500 — 31,395 1,160 4,340 - 5,500
Acquistion of MCL - - 2,398 2,398 — — 15,678 15,678
Acquisition of J+S 5,048 - - 5,048 6,795 - - 6,795
At 30 April 2015 23,943 12,500 2,398 28,841 7,955 4,340 15,678 27,973
Amortisation
At 1 May 2013 - — — — 1,160 4,276 — 5,436
Charge for the year ended 30 Apnil 2014 2,000 — - 2 000 — &4 — 64
At May 2014 2,000 — — 2,000 1160 4,340 - 5,500
Charge for the year ended 30 Apnil 2015 - — — — 1,378 - 2,224 3,602
At 30 April 2015 2,000 - - 2,000 2,538 4,340 2,224 9,102
Net book value
At 30 April 2015 21,943 12,500 2,398 36,841 5,417 - 13,454 18,871
At 30 April 2014 16,895 12 500 - 29,395 — — — -

Goodwll arises on the acquisiion of subsidiaries These subsidiaries are the cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated

The amortisation charge 1= disclosed as "Amartisation of other intangible assets” in the income statement

50 001% of MCL was acquired 9 July 2014 MCL has been accounted for as a 100% subsidiary with the non contralling interest disclosed separately

100% of J+S was acquired 1 October 2014

The goodwill of SEA was reduced by £2 Om following the disposal of SEA’s Space business This reduchian reflects the historical goodwill associated with the
Space business when SEA was acqguired in November 2007 This reduction was charged as an excepttonal item as part of the loss on disposal of SEA’s Space

business 1n the year ended 30 April 2014 {see note 31)

The Group tests goodwill biannually for impairment, or more frequently if there are indications that goodwill might be impaired

The recoverable amounts of the subsidiaries {cash-generating units) are determined from value-in-use calculahons

The value-in-use calculations take the cash flows of each cash-generating unit and apply the Group's weighted average cost of capital (WACC) to this
to determine if there i1s any impairment of the cash-generating units* goodwill
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Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 30 Aprnil 2015

9 Goodwill and other intangible assets continued
In assessing any impairment of goodwil!, each value in-use calculahion makes a number of estimates, which use the same basis as used in previous years, as follows

Basis of estimate

Cash flow As1n previous years, the cash flows for the years ended 30 April 2016, 2017 and 2018 are based upon the cash-generating uruts'
budget and forecasts for those years These cash flows are based upon the revenue, margin and overhead cost forecasts for each
business taking account of the run-off of order book, renewal of existing business and winning of new business Historically these
cash flow forecasts have been a reasonable forecast of actual performance over the period of measurement Costs reflect
inflahon rates, currently assumed at 2% (2014 3%) With regard to the revenue, margin and overhead cost forecasts the key
assumptions underlying these inputs are that current projects contracted will continue as per agreement, that government
defence spending will remain largely consistent in the future and that each cash generating unit will continue to be as successful
in competing for new contracts as it has been historically Currently a large proporhon of revenue for 2016, 2017 and 2018 1s
already under contract and, as such, the mamn assumptions related to revenue volumes are in periods after 2018 where there
1s greater uncertainty and risk

Growth rate The cash fiows for each cash-generating unit from years 4 to 20 inclusive are based upon the forecast cash flow for the yeasr ended
30 Apnit 2018 to which a growth rate of 1 5% 1s applied each year {2014 1 5%) This rate reflects a prudent view of recent UK growth
rates and s below the historically higher UK inflation rate of 2 25% The growth rate 1s similar for both cash-generating units as a
significant proportion of their businessis with the same customes, the UK MOD As a significant proportion of the business (s with
UK Government, a more prudent growth rate has heen used to reflect lower growth rates of UK Goverhment expenditure

WACC comprises a number of elements as follows

Value of equity Calculated as the 1ssued share capital of the Group {Cohort plc) multiplied by the closing share price at 30 Apnt 2015 of £2 65
{2014 £1 66)

Risk free interest rate Is based upon ten year UK Government gilt rate of 1 88% (2014 2 69%)

Beta factor Dernived from analyst esimates provided by the Group s NOMAD {Investec} and reflects a range of ocutcomes from 0 62 to 0 63
{2014 0 54 to 0 65)

Equity risk premium Is the equity risk premium of the Group of 8 33% (2014 8 58%) to which 15 added a further range of nisk premium to reflect the
low hquidity and risk of AIM stocks, 4% to $%

Cost of debt The Group has no debt and cost of debt 1s therefore zerg {2014 zero}

The Group's pre-tax WACC applied to each cash generating unit’s cash flows was 12 9% (2014 15 2%} The Group WACC has been deemed appropriate
to use for each cash-generating unit as all funding 1s cross guaranteed and therefare the same cost of funding 1s incurred by each cash generating unit

On the basis of these tests, no impairment of goodwill has arisen in the year ended 30 April 2015 in respect of either MASS or SEA The goodwill of SEA1s
more sensitve with na impairment at the Group's WACC of 12 9% but is impaired by £0 4m if the Graup'’s pre-tax WACC increases to 23 9% The Group s
pre-tax WACC increases to 23 9% when the premium applied to the equity risk to reflect the Group’s AIM listing 1s increased from 4% to 14% The likelihood
of this increase in the WACC 15 considered low

The other intangible assets arose on the acquisition of the subsidiaries Both the MCL and J+5 intangible assets are in respect of contracts acquired and to
be secured and are further analysed in notes 29 and 30 respectively The J+5 other intangible asset 1s disclosed as part of SEA

The MASS other intangible asset, which 1s now fully amartised, was in respect of contracts acquired and to be secused as well as in respect of MASS's
acquisition of Abacus EW

The SEA other intangible asset, which 1s now fully amortised, was in respect of cantracts acquired on the acquisiton of SEA
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10 Property, plant and equipment

Financial statements

Land and  Fixtures and

buldings  equipment Total
Group £'000 £'000 £ 000
Cost
At 1 May 2013 6,762 4,437 11,199
Additions 1,878 3496 2,274
Dizposals — (266) {266}
At 1 May 2014 8,640 4,567 13,207
On acquisibon 961 787 1,748
Additions 125 938 1,063
Disposals (34} n (111}
At 30 April 2015 9,692 6,215 15,907
Depreciation
At 1 May 2013 835 3,472 4,307
Charge in the year 136 476 612
Ehminated on disposal - {214) {214)
At 1 May 2014 a71 3,734 4,705
Charge in the year 215 742 957
Elirminated on disposal (34) (59) (93)
At 30 Apnl 2015 1,152 4,417 5,569
MNet book vatue
At 30 Apnil 2015 8,540 1,798 10,338
At 30 Apnil 2014 7 669 833 8,502

The Company's property, plant and equipment was £7,000 at 30 Apnl 2015 (2014 £11,000)
The net book value of hxed assets held under finance leases at 30 April 2G15 was £13,000 (2014 £N1)

The deprecration charge 1s disclosed within “administrative expenses” in the Consolidated income statement

The valuation (in accordance with Internabonal Vaiuation Standards) of the Group's land and buildings at 30 April 2015 suppaorts the above net book value

The Group's land and bulldings as disclosec above are the cost of purchase plus refurbishment and the valuabon on acquisiben As such the Group has no

revaluation reserve at this tme

The fixed assets disposed of as part of the disposal of SEA’s Space business {see note 31) are shown within disposals for the year ended 30 April 2014 1n the

above table

11 Investment n subsidiaries and joint ventures

Z014
£ 000

Campany
2015 2014
£000 £000

Subsidiary undertakings
Joint ventures

51,376 42 648

51,376 42,648
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Notes to the financial statements continued

for the year ended 30 Apnl 2015

11, Investment in subsidianes and joint ventures continued
A list of all the investments in joint ventures and subsidiaries is as follows

Proportion of
sharehotding
Country of Type of and voting
Name of company registranon shares nghts held Nature of business
Directly owned
Systems Consultants Services Limited [SCS) England Ordwnary 100% Technical consultancy
MASS Lirmited England Ordmary 100% Haolding company of MASS Consultants Limited
SEA {Group) Limited {SEA) England Ordinary 100%  Holding company of Systems Engineering & Assessment timited,
Beckmngton Castle Limited
Marlborough Communications {Holdings) Ltd England Ordinary 50 001% Holding company of Marlborough Communicabons Ltd
Bigital Millenium Map LLP {DMM) England Ordinary 25% 20 digital mapping —in adrministration
Held through a subsidiary
MASS Consultants Limited {MASS) England Ordinary 100% Electronic warfare, managed services, secure communications
and IT support services
Systems Engineering & Assessment Limited England Ordinary 100% Delwerer of systems engmneernng, software and electronic
engineering services and soluhons to the defence, transport
and offshore energy markets and 1s also the halding campany of
148 Limited
145 Lirmuted England Ordinary 100% Subsidiary of System Engineering and Assessment Limited
and prowdes product and services to the defence and offshore
energy markets
Marlborough Communications Limited England COrdinary 50 001% Designs, sources and supports advanced electrontc and
surveillance technology
Beckington Castle Limited England Ordinary 100% Property company holding freehold of Beckington Castle
and SEA's Bristol office
Abacus EW Consultancy Limited England Ordinary 100% Dormant

DMM, which 1s retained as an investment of the Group, 15 not accounted for under the equity method of accounting as the Group ceased to have an achive

parhcipabon from 1 November 2006

All shares held in subsidiaries and joint ventures are the same class and carry equal weighting ta any shares held by other shareholders

The Group has received and continues to recetve a return on its original tnvestment in DMM This income of £31 875 {2014 £16,100) s disclosed
In “adrministrative expenses within the Consolidated income statement

Company
The Company’s investments in subsidianes are as follows
MASS MCL 5C5 SEA Total
£'000 £ 000 E 000 £ 000 £'000
At 1 May 2013 14 538 — 1,704 26,450 42,692
Share-based payments 83 - 45 65 194
Vested in year {98} — {66) [74) {238}
At 1May 2014 14 523 - 1,684 26,441 42,648
Acquired - 8,847 — — 8,847
Share-based payments 75 S 28 56 164
Vested in year {105} — {74) (104} {283}
At 30 April 2015 14,493 8,852 1,638 26,393 51,376
12 Inventories
2015 2034
£'000 E 0OC
Finished goods 1,078 297

The wventory at 30 April 2015 15 after a stack provision of £500,000 (2014 £6,000)
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Frnancial staternents

13 Trade and other receivables

Group Company

2015 2014 2015 2014

£'000 £ 000 £'000 £'000

Trade receivahles 10,659 13,068 - -
Allowance for doubtful debts {6) {3) - -
10,653 13,065 -_ -

Amounts recoverable on contracts 2,927 2,115 - -
Prepayments and accrued income 5,948 3,818 219 296
Amount recewvable in respect of disposal of SEA's Space business - 4,000 - -
19,523 22,998 219 296

The average credit penod taken on sales of goods 15 24 days (2014 43 days) Of the trade receivables balance, £2 8m was considered overdue at

30 April 2015 {2014 £3 6m) reflecting the improved debtor days and working capttal management across the Graup Overdue is defined as trade
recevables shil outstanding beyond invorce terms (typically 30 days) The allowance for doubtful debt 1s determined by management’s best estimate
by reference to the particular receivables over which doubt may exist None of the cther recewvables were past due

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other recevables approximates to their far values The largest trade recevable to which
the Group 1s exposed at 30 April 2015 1s the UK MOD, with a balance outstanding of £1 9m (2014 £2 9m) Other customers wha represent more than
5% of the total balance of trade recevables include

2015 2014

£m £m

Cusiomer A 16 19
Customer B o7 -
Customer C - 12
Customer D 01 07

Trade recewvables include less than £0 1m {2014 £1 9m) denominated in foreign currency
The majority of the Group's customers are UK or overseas government argarisations and larger prime cantractors in the defence and transport sectors

The Group assesses all new customers for creditworthiness before extending credit In the case of overseas customers, the Group utilises various payment
protection mechanisms including but not himited to export credit guarantees, letters of credit and advance payments

Trade receivables disclosed above include amounts which are past due at the reporting date but against which the Group has not recognised an allowance
for doubtful debts because the credit quality of the customer 1s not considered to have changed and the amount due 1s considered fully recoverable

2015 2014

Ageing af past due but not impaired receables £'000 £ 000
30-60 days 1,623 3,156
60-90 days 333 268
>80 days 843 217
2,799 3,641

1015 2014

Movement in the allowance for doubtfu! debts £'000 £ 000
Balance at 1 May 3 —
Impairment losses recognised 3 3
Amounts written off as uncollectable in year - -
Amounts recovered during year — —
Impairment losses reversed — —
Balance at 30 Apnl 6 3
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Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 30 April 2015

14 Trade and other payables

Group Company

115 2014 015 2014

£'000 £000 £000 £ 000

Advance receipts — 837 -_ -
Trade payables and accruals 11,228 3,952 60 170
Other payables — — — —
Sccial secunity and other taxes 2,740 2,335 97 86
Accruals and deferred income 11,405 6,173 761 420
Armnounts due to subsidiary undertiakings - - 1,878 22
25,373 13,297 2,796 698

Trade pavyables and accruals principally comprise ameunts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing contract costs Advance receipts reflect invoicing
ahead of work done Iin accordance with contracted terms The average credit period taken for trade purchases i1s 68 days (2014 42 days} The Group has
financial nsk managerment policies In place to ensure that all payables are paid within the pre agreed credit terms [see Risk Management, pages 22 to 24)
The higher average credit period reported reflects the large amount of purchases in the final quarter which were not due for payment before the year end

Trade payables and accruals, other payables and taxes are alt due for settlement within 12 months of the year end, the majority within three months
Social secunity and other taxes include employment taxes and VAT

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade payables approximates to their fair values

Total payable includes £1 9m (2014 £0 3m) denorminated in foreign currency

15 Bank borrowings

Group Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
£'000 £ 000 £'000 £ 000
Bank overdrafts - — 7,033 8,538
Finance leases 14 — — —
14 - 7,033 8,538
These borrowings are repayable as follows
Group Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
£'000 £'000 £'000 £ 000
On demand or within cne year 4 - 7,033 8,538
In the second year a4 — —_ —
In the third to Afth years inclusive 6 - — —
14 - 7,033 8,538
Less amounts due for settlement within 12 months {shown under current habilites) (4} - {7,033) (8.538)
Amount due for settlemnent after 12 months 10 - - -
The weighted average interest rates paid were as follows
2015 2014
% %
Bank overdrafts 225 -
Bank loans 450 -
Frnance leases 460 —

The bank overdrafts are repayable on demand The Group operates a sterling current account offset facility The interest rate applicable to the overdraft
facility when drawn 1s at 2 25% (2014 2 25%) abave the Bank of England base rate Overdrafts in currency ather than sterling are not part of the sterling
current account offset facility and are disclosed as part of bank borrowings above

A loan of £129 000 with Clydesdale Bank was acquired with J+5 on 1 October 2014 Ths loan was fully paid off by 30 Apnl 2015 Interest charge incurred
on this loan in the period from 1 October 2014 to 30 April 2015 was £3,000 at an average interest rate of 4 5%

At 30 April 2015 the Group had available £7 5m of undrawn overdraft facility The Directors consider the carrying amount of bank borrowings approximate
ta their fair value

A finance lease of £16,000 was acquired with 1+5 on 1 October 2014 £2,000 was paid 1n the year ended 30 April 2015
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15 Bank borrowings continued

The Group’s net funds at 30 April 2015 of £19 7m are held with the following banks

Financial statements

Moody s
credit rating
of bank
2015 2014 asat
1£'000 £000 25 June 2015
Royal Bank of Scotland Plc 16,850 10,256 Al
Barclays Bank plc 2,606 - A2
Lloyds TS8 Bank plc - S 063 Al
Santander UK plc - 1,003 A2
Clydesdale Bank 245 16 Baa2
15,701 16 338
16 Prowisions
Other
contract
MCL related
earn out Warranty provisians Total
Group £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 1 May 2013 - 130 781 911
{Credited)/charged to the yncome statement - 152 {119} 33
uUnlised - - {153} (153)
At 1 May 2014 - 282 509 791
On acquisition 983 - 123 1,106
{Credited}/charged to the iIncome statement - (59) 98 39
Utilised (983) {35) {360) {1,378)
At 30 Apnl 2015 —_ 188 370 558
Provisions due in less than one year - 188 370 558
Provisions due in greater than one year — —_ - —
At 30 Apnl 2015 - 188 370 558
Provisions due in less than one year — 282 509 791
Prowisions due in greater than one year — — - —
At 30 April 2014 - 282 509 791

The MCL earn out provision of £983,000 was paid to the vendors of MCL on 30 March 2015

The other provisions arising on acquisitien are in respect of J+5 [see note 30) They were either acquired or arose on fair value adjustments to the 145

balance sheet acquired and have been charged against goodwill on acguisibon

The warranty provisions are management’s best estimates of the Group’s llability under warrantes granted on software and other products supphed and
are based upon past experience The timing of such expenditure 1s uncertain, although warrantes generally have a ime limit of no more than 12 months,

unless a longer warranty period 1s purchased by the customer

Warranty provisions are reviewed at the half year and year end in respect of actual spend and the remaining cbhigations to be fulfilled

Other contract related provisions are management’s best estimate of the Group's exposure to contract related costs and undertakings which are in addition
to contract accruals and include contract loss provisions The timing of these 1s uncertain but expected to be resolved within 12 months of the balance sheet date
These arise where a service or product has been previously delivered to the customer and the Group receives a claim or an adverse indication in respect

of the work done Where the amount required 1s uncertain or the Group disputes the amount of the ¢claim, provision 1s made for the best estmate of the

amount that will be required to settle the issue

Other contract related provistons zlso include contract loss provisions in respect of contracts where the esbmated cost at completion exceeds the total
expected revenue of the contract A contract loss pravision i1s recognised as a provision in full immedsately as 1t arises The contract loss provisions are

held in respect of contracts which are expected to complete in the next 12 months

Other contract related provisions alsc include property difapidation prowisions and other trade related 1ssues which may not be related to a trading contract

These balances are immaternal
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Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 30 Apnil 2015

17 Deferred tax

Other
Accelerated Other shaort term
tax ntangible  Revaluation timing
depreciation assets af bultding differences Taxipsses Share options Denvatives Group
£'000 £ 00C £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £'000 £ 000
At 1 May 2013 {212} 15} 463} 46 424 - 9 {217)
{Charge)/credit to the iIncome statement
in respect of the current tax year {11) 15 10 {28} {287) 181 {42) {152}
Effect of change In tax rate in the
income statement 29 — 60 (2) {18) {25) 5 49
At 1 May 2014 [194) - {399) 16 119 166 (28) {320)
On acquisition - (4,495) — — — — — {4,495)
{Charge)/cradit to the iIncome statement
in respect of prior year tax 13 - - 60 {45) - 28 56
{Charge)/credit to the iIncome statement
inrespect of the current tax year {48) 721 10 4 {74 {87} {8} 518
At 30 Apnl 2015 {229) {3,774) {389) 80 - 79 8} {4,241)

Certain deferred tax assets and hiabilihes have been offset where the Group has a legally enforceable right to do so The following 1s the analysis of the
deferred tax balances {after offset) for financial reporting purposes

2015 2014

£'000 £ 000

Deferred tax assets 104 301
Deferred tax hatilibes {4,345) {621}
{4,241) {320}

Deferred tax labilibes in respect of other intangible assets were recognised on the acquisibon of MCL {£3,136,000) and 45 (£1 359,000} and will be credited
to the income statement as the respective other intangible asset 1s amortised {see notes 29 and 30)

The Group has recognised a deferred tax asset of ENIl (2014 EO0 1m} for unutilised trading losses within its subsidiary SEA of £Nil {2014 £0 6m), the losses
having been fully utihsed in the year ended 30 Aprd 2015

A deferred tax iabiity i respect of the revaluation of a freehcld building arose on the acquisiion of SEA and 15 the potennal tax hability payable on the
revaluation gain in respect of the building with reference to its historical cost

The Company's deferred tax balance at 30 April 2015 was an asset of £32,000 (2014 £34,000) being £13,000 {2014 £Nil) in respect of other short term
nming differences, accelerated tax depreciation of £4,000 (2014 £4,000) and share options of £15,000 (2014 £30,000}

As announced on 21 March 2013 a tax rate of 20%, apphcable frorm 1 April 2015, has been used to calculate the deferred tax balances as at 30 April 2015
and 30 Apnil 2014

18 Derivative financial instruments
The Group has derwvative fimancial mstruments as follows

2015 2014
£000 £'000
Assets
Foreign currency forward contracts - -
Liabilities
Foreign currency forward contracts {38) {142)

The changes in marking the outstanding foreign currency forward contracts to fair value {which are based upon quoted market valuanions) are credited

or charged to the Consohidated income staterment as “charge on marking forward exchange contracts to market vafue at the year end” They are in respect
of trading contracts undertaken by the Group and are all i respect of MCL and are disclosed within MCL's operating profit in the segmental analysis

[see note 1 2014 SEA) The charge (2014 charge) to the Consolidated income statement for the year ended 30 April 2015 was as follows

2015 2014
£000 £000
Fareign currency forward contracts (38) {103}
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Financial statements

18 Derivative financial instruments continued

Currency derivatves

The Group uthises forward currency contracts ta hedge significant future transactions and cash flows The Group Is party to a number of foreign currency
forward contracts in the management of its foreign exchange rate exposure

The changes in total outstanding commutted foreign currency forward contracts of the Group were as follows

Sall Buy Buy Sell Sell Buy
2015 £ 000 €000 £ 000 €000 £ 000 USS000
At forward exchange rates
At 1 May 2014 — — 4,001 4700 136 226
Contracts matured in period — — {4,001} {4,700) {135) (226)
New conitracts in period {99} {136] — — {1,780} {2,787}
At 30 April 2015 (99} {136) — — {1,780} {2,787)
Fair value adjustment - - (38}
At 30 April 2015 at spot rate {99) - {1,818)

The total fair value adjustment 1s £38,000 credit {2014 £142,000) and the change in the forward exchange fair values for the year ended 30 April 2015
15 £38,000 (30 April 2014 £103,000), which 1s included in the operating profit of the Group as a charge

Buy Sell Sell Buy
2014 £ 000 €000 £000 U55'000
At forward exchange rates
At 1 May 2013 8,475 9 969 480 763
Contracts matured in period (6 967) (8,198) (758) {1,238}
New contracts in pertod 2,493 2,929 414 701
At 30 April 2014 4,001 4,700 136 226
Fair valye adjustment {139) {3)
At 30 April 2014 a2 spot rate 3862 133
tiquidity risk
The maturity of the outstanding contracts was as follaws

Sell Buy Buy Sell
At 30 April 2015 £ 000 €000 £ 000 Us$'000
Within one year 99 136 1,780 2,787
One to two years — - - -
Greater than two years — - - -
At 30 Apnil 2015 at forward rate 99 136 1,780 2,787

Buy Sell Sell Buy
At 30 April 2014 £ 000 €000 £ 000 UssS 0oa
Within one year 3,709 4,357 136 226
One to two years 292 343 —_ -
Greater than two years _ - — _
At 30 Apnil 2014 at forward rate 4,001 4,700 136 226
The following signihcant exchange rates appled at 30 Apni

2015 2014
uss Euro uss Euro

06523 0 7289 05927 0 B216

Sensitivity analysis
A 10% strengthening of £ sterling against the above currencies at 30 Aprit 2015 would increase the reported operating profit by £174 000
{2014 reduction in reported operating profit of £366,000} in respect of marking these forward contracts to market
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for the year ended 30 April 2015

19 Share capital

2015 2014
Number Number
Allotted, called up and fully paid 10 pence ordinary shares 40,959,101 40,958 616
Mavement in allotted, called up and fully pard 10 pence ordinary shares
Number
At 1 May 2013 40,786,788
Share options exercised 171,828
At 30 April 2014 40,958,616
Share ophons exercised 485
At 30 April 2015 40,959,101
The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carry no nght to fixed income
Durtng the year ended 30 Apnl 2015, 485 ordinary shares (2014 171,828) in Cahort plc were 1ssued to sabsfy share ophons as follows
Number of
new shares Mid market
1ssued on  Share eption price of shares
exercise of exercise price Value on issue date
Date share options Pence £'000 Pence
28 July 2014 485 1545 <1 203

The 1ssue of these new shares has increased the value of 1ssued share capital by £49 and the share premium account by £700

20 Share options

The Group grants share options under the Cohort plc 2006 share option scheme to sentor management and key employees In addition the Group operates

a save as you earn [SAYE) scheme which I1s available to all employees
The details of the share option schemes are contained In the Remuneration & Appomntments Committee report on pages 33 to 35

The following options were outstanding at 30 Apnil 2015

30 April 2015 30 Apnil 2014
Exercise
price Vesnng Expiry Not Not
Scheme and grant date £ date date Vested vested Total Vested vested Tota!
Cohort plc 2006 share option scheme
8 Mar 2006 1230 8 Mar 2009 8 Mar 2016 13,504 - 13,904 66,554 — 66,554
19 Feb 2007 1770 20Feb 2010 19feb2017 86,241 - 86,241 99,941 - 95,941
11 Jul 2008 1890 122011 11l 2018 7,929 - 2,929 7,929 - 7,925
S Aug 2009 1715 6 Aug 2012 S Aug 2019 14,277 - 14,277 23,359 - 23,358
23 Jul 2010 0835 241yl2013 23 )ul 2020 262,466 - 262,466 337,868 - 337,868
27 Oct 2010 0770 28 0ct 2013 27 Oct 2020 12,935 - 12,935 44,935 - 44,935
26 Jul 2011 0915 2712014 26 Jul 2021 326,326 - 326,326 — 789,686 789,686
24 Jan 2012 1100 25Jan 2015 24 Jan 2022 17,000 - 17,000 - 34,000 34,000
2 Aug 2012 1165 3 Aug 2015 2 Aug 2022 - 450,666 450,566 — 469 500 469,500
9 Aug 2013 1675 10 Aug 2016 9 Aug 2023 - 278,017 278,017 — 309,250 309,250
11 Aug 2014 1975 12 Aug 2017 11 Aug 2024 - 253,852 253,852 — — —
310ct 2014 2425 01Nov2017 310ct 2024 - 28,000 28,000 - - -
741,078 1,010,535 1,751,613 580,586 1,602,436 2,183,022
Save As You Earn {SAYE) scheme
18 Aug 2009 1380 - - - - 31,320 31,320
27 Ju) 2010 0970 - 101,931 101,931 - 109 576 109,576
08 Aug 2011 0 885 - 495,492 49,492 - 219,879 219879
15 Aug 2012 1190 - 64,896 64,896 - 78,962 78,962
13 Aug 2013 1545 - 92,183 92,183 - 112 259 112,259
11 Aug 2014 2075 — 144,448 144,448 — -— —
_ 452,950 452,950 — 551,996 551,996
741,078 1,463,485 2,204,563 580,586 2,154,432 2,735,018

The SAYE ophons have maturity periods of three or five years from date of grant

5 8 Cobort ple
Annual Report and Accounts 2015




Ftnancial statements

20 Share optons continued

The Group plan prowides for a grant price equal to the clasing market price of the Group shares on the trading day prior to the date of grant The vesting
periad 15 generally three years, five years in the case of some SAYE options If options under the Cahort plc 2006 share optton scheme remain unexercised
after a period of ten years from the date of grant, the options expire Furthermore, options are forfeited if the employee leaves the Group before the
opttons vest

The movement in share ophons during the year s as follows

2015 2014
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise exercise
price price
Options £ QOphons £
Outstanding at 1 May 2,735,018 112 3,070,182 10}
Granted during the year 456,439 204 456,739 164
Forfeited during the year [109,667) 153 {223,979) 118
Ewercised during the year (854,327) 096 (489,535) 054
Expired during the year {22,900) 123 (78,389) 125
Qutstanding at 30 Apnl 2,204,563 135 2,735,018 112
Exercisable at 30 April 741,078 104 580,586 109

The weighted average share price at the date of exereise for share optons exercised during the year was £0 96 (2014 £0 94) The options outstanding at
30 April 2015 had a weighted average exercise price of £135{2014 £1 12) and a weighted average remaining contractual Iife of six years (2014 six years)

The exerased options in the year were satished by 853,842 shares from the Cohort plc Employee Benefit Trust {see nate 21) and by the 1ssue of 485 new
shares {see note 19)

In the vear ended 30 April 2015, options were granted as follows 273,352 on 11 August 2014, 28 000 on 31 October 2014 and 155 087 on 11 August 2014
for the SAYE The exercise prices of the options granted on those dates were £1 975, £2 425 and £2 075 respectively

In the year ended 30 April 2014, options were granted as follows 342,150 on 9 August 2013 and 114,589 on 13 August 2013 The exercise prices of the options
granted on those dates were £1 675 and £1 545 respectively

Share options granted during the current and previous years were valued using the Quoted Companies Alhance Model, a Black Scholes based binormial model
The inputs to this model for the current and previous years were as follows

2015 2014
Wetghted average share price £227 £181
Weighted average exercise price £135 £112
Expected volatiity 30% 32%
Risk free rate 096%-3 13% 096%-5 75%
Leaver rate {per annum) 10 0% 10 0%
Dividend yield 0 62%—1 36% 0 26%—1 96%

Expected volatility was determined by calculating the historical volatility of the Group's share price over the previous three years The leaver rate used in the
model 1s based on management’s best estimate

The Group recognised a cost of £198,000 {2014 £235,000) relating to share-based payment transactions which are all equity settled, an equivalent amount
being transferred to the share option reserve

The cost of share based payments isincluded in "administrative costs” within the Consohdated income statement
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21 Own shares

£000
Balance at 1 May 2013 731
Acquired in the year 1,979
Sald in the year (307)
Loss on shares sotd In the year (129)
Balance at 30 April 2014 2,274
Acquired in the year -
Sold In the year (822)
Loss on shares seld in the year [617)
Balance at 30 Apnl 2015 835

The own shares reserve represents the cost of shares in Cohort plc purchased in the market and held by the Cohort plc Employee Benefit Trust to sabsfy
ophons under the Group's share ophon {see note 20) and restricted share schemes (see Remuneration & Appointments Committee report on pages 33 to 35)

The number of ordinary shares in Cohort gle held by the Employee Benefit Trust at 30 April 2015 was 500,041 {2014 1,378,047}

No ordinary shares in Cohort ple were acquired in the year by the Employee Benefit Trust

Ordinary shares in Cohort plc were sold by the Employee Benefit Trust for the purposes of sansfying the exercise of share ophons as follows

{Loss)/gain
on sale
Exercise price per shara Number of Proceeds of shares
Pence shares sold £'000 £000
720 32,000 25 (29}
835 75,402 63 (63}
885 146,458 130 {115)
915 463,360 424 (322)
970 5,257 5 (4}
1100 17,000 19 (10}
1165 4,000 S {2)
1190 7,229 8 (4}
1230 52,650 65 [23)
1380 24,224 33 {7}
1545 647 1 —
1675 2,833 5 —
1715 9,082 15 -
1770 13,700 24 2
853,842 822 (577)

In addition, ordinary shares in Cohart plc were transferred at nil value realising a loss on sale of shares of £40,330 by the Employee Beneht Trust for the
purposes of sahsfying shares awarded to the Executive Directers {see Remuneration & Appointments Committee report on pages 33 to 3S) and senior
rmanagement under the Group’s Restricted Share Scheme

55,352 ordinary shares were awarded under the Restricted Share Scheme in August 2014 1n respect of the year ended 30 April 2014

62 163 shares remain held in the Employee Benefit Trust remain to he 1ssued under the Restricted Share Scheme on whtch a loss of 103,750 will be
recognised as they are I1ssued

The market valuanon of the ordinary shares in Cohort plc held by the Employee Benefit Trust at 30 Apnl 2015 was £1,325 109 (2014 £2,287,558)
The cost of operating the Employee Benefit Trust duning the year ended 30 April 2015 was £29,596 (2014 £27,205] and this cost 15 included within the

“administrative expenses” of the Consohdated income statement

22 Reserves

The Group {consohdated) and Company statements of changes in equity are disclosed as primary statements on pages 40 and 41 Below 1s a description
of the nature and purpose of the indevidual reserves

Share capital represents the nominal value of shares issued, including those issued to the Cohort plc Employee Benehit Trust (see note 15)

Share premium includes the amounts over the nominaf value 1n respect of share 1ssues in addihon, costs in respect of share 1ssues are debited
to this account

« Own shares held by the Group represent shares in Cohort plc All the shares are held by the Cohort pic Employee Beneft Trust (see note 21)

Share opbon reserve represents the cumulative share-based payment charged to reserves less the transfer to retained earnings on vesting of options

Gther reserve Thes represents the potential acquisiton cost to the Group for acquiring the non-controlled interest (49 999%) of MCL This reserve
15 expected to be utlhsed no later than 30 Apnil 2017

Retaned earmings include the realised gains and losses made by the Group and the Company
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23 Cash flow
a Net cash from operating achvities
Group Comgany

2015 2014 2015 2014

£'000 £ 000 £000 £ 000
Profit for the year 5,240 5,900 2,953 3,073
Adjustments for
Income tax expense/f{credit) 707 843 {70) {80)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 57 612 6 3
Amortisation of other intangible assets and goodwill 3,602 2,064 — —
Net finance income {82} {125) {80) {125)
Derwvative financiai instruments 38 103 —_ -
Share-based payment 198 235 35 42
Decrease in provisions {356) {120} - -
Operating cash flows before movernents in working capital 10,304 9,512 2,844 2,913
Decreasef{increase) in inventories A50 {69) —_ —
Decreasef{increase) in recervables 1,861 {5,613} 165 {154}
Increasef(decrease) in payables 7,390 {212) {1,016} 349

10,201 (5,894) {851} 195
Cash generated by operations 20,505 3,618 1,993 3,108
Income taxes paid {1,702) {1,042} {8} 131)
Interest paid {5} — {2} -
Net cash inflow from operating activities 18,798 2,576 1,983 3,077
b Cash and cash equivalents at 30 April 2015
Group Company

2015 2014 2015 2014

£/000 £ 000 £'000 £000
Cash and bank 19,701 10,256 - -
Short-term deposits - 6,082 - 6,082
Total cash and cash equivalents 19,701 16,338 - 6,082
Bank overdraft - - {7,033} {8,538)
Finance lease {14) — _ -
Total debt (18) — {7,033} (8,538)
Net funds 19,687 16,338 (7,033} (2,456}

Cash and cash equivelents compnise ¢ash held by the Group and short-term bank depesits with a maturity at commencement of three months or less

The carrying amounts of these assets approximate to their fair value

24 Operating lease arrangements

2015 2014

Group £'000 £ 000
Minimurn lease payments under operabing leases recognised as an expense In the year

—land and buildings 886 537

— other 215 198

1,101 735
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24 Operating {ease arrangements continued
At 30 Apnl 2015 the Group had outstanding commitments for future mimimum lease payments under non-cancellable operanng leases which fall due as follows

2015 2014
£'000 £'000
Land and bulldings
—leases which expire within one year 207 —
— leases which expire in the second to fifth year inclusive :1:1:] 1,328
—leases which exptre after five years 3,618 666
4,713 1,994
COther
— leases which expire within one year 30 3
—leases which expire in the second to fifth year inclusive 263 209
- leases which expire after five years - —
293 232
5,006 2,226

Significant leasing arrangements held by the Group are in respect of its operating facilifies in Aberdeen, Barnstaple, Bristol, Linceln and Theale

In respect of all the Group’s operating leases (including the Company’s), there 1s no contingent rent payable, no escalation clauses and no restrictions
for further leasing or restrichions on the Group’s ability to access debt or pay dividends

None of the significant operating leases entered into by the Group has any renewal or purchase options

2015 2014
Company £'000 £ 000
Mintmum lease payments under operating leases recognised as an expense in the year
- land and buildings 38 38

At 30 Aprit 2015 the Company had outstanding commutments for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows

2015 2014
£'000 £00C
Land and buildings
— leases which expire within one year — —

25 Commutments
There was £Nil of capital commitments at 30 April 2015 (2014 £1,781)

26 Pension commitments
The Group makes contribunons to defined contribunon stakeholder pension schemes The contributions for the year of £2,022,000 {2014 £2,092,000]
were charged to the income statement Cantributions outstanding at 20 April 2015 were £140,316 (2014 £75,000)

27 Contingent habilities
At 30 Apref 2015 the Group had in place bank guarantees of £175,000 (2014 £175,000) in respect of leased propertes and £1,593,000 (2014 £1,180,000)
in respect of trading contracts The Group 1s not aware of any condttions which would realise these contingent liabilines

28 Related party transactions
Balances and transachions between the Company and its subsidianies, which are related parhes, have been eliminated on consolidation However, the key
transachons are drsclosed as follows

Management Dividends  Group refief

fees received Rent received received

fram paid to from from

subsidiaries  subsidiaries  subsidiaries  subsidiaries

£000 £'000 £ 000 £'000

2015 1,517 E) 3,500 88
2014 1,300 38 3,240 52

There were no transactions between the Group and its joint venture, Digital Millennium Map LLP {DMM), with the exception of receipt of investment
income {see note 11)

The relatonship with DMM s 25% joint venture owned by Cohort plc From 1 November 2006 this has been accounted for as an investment, the Group
no longer having an achive participation in this entity

The Group 1s expected to have no significant transactions with DMM
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28 Related party transactions continued
During the year ended 30 April 2015, the Directors of Cohort plc recewed divdends from the Company as follows

2015 2014

£ £

5 Carter 469,292 394,632
N Prest 91,722 77,129
A Thomis 2,881 1,501
Sir Robert Walmsley 1,102 926
S Walther 2,723 1,178

567,720 475,366

Further details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out (n the Remuneration & Appointments Committee report {pages 33 to 35)

The aggregate remuneration {excluding share option costs) of the key management of the Group was as follows

2015 2014

£ £

Salary (including any allowances, benehts and employer’s NI} 1,261,236 1,157,028
Employers pension contnbution 91,023 87,704

Long-term benefits — —

1,352,259 1,244,732

The key management of the Group 1s the Board of Cohort plc plus each subsidiary's managing director

29 Acquisition of Marlborough Communications Limited {MCL})
Cohort plc acquired 50 001% of Marlborough Communications {Holdings) Limited, which in turn holds 100% of Marlborough Communications Ltd (MCL),
on 9 luly 2014

The Group has recognised 100% of MCL's result and net assets from that date as it has effecove control

Book value Fair value
£ 000 £ 000
Recognised amounts of sdentihable assets acquired and Labilities assumed
Property, plant and equipment 146 146
Other intangibte assets - 15,678
Inventory Q4 94
Trade and other recevables 357 397
Trade and other payables (3,130 {3,430}
Deferred tax - (3,136)
Cash 3,149 3,149
656 12,898
50 001% acquired 6,449
Goodwill 2,398
Total consideration 8,847
Satished by
Cash 8,847
Total consideration transferred 8847
Net cash outflow arising on acquisihon
Cash consideranion 8,847
Less cash and cash equivalents acquired {3,149)
5,698

Of the cash consideration, £7,864,000 was paid on completion and a further earn out of £983,000 pad 30 March 2015
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29 Acquisition of Marlborough Communications Limited {MCL) continued
Other intangible assets of £15 7m and their esimated useful lives are analysed as foltows

Other
\ntangble
asset Fstimated iife
£ 00O Years
Contracts acquired 1,345 12%
Marketing agreements, future orders and prospects 14,333 450
15,678

A deferred tax hability of £3 1m in respect of the other intangible asset balance above was established on acqursition and 15 disclosed as part of the
deferred tax hability

The goodwill of £2 4m ansing from the acquisiion represents the customer contacts, supplier relationships and know how to which ne certain value
can be ascribed None of the goodwill 1s expected to be deductible for income tax purposes

The non-controlling interest share of the goodwill of MCL was £2 2m
Acquisiien costs of £197,000 0 respect of MCL were charged as an exceptional item in the Consolidated income statement
MCL contributed £10 1m of revenue and £1 3m of adjusted aperating profit to the Group for the penod from 9 July 2014 to 30 April 2015

The Sale and Purchase Agreement in respect of the acquisiton of MCL includes an option for the purchase of the remaining shares {49 995%) in MCL
the non-controlling rnterest

This option 1s exercisable by 31 December 2016 and is capped at £12 5Sm If the performance of MCL in the period to 30 September 2016 15 such that the
amount payable for the non-controlhng interest’s shares exceeds the cap, the Group has the right to negohate the amount payable at that me or not to
acquire the non-contraiting interest

The non cantrolling interest 1s entitled to parhcipate in any dividends payable by MCL in the period to 30 September 2016

In accordance with IFRS 3 the Group has ascribed a value to the eption to acquire the non controlling interest of MCL This value 1s £12 5m and the optien
1s shown as a nan-current hability and, as the non controlling interest has a right to dividends, in the other reserves as "option for acquiring non controlling
nterest in MCL'

30 Acquisition of J45 Limited ()+$)
The Group's subsidiary SEA acquired 100% of 1+5 Umited {J+5) on 1 October 2014 for a cash consideration of £11 7m No further consideration 1s payable
in respect of this acquisition

Book value Fair value
£ 000 £ 000
Recocgrised amounts of identfiable assets acquired and habilibes assumed
Property plant and equipment 2669 1,329
Other intangible assets 1,069 6,795
Inventory 1,956 1,231
Trade and other receivables 1,997 1900
Trade and other payables {2,510) {2,988)
Provisians {123) (123)
Deferred tax {214) {1,359)
Cash 41 41
Bank borrowings and finance leases {145) {145)
4,740 6,681
Goodwill 5,048
Total consideranon 11,729
Satisfied by
Cash 11729
Net cash outfiow afising on acquisition
Cash consideration 11,729
Less net cash acquired {41)
11 688
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30 Acquisition of 1+5 Limited (J+5) continued

Other intangible assets of £6 8m and their estimated useful lives are analysed as follows

Cther
intangible
asset Esumated life
€ 000 Years
Contracts acquired 6,795 95

A deferred tax hability of £1 4m in respect of the other intangible asset balance above was established on acquisition and 1s disclosed as part of the
deferred tax hiability

The goodwsll of £5 Om arising from the acquisiton represents the customer contacts, suppher relationships and know-how to which no certain value can
be ascribed Mone of the goodwill 1s expected to be deductible for income tax purposes

The fair value adjustments apphed to the acguired J+5 balance sheet reflect a reduchon in assets of £3 2m due 1o policy alignments, write down of assets
of £0 3m and the recognibon of other intangible assets {net of deferred tax) of £5 4m

Acquisition costs of £427,000 1n respect of 1+5 were charged as an exceptional item in the Consolidated income statement
145 contributed revenue of £7 9m and adjusted operating profit of £0 1m to the Group’s adjusted operating profit for the period from 1 October 2014
to 30 April 2015 This contribution has been reported as part of SEA in the segmental analys:s {note 1)

31 Disposal of SEA's Space business

0On 30 Aprii 2014 the Group’s subsidiary SEA signed an agreement to sell its Space business, in its entirety, to Thales Alera Space UK Lirmited {TAS} On signing,
the Group received £2 5m of £5 0m agreed censideraton and, in return, passed effective control of SEA’s Space business to TAS As a result of TAS taking
effective control from 30 April 2014, the Group has accounted for the disposal in 1ts enbirety 1n the year ended 30 Apnil 2014

The disposal completed on 6 June 2014 with the satsfaction of certain contract assignments and novahions On complehon the Group received the balance
of consideraton receivable, a further £2 5m

A further £1 5m in respect of a working capital adjustment was received on 30 Aprii 2015

During the year ended 30 Apnl 2015, SEA recognised exceptional income of £44,000 (2014 loss of £1,386,000) 1n completing the disposal of (ts Space business
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Accounting policies

Basis of accounting

Both the parent company financsal statements and the Group financial statements have been prepared and approved by the Directors in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU {Adopted IFRSs} On publishing the parent company financial statements here, together
with the Group financial statements, the Company Is taking advantage of the exemption in Section 408 of the Compames Act 2006 not to present its
individual Inceme statement and related notes that form part of these approved financial statements

As highlighted in note 15 to the financial statements, the Company meets its day-to-day working capital requirements through an offsetting facility which
1s due for renewal in Octaber 2015, if a new facility +s not put in place by this date Both the current domestic economic condihons and conhnuing UK
Government budget pressures, including defence, create uncertainty, particularly over (a) the level of demand for the Group’s products, and {b) the
availability of bank finance in the foreseeable future

The Company’s forecasts and projections, taking account of reasonably possible changes in trading performance, show that the Company shouid be able
to operate within the level of its current facility The Company 1s currently in negohiahons with 1ts bankers regarding a new facility, which 1s larger than the
existing facility At this stage the Company has not sought any written commitment that this new facility will be confirmed However, the Company has held
discussions with 1ts bankers about its future funding reguirements and no matters have been drawn to its attention to suggest that a new facility may not
be forthcoming on acceptable terms

The Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources to cantinue in operational existence for the foreseeable future
Thus they continue to adopt the going concern biasis in prepanng the annual financial statements

Further information regarding the Company’s business activinies, together with the factors likely to affect its future development, performance and posihon,
1s set out In the Strategic report on pages 4 to 24 The financial posiion of the Company, its cash flows, iquidity posibon and borrowing facilines are also
described in the Strategic report on pages 19to 21

In addition, the Strategic report includes the Company’s objectives, policies and processes for managing its capital, its financial risk management objectives,
details of its Ainancial Instruments and hedging activities, and its exposures to credit risk and hquidity risk

Basis of consolidation
The cansolidated finandial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and 1ts subsidiary undertakings rmade up to 30 Apnil 2015
Subsidharies acquired during the year are consohdated from the date of acquisihon, using the purchase method (see business combinatons below)

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used into line with those used
by the Group This s necessary as the Group’s subsidiaries continue 16 prepare statutory financial statements in accordance with UK GAAP

The Group s subsidiaries will prepare their statutory financial statements in accordance with IFRS, as adopted by the EU, as from 1 May 2015

Adoption of new and revised standards
Various new and revised standards and interpretations have been adopted by the Group in the year ended 30 April 2015 which have had no significant
tmpact on the amounts reported in these financiai statements by the Group

Bank borrowings

Interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct 1ssue costs Finance charges, including premiums payable
on settlement or redemption and direct 1ssue costs, are accounted for on an aceruals basis In the income statement using the effective interest rate method
and are disclosed within accruals to the extent they are not seftled in the period, unless the loan terms provide for the interest to be added to the principal,
in which case the interest 1s added to the carrying amount of the instrument to which it pertains

Borrowing costs
All borrowing costs are recogrised in the income statement in the period in which they are incurred unless, where appropnate, interest costs are capitalised
Into assets, fixed and current

Business combinations

The acquisiton of subsidiaries 1s accounted for using the purchase method The cost of the acquisibon 1s measured as the aggregate of the fair values, at
the completion date of assets acquired, iatulies incurred or assumed and equity instruments tssued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquired
subsidiary The costs of acquisinen are charged to the Consolidated income statement as an exceptional item in accordance with IFRS 3 (Rewised)

Goodwill arising on acquisihion is recognised as an asset and inhally measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the business combination over the
Group's interest in the net fair value of the idenbfiable intangible assets, assets, habdites and connngent liabilites recogrised If, after reassessment, which
15 @ point N time greater than 12 months after the completion date, the Group's interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s idenbfiable assets, labilites
and contingent habilites exceeds or 15 below the cost of the business combination, the excess or shortfall s recognised immediately in the income
statement as an exceptional stem

Adustments to the provisional value of assets and habilihies acquired in a bustness combmnation when the final values have become known within 12 months
are adjusted as If the accounting had been completed at the acquisihon date and the comparative infarmaton for prior periods 1s restated accardingly

Any change In consideration, where previously estimated, 1s iImmediately recognised as an exceptional item in the income statement

Where less than 100% of a subsidiary 1s acquired but the Group has effective control, that subsidiary 1s accounted for as if 100% were acquired with the
nan contralling nterest recogmsed appropriately
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Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and on-demand deposits, and other short-term highly liguid smvestments that are readily convertible
to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value Deposits are included within cash and cash eguivalents where the
maturity from commencement of the deposit is three months or less

Derivahve finanoial instruments and hedge accounting
The Group's activiies expase 1t to the inancral risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates The Group uses foreign exchange forward
contracts and interest rate swap contracts to hedge these exposures The Group does not use dervative inancial instruments for speculative purposes

Changes In the fair value of denvative financial instruments that are designated and effective as hedges of future cash flows are recogmsed directly in equity
and the ineffective portion 1s recognised immediately in the iIncome statement |f the cash flow hedge of a firm commitment or forecast transachion results
in the recognition of an asset or a hability, then, at the ime the asset or hability i1s recognised the associated gains or losses on the derivanive that had
previously been recogmised in equity are included in the iihal measurement of the asset or llablity For hedges that do not result in the recognihon of

an asset or a llabuity, amounts deferred in equity are recognised in the Income statement in the same period in which the hedged item affects net income

Changes in the fair value of denvanve financial instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised in the iIncome statement as they anse
and are disclosed separately in derving the Group’s adjusted operating profit

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct 1ssue costs

Exceptional items

Items which are both matenal and non-recurring are presented as exceptional items within the relevant income statement category The separate reporting
of exceptional items helps provide a better indication of the Group’s underlying business perfermance Events which may give rise to the classihcabon of
items as exceptional, of of a significantly matenal value, include gains or losses an the disposal of a business, restructuring of a business, transachon costs,
Iiigation and similar settlements asset impairments and onerous contracts

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial habilities are recognised in the Group’s balance sheet when the Group becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument

Financial habilihes and equity instruments
Financial habilittes and equity instruments are classifhed according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into An equity instrument
1s any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its habilities

Foreign currencies

The indwidual financial statements of each Greup company are presented in the currency of the pnimary economic enviranment in which it operates

{11s functional currency), which 1s eurrently sterling for the whole Group Far the purpose of the consolidated financial statements, the results and financial
position of each Group company are expressed in pounds sterling, which 1s the funcnonal currency of the Company and the presentational currency for the
consohdated financial statements

In prepaning the financial statements of the individual companies, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s funchenal currency {foretgn currencies)
are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions At each balance sheet date monetary assets and Liabilities that are
denorminated in foreign currencies are re-translated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the re-translation of monetary items, are included in the income statement
for the year

in order to hedge its exposure to certain foreign exchange risks, the Group enters into forward contracts The Group s accounting policres in respect of such
derivahive finangial Instruments are described above

Thesa forward foreign exchange contracts are revalued to fair value at each balance sheet date with any movement inciuded in the Consolidated income
statement as part of the cost of sales and disclosed separately in derving the Group’s adjusted operating proft

Goodwill

Goodwill arising an consolidation represents the excess of the cost of acquisinon over the Group’s interest in the fair value of the identfiable intangible assets,
assets and habiihies of a subsidiary, associate or Jointly controlled entity at the date of acquisthon Goodwill i1s imnimally recognised as an asset at cost and

1= subsequently measured at cost less any accurnulated impairment losses Goodwill which 1s recognised as an asset 1s reviewed for imparment biannualty
Any impairment 1s recognised immediately in the iIncome statement as an exceptional item and 1s not subsequently reversed

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill 15 allocated to each of the Group's subsidiaries as appropriate Substdianies {cash generabng units) to
which goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment biannually, or more frequently when there 1s an indication that the unit may be impaired

If the recoverable amount of the subsidiary is less than the carrying amount of the subsidiary, the impairment loss 1s allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the subsidiary and then to the other assets of the subsidiary pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount ef each asset
n the subsihary An impairment loss recognised for goodwill 15 not reversed in a subsequent pericd The impairment of goodwill 1s a crtical jJudgement and
estimate and 1s discussed in detail below

On disposal of a subsidiary, associate or jointly contralled entity, the attributable amount of goodwill s included in the determination of the profit or loss
on disposal
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Accounting policies continued

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets excluding goodwll

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss if any such indicatian exists, the recoverable amount of the asset 1s estimated In order to determine the
extent of the iImpatrment {f any)

Recoverable amount 1s the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use in assessing value In use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to therr present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessrments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset
far which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted

If the recoverable amount of an asset {or subsidiary) 1s eshmated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset {subsidiary} is reduced
to its recoverable amount Animpairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately, unless the relevant asset 1s carned at a revalued amount, in which
case the impairment loss Is treated as a revaluahon decrease

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amaount of the asset (subsidiary) 15 increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carmang armount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset (subsidiary) in prior years A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are recognised in respect of contracts, intellectual property nights and other measurable intang bles arising on business combinations The value
of these intangible assets 1s determined by the estmated value to the Group going forward and the intangible assets are written off on a straight-ne basis
over the estimated useful hfe As discussed below, the valuation of intangibie assets 1s an area of c¢riical jJudgement and esbmate by the Directors

Inventones

Inventaries are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost of finished goods and work in progress includes overheads appropriate to the stage
of manufacture Net realisable value 1s based upon estirated selling price less further cost expected to be incurred to completion and disposal Provision

1s made for obsolete and slow-moving items

Joint ventures

The Group accounts for joint ventures where it has a participating interest using the equity method of accounting and discloses the net investment
In non-current assets

Where the investment in a joint venture 1s negative, the negative investment, to the extent it 1s a hability of the Group, 1s offset against any trade and other
recevables held by the Group in respect of that Joint venture

The Group accounts for joint ventures in which it ne longer has a participating mterest by recognising any investment and assets or llabilines due to or from
the Group

Leasing
Leases are classihed as inance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantally all the nisks and rewards of ownership to the lessee All other
leases are classified as operating leases

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the Group at their fair vatue or, if lower, at the present value of the minimur lease payments each
determined at the incephon of the lease The corresponding lability to the lessor 1s included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation Lease payments
are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to income an a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease
Benefits recerved and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operahing lease are also spread on a straight-line basis over the lease term
Pension contributions

Payments are made to the Company's stakeholder pension schemes, all of which are defined contrbution schemes Amounts are charged to the income
staternent as incurred

Property, plant and equipment
Land and buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes, are stated In the balance sheet at therr fair
value at the date of acquisihon, plus any subsequent cost, less any subsequent accumulated depreciahon and subsequent accumulated iImpairment losses

Fixtures and equipment are stated at cost less accurnulated depreciation and any recognised impairment loss

Depreciatton is charged so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets, othar than land and properties under construction, over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method, on the following bases

Builldings 2%—4%
Fixtures, fittings and equipment 20%~50%

Assets held under Anance leases are depreciated over their expected useful [ives on the same basis as owned assets or, where shorter, over the term
of the relevant lease

The gan or loss ansing on the disposal or rebrement of an asset 15 determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in the income statement as an exceptional item
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Financlal statements

Provisions

Prowvisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or construchive) which arises as a result of a past event and it 1s probable that the
Group will be required to settle that obligation Provisions are measured at the Directors’ best eshimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligaton
at the balance sheet date and are discounted to present value where the effect 1s matenial In respect of specihic types of provistons the policy 1s as follows

Warranty
Prowisions for the expected cost of warranty obliganions under local sale of goods legistation and specifically contracted warranty undertakings are recognised
at the date of sale of the relevant product or service The provision Is the Directors’ best eshmate of the expenditure required to settle the Group's obligation

Other contract related prowvisions including contract loss provisions
These include the following

The Group undertakes a number of contracts where contractua! and/or third-party obligations arise as a result of delivering the contract This prowvision
includes amounts for losses an contracts which are recogmised in full immediately that it 1s probable that total contracts costs will exceed total contract
revenue In some cases, after a product has been delivered and revenue has been recognised, the Greup receives claims (including warranty 1ssues} from
customers in respect of work done Where the amount required to settte the clatm 1s uncertain or the Group disputes the amount of the claim, provision
15 made for the best esmate of the amount that will be required to settle the claim

Where the expected cost at completton of a current contract exceeds the sum of the contracted revenue and any probable revenue, then the amount of that
excess {the eshmated contract loss) is immediately prowided for in full Such contract loss provisions are reviewed on a regular basis to determine whether the
provision 15 still adequate or excessive Contract loss provisions and subseguent adjustments to them are charged as cost of sales in the incorne statermnent

Where such an obligation relates to a disconbnued operaton then the charge will be disclosed as an exceptional item

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure an research achivibes 1s recognised as an expense In the perwod in which 1t 1s incurred

An internalty generated intangible asset anising from the Group's own development activity is recogrised only if all of the following conditons are met
+ an asset Is created that can be identified (such as software, product and new processes) and 15 techmically and commercially feasible,

+ it 15 probable that the asset created will generate future ecanomic benefits and the Group has available to stself sufficient resources to complete
the development and to subsequently sell and/or use the asset created, and

» the development cost of the asset can be measured reliably

Internally generated intangible assets are amorbsed on a straight-line basis over their useful lives Where no internally generated intangible asset can
be recognised, development expenditure 1s recognised as an expense In the period in which 1t 1s incurred

Revenue recogmbon
Revenue 1s recogrised at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable far the prowision of goods and serwices, excluding discounts,
VAT and other sales related taxes

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and htle has passed

The Group applies either 145 11 ‘Construchon Contracts’ or IAS 18 ‘Revenue’ to account for revenue depending on the nature of the arrangement
with the customer The Group's arrangements fall into four main categories

1 Time hire
Revenue 1s recognised 1n accordance with 1AS 18 when the services are provided, 1 @ when the employees undertake the wark

2 Managed services

In managed services, revenue 1s generally a fixed price for the pravision of specific ongoing defined services {not the construction of an asset) over an agreed
period These servtces include the provision of technical engineering support, maintaining help desks and consultancy Where the services comprise an
indeterminate number of acts over a specified penod of hme, revenue is recognised on a straight-line basis over the periad that the services are provided
Where the services comprise one or more significant acts, revenue Is recognised as each act 1s completed

3 Product
Goods are delivered to customers and, on their acceptance by the customer, revenue 1s recogmsed At that paint, the Group does not have any continuing
involvement or control over the goods and all signihicant risks and rewards have been transferred to the customer

4 System design, build, test and delwery

These contracts are typically for building complex custom designed assets which are usually components for use in larger customer owned assets These contracts
are accounted for under 1AS 11 The Group's contracts of this nature are generally fixed price and without “standalone” values for each element as the contracts
are negohated and ultimately delivered/accepted as a single package

In these contracts the revenue is recognised using the “percentage of completion” method 10 1AS 11

In almost all cases the percentage of completon s based on input measures {1 e costs incurred as a proportion of estimated total costs) In some cases,
an output measure based on surveys of work performed may be used where these are available and measure reliably the work performed

Costs are expensed as incurred 1n respect of all contracts unless they relate to goods yet to be delivered, services related to a significant act that has yet
to be completed or future activities on a contract accounted for under 1AS 11 m which case they are recorded as an asset {either inventory or amounts
recoverable on contract}
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Accounting policies continued

Revenue recognition continued

4 System design, build, test and delivery continued

in some cases, Group contracts can be divided 1nto multipte elements with standalone values using either the principle in IAS 18 13 or the following critenia
based on IAS 11 7-10

= separate proposal for each element,
s each element was subject to separate negotiations, and
+ costs and revenues for each element can be identhed

Where separate elements are identihed, aach s treated as one of the four revenue types described above

Bid costs
Costsincurred before the award of a contract 15 probable are expensed as incurred Where material bid costs arise after the award of a contract has become
probable but before the contractisin place, then such identified bid costs are included in contract costs

Share-based payments
The Group has applied the requirements of IFRS 2 ‘Share based Payments’ In accardance with the transihonal provisions, IFRS 2 has been applied to all grants
of equity instruments after 7 November 2002 that were unvested as of 1 May 2006

The Group rssues equity-settled and cash-settled share-based payments to certain employees Equity-settled share based payments are measured at fair value
[excluding the effect of non-market based vesting condinons) at the date of grant The fair value determined at the grant date of equity-settled share-based
payments i1s expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period based on the Group's esbmate of shares that will eventually vest and adjusted for the
non market based vesting condihans

Fair value 1s measured by use of the Quoted Companies Alliance binomial model {a Black Scholes model) The expected life used in the models has been adjusted,
based on management’s best esimate, for the effect of non-transferability, exercise restricbons and behavioural considerations

Alability equal to the portion of the goods and services received 15 recognised at the current fair value determined at each balance sheet date for cash settled
share-based payments

The cost of share-based payments 15 charged to the income statement with a corresponding credit applied to the share option reserve The appropriate
element of the reserve 15 transferred to the retained profit of the Group when the share options to which the reserve relates vest

Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payvakle and the deferred tax expense or credit

The tax currently payable 1s based on taxable profit for the year Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the iIncome statement because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes iterns that are never taxable or deductible The Group's liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax s the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and habilibes in the Ananaal statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and ts accounted for using the balance sheet hability method Deferred tax habdities
are generally recogrused for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it 1s probable that taxable prafits will
be available against which deduchble temporary differences can be utiised Such assets and habilibes are not recogmsed if tha temporary difference arises
from the inihal recogrition of goodwall or from the initial recogmtion {other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affacts neither the tax profit ner the accounting profit

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, and interest in jont ventures,
except where the Group 1s able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and 1t 1s probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets Is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it 1s no longer prabable that sufficient
taxable profits will be avatlable to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered

Deferred tax s calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the perrod when the hability 1s settted or the asset 1s realised Deferred tax is charged
or credited to the income statement except when 1t relates to tems charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax 15 also dealt with
n equity

Deferred tax assets and liabilhes are offset when there 15 a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax habilines and when they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Graup intends to settle its current tax assets and habilities on a net basis

Trade and other recevables

Trade recewvables are inihally measured at fair value Appropriate allowances for estmated irrecoverable amounts are recognised in the income statement
when there i1s objective evidence that the asset is impaired The allowance recognised 1s measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the estimated recoverable amount

Long term contracts are assessed on a contract-by contract basis and reflected in the income statement by recording revenue and related costs as contract
activity progresses Revenue Is ascertained in a manner appropriate to the stage of complenon of the contract, and credit taken for profit earned to date
when the outcome of the contract can be assessed with reasonable certainty The amount by which revenue exceeds payments on account 1s classified as
“amounts recoverable on contracts” and included wathin trade and other receivables, to the extent that payments on account exceed relevant revenue, the
excess I5 included as an advance receipt within trade and other payables The amount of long-term contracts, at cost net of amounts transferred to cost of
sales costs incurred plus recognised profits, less provision for foreseeable lpsses and payments on account not matched with revenue 15 included within
trade and other recawvables as "amounts recoverable on contracts”
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Financial statements

Trade payables

Trade payables are initially measured at far value

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty
In the appkcabon of the Group's accounttng policies which are described above, the Directors are required ta make judgements, eshmates and assumphans
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilstes that are not readily apparent from other sources

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on histaricat experience and other factors that are considered to be relavant

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised In the period 1nh which the
estimate 15 revised

The Directors have identified the following crincat judgements and estimates in applytng the Group's accounting policies that have the most sigmificant
impact an the amounts recognised in the financial statements

1 Cnhcal accounting judgements

Revenue recognition

The revenue recogrmition policy of the Group 15 described in detail on page 69 There are areas where the Directors have to make judgements as to the level
of revenue to be recognised in the financial statements, in particular “stage of complebon”

In accardance with 1AS 11, revenue 1s recogrised using the “percentage of completion” method for system design, build, test and delivery contracts In almost
all cases the percentage of completion 1s based on tnput measures (1 e costs incurred as a proportion of estimated total costs) In 2 few cases, an output
measure based on surveys of work performed may be used where these are avalable and measure reliably the work performed

These contracts generally are not capable of segmentation and the percentage of completion method s applied to the contract as a whale

In advance of complenon of key stages {or deliverables] of contracts, there 1s addiional uncertainty in the estimated total contract costs and accordingly
this addiional uncertainty is reflected in increased estimates of the total contract costs 1e a conhngency 1s added

Once those key stages have been completed and the risks have expired, the relevant remaining contingencies are removed from the forecast total
contract costs Itis a crnitical judgement of the Directors as to both the level of contingency recognised and its retentron or not

Acquisition of other intangible assets

Intangible assets other than goodwill that are obtained through acquisihon are capitalised on the balance sheet These other intangibte assets are valued
on acquisition using a discounted cash flow methodology which depends on future assumptions about the revenue from contracts, prices and costs and on
the Group's cost of capital These assumphons reflect management s best eshmates but depend on inherent uncertainties which may not be within the
control of management

2 Key sources of eshmaton uncertainty
The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of eshmation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have & significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilites within the next financial year are as follows

Impairment of goodwill

The Group has significant goodwill balances, the life of which it considers to be indefinite It assesses biannually the recoverability of the balance, or more
frequently in the event of an occurrence indicating Impairment The assessment Involves comparing the carrying amount of the asset with its recoverable
amount, which is the greater of its value in use and net realisable value by reference to external measures

Value in use 15 deterrmined using discounted cash flow technigues that involve the estmation of future cash flows over a long pericd and an appropriate discount rate

Future cash flows are estimated based on hsstorical experience, internal esimates and data from external sources Such estimates are subject to change
as a result of changes in economic and competitive conditions Higher esbhmates of future cash flows will increase the value in use of goodwill, but lower
estimates of cash flows will reduce the value in use and sncrease the risk of impairment

Discount rates {weighted average cost of capital) are applied to the cash flows to arrive at the value in use An increase in the discount rate will reduce the
value in use of the goodwill, and will therefore increase the risk of the value in use falling below the carrying value and resuiting in an impairment provision
being required A reductian in the discount rate decreases the hkellhood of impairment

Future changes in interest rates, the prermurn that markets place on equity investments relanve to risk free rates and the specihc assessment of the camital
markets as to the Group's risk relative to ather companies can affect our discount rate Increases in interest rates or the nsk premumns applied by capital
markets would result 1n an increase in the Group's discount rate and vice versa These factors are largely outside the Group's contral or ability to predict
and can therefore have a sighificant impact on the eshmated fair value of goodwill and hence its impairment

The assessment of goodwill iImpairment 1s disclosed in note 9

Other
Where a reasonably possible change in a key assurnption could give rise to & change in the amount reparted, this s disclosed within the relevant note to the accounts

Standards and interpretations issued as at 25 June 2015 not apphed to these financial statements
A number of other standard amendments and International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC Interpretations) have been i1ssued and
are yet to be applied by the Group The most significant of these are

1 IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ This standard 1s effective from 1 January 2017 and will first apply to the Group's iinancial reporting
for the year ending 30 April 2018

2 Leases for lessors This remains a proposed change No effective date for a standard has been pubtished The full impact for the Group has not been
assessed at this stage
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Shareholder iInformation, financial calendar and advisers

Advisers

Nomitnated adviser and broker
Investec

2 Gresham Street

Londen EC2V 7QP

Auditor

KPMG LLP

Chartered Accountants
Arlington Business Park
Theale

Reading RG7 45D

Tax adwvisers
Deloitte LLP
Abbots House
Abbey Street
Reading RG1 3BD

Legal advisers
Pitmans

The Anchorage
34 Bridge Street
Reading RG1 2LU

Registrars

Capita Asset Services
The Registry

34 Beckenham Road
Beckenham

Kent BR3 4TU

Public and investor relations
MHP Communications

6 Agar Street

London WC2ZN 4HN

Bankers

RBS

Abbey Gardens
4 Abbey Street
Reading RG1 38A

Shareholders’ enguiries

If you have an enquiry about the Company's
business, or about something affecting you as a
shareholder (other than queries which are dealt with
by the registrars), you should contact the Company
Secretary by letter to the Cornpany’s registered
office or by email to info@cohartplc com

Share register
Capita Asset Services maintains the register
of members of the Company

If you have any questions about your personal
holding of the Company’s shares, please contact

Capita Asset Services
The Registry

34 Beckenham Road
Beckenham

Kent BR3 4TU

Telephone 0871 664 D300 (calls cost 10 pence
per minute plus network extras )

{From outside the UK +44 20 8639 3399 }
Lines are apen 9 00am to S 30pm, Monday to
Friday, excluding public holidays

Facsimile +44 (0} 20 8635 2220
Email shareholderenquines@capita co uk

If you change your name or address or if details
on the envelope enclosing this report, including
your postcode, are incorrect or incomplete,
please notify the registrars in writing

Daily share price listings
* The Financial Times — AIM, Aerospace
and Defence

» The Times — Engineering
¢ Daily Telegraph — AIM section

+ London Evening Standard — AIM section

Financial calendar
Annual General Meeting
22 September 2015

Final dividend payable
30 September 2015

Expected announcements of results for
the year ending 30 Apnil 2016
Preliminary half-year announcement
December 2015

Preliminary full-year announcement
lune 2016

Registered office
Cohort plc

Arlington House

1025 Arlington Business Park
Theale

Reading RG7 4SA

Registered company number
of Cohort plc
05684823

Cohort plc 1s a company registered
in €ngland and Wales
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Five-year record

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
Headline results {£'000)
Revenue 99,938 71,555 70,866 75,408 65,135
Adjusted operating profit 10,085 8171 7336 6,513 5,034
Adjusted earnings per share {pence)
Basic 2045 1915 17 94 1552 1069
Diluted 20 00 18 66 17 68 1550 10 69
Statutory earnings per share (pence)
Basic 1404 1475 2076 1130 679
Diluted 1374 14 37 2046 1128 679
Net operating cash flow (£'000) 18,798 2576 4,090 8,424 6512
Net funds (£'G00) 19,687 16,338 16,426 14,140 6,733
Order Intake {Em} 1140 691 596 793 556
Order book {£m}) 134 0 8172 957 1071 1032

1 The order boak at 30 April 2015 15 after including the acquired order books of MCL [£5 4m) on S luly 2014 and 1+5 (£32 6m) on 1 Octaber 2014

2 Order book at 30 Apnl 2014 exciudes SEA s Space business order back of £10 6m (2013 included £10 4m in respect of SEA s Space business)
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